
OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
 

There will be a Regular meeting of the City of Stoughton Utilities Committee on Monday, April 15, 2013 to be held at 
5:00 p.m. in the Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room of the Stoughton Utilities Administration Office in the 
Stoughton Utilities Building, 600 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 53589.   

 
AGENDA: 
 

Call To Order. 
Stoughton Utilities Committee Consent Agenda.  (All items are considered routine and will be enacted upon by 
one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Stoughton Utilities Committee member 
so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the consent agenda and be considered on the regular 
agenda.)  (Action.) 
a) Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List Report.   
b) Draft Minutes of the March 18, 2013 Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting.   
c) Stoughton Utilities February 2013 Financial Summary.   
d) Stoughton Utilities February 2013 Statistical Information.   
e) Stoughton Utilities Communications.   
f) Stoughton Utilities Committee Annual Calendar.   
g) Stoughton Utilities March 2012 Activities Report. 

 
BUSINESS: 
 

1. Status of the Stoughton Utilities Committee Recommendation(s) to The Stoughton Common Council. 
(Discussion.) 
 

2. Stoughton Utilities Audit Report And Management Letter.  (Action.) 
 
3. Stoughton Utilities Proposed Electric And Water Tax Stabilization Dividends.  (Action.) 
 
4. Stoughton Utilities Declarations Of Official Intent Nos. 2013-3 Through 2013-6.  (Action.) 
 
5. Stoughton Utilities Governance.  (Discussion And Possible Action.) 
 
6. Stoughton Utilities Committee Future Agenda Item(s).  (Discussion.) 

   
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Donna L. Olson,  
Stoughton Utilities Committee Chairperson 
April 9, 2013 
 
Notices Sent To: 
Mayor Donna L. Olson, Chair 
Alderperson Michael Engelberger 
Alderperson Eric Hohol, Vice-Chair, Common Council Liaison 
Alderperson Elvin (Sonny) Swangstu 
Stoughton Utilities Committee Citizen Member David Erdman 
Stoughton Utilities Committee Citizen Member Jonathan Hajny 
Stoughton Utilities Citizen Member Alan Staats 
Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent Sean Grady 
Stoughton Utilities Director Robert P. Kardasz, P.E.  



 
 
cc: Stoughton Common Council Members 
 Bethany Ryers, CPA, Manager – Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP 
 Stoughton Utilities and MEUW Southeastern Regional Safety Coordinator Christopher A. Belz 
 Stoughton Utilities Billing and Consumer Services Technician Erin N. Bothum 
 Stoughton City Media Services Director William H. Brehm 
 Stoughton City Attorney Matthew P. Dregne 
 Stoughton Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor Brian G. Erickson 
 Stoughton Utilities Office and Information Systems Supervisor Brian R. Hoops 

Stoughton Acting City Clerk Maria P. (Pili) Hougan 
 Stoughton Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager Kim M. Jennings, CPA 
 Stoughton Utilities and WPPI Energy Services Representative Cory Neeley. 
 Stoughton Library Administrative Assistant Debbie Myren 
 Stoughton Utilities Engineering Technician Scott S. Grady 
 Stoughton Utilities Water System Supervisor Roger M. Thorson 
 Stoughton Utilities Electric Lead Line Worker Craig A. Wood 

Stoughton Leadership Team 
Oregon Observer 
Stoughton Newspapers  
Wisconsin State Journal 
 

IMPORTANT:  FIVE MEMBERS ARE NEEDED FOR A QUORUM:  If a Stoughton Utilities Committee member 
encounters a situation that may affect your scheduled participation, please contact Robert Kardasz or Sean Grady at 877-
7423 or 877-7416 respectively prior to 5:00p.m. or via e-mail at bkardasz@stoughtonutilities.com. 
 
It is possible that members of, and possibly a quorum of members of other committees of the Common Council of the City 
of Stoughton may be in attendance at the above-mentioned meeting to gather information.  No action will be taken by any 
such group(s) at the above-mentioned meeting other than the Stoughton Utilities Committee consisting of Mayor Donna 
Olson, Alderperson Michael Engelberger, Alderperson Eric Hohol, Alderperson Elvin (Sonny) Swangstu, Citizen Member 
David Erdman, Citizen Member Jonathan Hajny, and Citizen Member Alan Staats.     

 
Please note that items taken on the Consent Agenda will not be discussed.  Any individual Stoughton Utilities Committee 
member may request an item be removed from the consent. 
 
Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids 
and services.  For information or to request this service, please contact the Stoughton Utilities Director at (608) 877-7423. 
 
An expanded meeting may constitute a quorum of the Common Council. 
 
Current and past Stoughton Utilities Committee documents, including meeting notices, meeting packets, and meeting 
minutes, are available for public download at http://uc.stoughtonutilities.com. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:bkardasz@stoughtonutilities.com




 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  April 9, 2013 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


  Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Status Of The Stoughton Utilities Committee Recommendation(s) To The 


Stoughton Common Council. 


 


The following items from the March 18, 2013 Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee 


Meeting were recommended to the Stoughton Common Council: 


 


Business: 


 


 Stoughton Utilities Bad Debt Write-Offs Through December 31, 2012. 


 Proposed Rental Of Stoughton Utilities Agricultural Land.  


 


Consent Agenda: 


 


 Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List. 


 Stoughton Utilities Committee February 12 and 18, 2013 Special and Regular 


Meetings Minutes. 


 Stoughton Utilities January 2013 Financial Summaries. 


 Stoughton Utilities January 2013 Statistical Worksheets. 
 


cc: Sean O Grady 


Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 


 


 


 








 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  April 9, 2013 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Kim M. Jennings, CPA 


  Stoughton Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager 


 


  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


  Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Audit Report And Management Letter. 


 


The Stoughton Utilities Audit Reports and Management Letter will be presented at the 


April 15, 2013 Stoughton Utilities Committee meeting.  Ms. Jodi Dobson of Baker Tilly 


Virchow Krause, LLP is scheduled to present the information. Please review the attached 


information and contact us if you have any questions prior to the meeting.   


 


We are requesting that the Utilities Committee accept the Stoughton Utilities Audit 


Report and Management Letter and recommend the acceptance of the audit report and the 


management letter and the adoption of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton 


Common Council on May 28, 2013.   


 


Encl. 


 


cc: John C. Andres, CPA, Partner - Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP 


Bethany Ryers, CPA, - Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP 


 Brian G. Erickson - Stoughton Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor 


 Brian R. Hoops - Stoughton Utilities Office and Information Systems Supervisor 


 Sean O Grady - Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 


 Laurie Sullivan - City of Stoughton Finance Director 


 Roger M. Thorson - Stoughton Utilities Water System Supervisor 


  


 







 
City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION TO THE STOUGHTON UTILTIES COMMITTEE 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Stoughton Utilities Audit Report 


and Management Letter. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
 


 
Fiscal Impact: None 


 
File Number: 


 
 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
April 15, 2013 


 
WHEREAS, Baker Tilly Virchow Krause LLP has prepared the Stoughton Utilities Audit Report and 


Management Letter for 2012, and 


 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Utilities Committee met on April 15, 2013 to consider, approve, and 


recommend the approval of the Stoughton Utilities Audit Report and Management letter for 2011, now 


therefore  


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) are 


hereby authorized and directed to approve the Stoughton Utilities Audit Report and Management Letter 


for 2013. 


 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     
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 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2012 and 2011 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 11 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
 


Comparison of Electric Sales 
 


 


 
 


Increasing electric sales and a wholesale power cost adjustment on January 1, 2012 resulted in 
an increase in sales revenue of $317,201, or 2.13% in 2012.  
 


2012 2011 2010


Residential 7,711,886$         7,652,332$        7,262,312$       
General Service 2,104,261           1,966,989          1,779,438         
Small Power 1,467,540           1,410,706          1,340,462         
Large Power 1,049,188           956,963             944,496            
Industrial Power 2,761,836           2,781,578          2,554,604         
Public Lighting 141,102             150,044             131,157            


Total Electric Sales 15,235,813$       14,918,612$       14,012,469$      
 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2012 and 2011 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 12 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 


Comparison of Water Sales 
 


 


 


 


Sales increased $22,999 or 1.34% in 2012 due to a slight increase in water consumption.  There 
were no retail rate increases in 2012.   
 


2012 2011 2010


Residential 816,587$            792,642$           756,725$          
Commercial 196,348             193,971             178,491            
Industrial 255,137             263,376             199,210            
Public Authority 19,222               17,828               15,828              
Private Fire 25,422               25,417               20,999              
Public Fire 420,871             417,354             364,006            


Total Water Sales 1,733,587$         1,710,588$        1,535,259$       
 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2012 and 2011 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 13 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Comparison of Wastewater Sales 


 


 


 


 


The utility experienced an increase in revenues of $24,179 or 1.21% in 2012 due to a slight 
increase in volume sales.  No retail rate increases were implemented in 2012. 
 


2012 2011 2010


Residential 1,449,168$         1,403,877$        1,415,649$       
Commercial 441,780             456,246             429,388            
Industrial 112,101             120,473             127,345            
Public Authority 25,855               24,129               22,287              


Total Wastewater Sales 2,028,904$         2,004,725$        1,994,669$       
 


 



























 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2012 and 2011 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 19 


 
CONTACTING UTILITY MANAGEMENT 


 
This financial report is designed to provide our customers, investors and creditors with a general 
overview of the utilities’ finances. If you have questions about this report, or need additional 
financial information, contact the Finance and Administrative Manager, Stoughton Utilities, 600 
South Fourth Street, P.O. Box 383, Stoughton, WI  53589. 
 
General information relating to the Stoughton Utilities can be found at the utilities’ web site at 
www.stoughtonutilities.com.   
 







 


ELECTRIC UTILITY 
 
 







2012 2011
CURRENT ASSETS


Cash and investments 5,082,813$        5,035,976$       
Interest receivable 30,252               25,142              
Restricted Assets


Redemption account 377,610             358,057            
Customer accounts receivable 1,445,185          1,491,484         
Other accounts receivable 167,935             34,666              
Due from municipality 24,918               25,630              
Current portion of advance to municipality 31,250               41,569              
Materials and supplies 139,181             135,057            
Prepayments 20,425               25,277              


Total Current Assets 7,319,569          7,172,858         


NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets


Reserve account 704,728             704,728            
Depreciation account 25,000               25,000              


Other Assets
Electric plant and maintenance reserve account 504,498             103,860            
Sick leave reserve account 170,916             170,916            
Advance to municipality 481,925             513,175            
Investment in ATC 282,798             259,669            
Nonutility property (net) 28,933               32,593              


Capital Assets
Plant in service 25,633,251        24,963,205       
Accumulated depreciation (10,854,101)       (10,038,045)      
Property held for future use 352,664             352,664            
Construction work in progress 29,095               32,435              


Total Noncurrent Assets 17,359,707        17,120,200       


Total Assets 24,679,276        24,293,058       


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2012 and 2011


ASSETS


Page 20







2012 2011
CURRENT LIABILITIES


Accounts payable 1,056,225$        1,009,395$       
Due to municipality 363,359             322,881            
Customer deposits 144,259             125,914            
Accrued wages 18,512               14,656              
Accrued interest 2,241                 2,135                
Accrued liabilities 138,067             106,485            
Commitment to community (24,064)              56,599              
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets


Current portion of revenue bonds 400,000             375,000            
Accrued interest 67,761               71,368              


Total Current Liabilities 2,166,360          2,084,433         


NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Revenue bonds 5,505,000          5,905,000         
Accrued sick leave 171,819             170,916            
Customer advances for construction 8,082                 9,440                


Total Noncurrent Liabilities 5,684,901          6,085,356         


Total Liabilities 7,851,261          8,169,789         


Investment in capital assets 8,903,245          8,677,595         
Restricted for debt service 1,039,577          1,016,417         
Unrestricted 6,885,193          6,429,257         


TOTAL NET POSITION 16,828,015$     16,123,269$    


LIABILITIES


NET POSITION


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 21







2012 2011
OPERATING REVENUES


Sales of electricity 15,235,813$      14,918,612$     
Other 149,454             136,856            


Total Operating Revenues 15,385,267        15,055,468       


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance 13,336,299        13,136,259       
Depreciation 910,353             912,530            


Total Operating Expenses 14,246,652        14,048,789       


OPERATING INCOME 1,138,615          1,006,679         


NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 100,685             117,555            
Interest expense (274,683)            (288,750)           
Miscellaneous revenues (expenses) (1,473)                (613)                  


Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (175,471)            (171,808)           


Income Before Contributions and Transfers 963,144             834,871            


CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 130,561             17,407              
TRANSFER IN (OUT) (25,600)              (20,788)             
TRANSFERS - TAX EQUIVALENT (363,359)            (322,881)           


CHANGE IN NET POSITION 704,746             508,609            


NET POSITION - Beginning of Year 16,123,269        15,614,660       


NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 16,828,015$     16,123,269$    


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 22







2012 2011
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Received from customers 15,166,459$       15,129,043$     
Received for street lighting 132,550              140,379            
Paid to suppliers for goods and services (12,336,543)       (12,398,852)      
Paid to employees for operating payroll (917,915)            (936,916)           
Customer deposit 18,345                7,786                


Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 2,062,896           1,941,440         


CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Paid to municipality for tax equivalent (322,881)            (291,922)           
Paid to municipality for Wisconsin Retirement UAAL liability -                     (554,744)           
Received from municipality principal on Wisconsin Retirement UAAL liability 41,569                -                    
Received from municipality interest on Wisconsin Retirement UAAL liability 4,161                  -                    
Transfers to other funds (25,600)              (20,788)             


Net Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities (302,751)            (867,454)           


CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (847,627)            (1,209,483)        
Received from the sale of capital assets 3,774                  9,917                
Capital contributions received 131,919              123,920            
Debt retired (375,000)            (350,000)           
Interest paid (278,243)            (291,993)           


Net Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities (1,365,177)         (1,717,639)        


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments purchased (1,855,546)         (2,693,190)        
Investments sold and matured 2,084,356           1,800,800         
Dividends/(Investment) in ATC 7,466                  13,996              
Investment income 171,926              144,470            


Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities 408,202              (733,924)           


Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 803,170              (1,377,577)        


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of Year 2,022,472           3,400,049         


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 2,825,642$         2,022,472$      


NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES


Unrealized gain (loss) on investments (107,331)$          (46,291)$          
ATC earnings allocated 30,595$              29,207$            


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011


Page 23







2012 2011
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
  FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Operating income 1,138,615$        1,006,679$       
Nonoperating revenue (expense) (1,473)                (613)                  
Noncash items in operating income


Depreciation 910,353             912,530            
Depreciation charged to clearing and other utilities 39,600               39,600              


Changes in assets and liabilities
Customer accounts receivable 46,299               119,617            
Other account receivable (133,269)            79,770              
Due from municipality 712                    7,288                
Materials and supplies (4,124)                (10,460)             
Prepayments 4,852                 1,766                
Accounts payable 87,308               (158,577)           
Customer deposits 18,345               7,786                
Accrued sick leave 903                    7,279                
Other current liabilities 35,438               1,859                
Commitment to community (80,663)              (73,084)             


NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,062,896$       1,941,440$      


RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO
   STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION ACCOUNTS


Cash and investments 5,082,813$        5,035,976$       
Redemption account 377,610             358,057            
Reserve account 704,728             704,728            
Depreciation account 25,000               25,000              
Electric plant and maintenance reserve account 504,498             103,860            
Sick leave reserve account 170,916             170,916            


Total Cash and Investments 6,865,565          6,398,537         
Less: Noncash equivalents (4,039,923)         (4,376,065)        


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,825,642$       2,022,472$      


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 24







 


WATER UTILITY 
 







2012 2011
CURRENT ASSETS


Cash and investments 405,347$           600,438$          
Interest receivable 7,346                 4,491                
Restricted Assets


Redemption account 147,233             145,061            
Customer accounts receivable 164,941             185,762            
Other accounts receivable -                         4,457                
Due from municipality 6,341                 -                        
Materials and supplies 35,244               23,257              
Prepayments 7,064                 8,828                


Total Current Assets 773,516             972,294            


NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets


Reserve account 274,005             274,005            
Depreciation account 25,000               25,000              


Other Assets
Water plant and maintenance reserve account 447,481             347,214            
Sick leave reserve account 88,632               88,632              
Non-utility property (net) 47,758               52,038              


Capital Assets
Plant in service 17,687,341        16,898,293       
Accumulated depreciation (5,174,407)         (4,785,085)        
Construction work in progress 24,233               228,507            


Total Noncurrent Assets 13,420,043        13,128,604       


Total Assets 14,193,559        14,100,898       


STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2012 and 2011


ASSETS


Page 25







2012 2011
CURRENT LIABILITIES


Accounts payable 48,977$             37,814$            
Due to municipality 342,159             301,135            
Customer deposits 591                    353                   
Accrued wages 12,190               14,842              
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets


Current portion of revenue bonds 184,910             179,263            
Accrued interest 15,170               16,479              


Total Current Liabilities 603,997             549,886            


NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Revenue bonds 2,077,213          2,262,123         
Accrued sick leave 92,446               88,632              


Total Noncurrent Liabilities 2,169,659          2,350,755         


Total Liabilities 2,773,656          2,900,641         


Investment in capital assets 10,275,044        9,900,329         
Restricted for debt service 431,068             427,587            
Unrestricted 713,791             872,341            


TOTAL NET POSITION 11,419,903$     11,200,257$    


LIABILITIES


NET POSITION


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 26







2012 2011
OPERATING REVENUES


Sales of water 1,733,587$        1,710,588$       
Other 23,291               24,237              


Total Operating Revenues 1,756,878          1,734,825         


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance 745,471             788,488            
Depreciation 364,679             342,667            


Total Operating Expenses 1,110,150          1,131,155         


OPERATING INCOME 646,728             603,670            


NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 10,718               11,297              
Interest expense (93,433)              (100,680)           
Loss on disposal of assets -                         (73,663)             
Miscellaneous expenses (4,273)                (780)                  


Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (86,988)              (163,826)           


Income Before Contributions and Transfers 559,740             439,844            


CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 9,000                 86,600              
TRANSFER IN (OUT) (6,935)                (10,600)             
TRANSFERS - TAX EQUIVALENT (342,159)            (301,135)           


CHANGE IN NET POSITION 219,646             214,709            


NET POSITION - Beginning of Year 11,200,257        10,985,548       


NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 11,419,903$     11,200,257$    


STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 27







2012 2011
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Received from customers 1,775,815$        1,742,124$       
Paid to suppliers for goods and services (459,540)            (458,315)           
Paid to employees for operating payroll (256,822)            (266,133)           


Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 1,059,453          1,017,676         


CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Paid to municipality for tax equivalent (301,135)            (259,162)           
Transfers to other funds (6,935)                (10,600)             


Net Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities (308,070)            (269,762)           


CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (586,893)            (704,722)           
Capital contributions received 9,000                 86,600              
Debt retired (179,263)            (168,632)           
Interest paid (94,742)              (101,794)           


Net Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities (851,898)            (888,548)           


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments purchased -                         (206,517)           
Investments sold and matured 394,835             644,057            
Investment income 16,777               47,892              


Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities 411,612             485,432            


Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 311,097             344,798            


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of Year 702,356             357,558            


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 1,013,453$       702,356$         


NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES


Unrealized gain (loss) on investments (8,914)$              (35,908)$          


STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011


Page 28







2012 2011
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
  FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Operating income 646,728$           603,670$          
Noncash items in operating income


Depreciation 364,679             342,667            
Depreciation charged to clearing and other utilities 27,007               27,007              


Changes in assets and liabilities
Customer accounts receivable 20,821               7,343                
Other account receivable 4,457                 (44)                    
Due from municipality (6,341)                -                        
Materials and supplies (11,987)              3,844                
Prepayments 1,764                 642                   
Accounts payable 11,163               27,982              
Accrued wages (2,652)                1,624                
Accrued sick leave 3,814                 2,941                


NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,059,453$        1,017,676$      


RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO
   STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION ACCOUNTS


Cash and investments 405,347$           600,438$          
Redemption account 147,233             145,061            
Reserve account 274,005             274,005            
Depreciation account 25,000               25,000              
Water plant and maintenance reserve account 447,481             347,214            
Sick leave reserve account 88,632               88,632              


Total Cash and Investments 1,387,698          1,480,350         
Less: Noncash equivalents (374,245)            (777,994)           


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,013,453$        702,356$         


STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 29







 


WASTEWATER UTILITY 
 







2012 2011
CURRENT ASSETS


Cash and investments 1,088,123$        1,387,496$       
Interest receivable 1,732                 3,081                
Restricted Assets


Redemption account 456,417             438,483            
Customer accounts receivable 203,564             222,634            
Other accounts receivable 18,068               1,547                
Due from municipality 5,971                 -                        
Prepayments 8,829                 11,035              


Total Current Assets 1,782,704          2,064,276         


NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets


Depreciation account 33,283               33,283              
Replacement account 1,028,014          1,027,040         
Construction account 123                    123                   


Other Assets
Sick leave reserve account 97,782               97,782              


Capital Assets
Plant in service 23,251,907        22,302,743       
Accumulated depreciation (8,446,186)         (7,816,519)        
Construction work in progress 215,757             361,261            


Total Noncurrent Assets 16,180,680        16,005,713       


Total Assets 17,963,384        18,069,989       


STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2012 and 2011


ASSETS
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2012 2011
CURRENT LIABILITIES


Accounts payable 151,503$           125,728$          
Accrued wages 15,588               17,684              
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets


Current portion of revenue bonds 649,737             630,475            
Accrued interest 16,419               19,633              


Total Current Liabilities 833,247             793,520            


NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Revenue bonds 2,903,455          3,553,191         
Accrued sick leave 91,717               97,782              


Total Noncurrent Liabilities 2,995,172          3,650,973         


Total Liabilities 3,828,419          4,444,493         


Investment in capital assets 11,468,409        10,663,942       
Restricted for debt service 473,281             452,133            
Restricted for equipment replacement 1,028,014          1,027,040         
Unrestricted 1,165,261          1,482,381         


TOTAL NET POSITION 14,134,965$     13,625,496$    


LIABILITIES


NET POSITION


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 31







2012 2011
OPERATING REVENUES


Treatment charges 2,028,904$        2,004,725$       
Other 33,702               69,039              


Total Operating Revenues 2,062,606          2,073,764         


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance 877,033             905,616            
Depreciation 630,188             630,352            


Total Operating Expenses 1,507,221          1,535,968         


OPERATING INCOME 555,385             537,796            


NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 9,763                 15,638              
Interest expense (104,934)            (124,008)           
Miscellaneous revenues -                         3,500                


Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (95,171)              (104,870)           


Income Before Contributions 460,214             432,926            


CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 49,255               -                        


CHANGE IN NET POSITION 509,469             432,926            


NET POSITION - Beginning of Year 13,625,496        13,192,570       


NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 14,134,965$     13,625,496$    


STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 32







2012 2011
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Received from customers 2,059,184$        2,085,482$       
Paid to suppliers for goods and services (533,151)            (501,764)           
Paid to employees for operating payroll (324,062)            (327,396)           


Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 1,201,971          1,256,322         


CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (752,227)            (835,648)           
Debt retired (630,474)            (611,788)           
Interest paid (108,149)            (127,122)           


Net Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities (1,490,850)         (1,574,558)        


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments purchased (246,000)            (199,750)           
Investments sold and matured 510,721             341,629            
Investment income 23,135               35,851              


Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities 287,856             177,730            


Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,023)                (140,506)           


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of Year 2,242,732          2,383,238         


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 2,241,709$        2,242,732$      


NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES


Unrealized gain (loss) on investments (14,721)$            (19,603)$          


Capital assets financed by CTC program 49,255$             -$                     


STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
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2012 2011
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
  FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Operating income 555,385$           537,796$          
Nonoperating revenue (expense) -                        
Noncash items in operating income


Depreciation 630,188             630,352            
Changes in assets and liabilities


Customer accounts receivable 19,070               11,718              
Other account receivable (16,521)              -                        
Due from municipality (5,971)                -                        
Prepayments 2,206                 803                   
Accounts payable 25,775               69,006              
Accrued sick leave (6,065)                4,451                
Other current liabilities (2,096)                2,196                


NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,201,971$       1,256,322$      


RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO
   STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION ACCOUNTS


Cash and investments 1,088,123$        1,387,496$       
Redemption account 456,417             438,483            
Depreciation account 33,283               33,283              
Replacement account 1,028,014          1,027,040         
Construction account 123                    123                   
Sick leave reserve account 97,782               97,782              


Total Cash and Investments 2,703,742          2,984,207         
Less: Noncash equivalents (462,033)            (741,475)           


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,241,709$       2,242,732$      


STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 34
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The financial statements of Stoughton Utilities (utilities) have been prepared in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to enterprise funds of 
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted 
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  
 
The significant accounting principles and policies utilized by the utilities are described below. 
 
 REPORTING ENTITY 
 
The utilities are separate enterprise funds of the City of Stoughton (municipality). The utilities are 
managed by a utilities committee. The utilities provide electric, water and wastewater service to properties 
within the municipality.  The utilities also provide electric service to the Townships of Dunkirk, Dunn, 
Pleasant Springs, Porter and Rutland. 
 
The electric and water utilities operate under service rules and rates established by the Public Service 
Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW).  The wastewater utility operates under rules and rates established by 
the utilities committee.  The utilities are also regulated by the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources. 
 
 MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION 
 
The utilities are presented as enterprise funds of the municipality. Enterprise funds are used to account 
for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business or where the 
governing body has decided that the determination of revenues earned, costs incurred and net income is 
necessary for management accountability. 
 
The financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and 
expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used.  Revenues, expenses, 
gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are 
recognized when the exchange takes place.   
 
In June 2011, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 63 - 
Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. 
This statement provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources. Previous financial reporting standards did not include guidance for these elements, 
which are distinct from assets and liabilities. The utilities made the decision to implement this standard 
effective January 1, 2012. 
 
Preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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 ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION  
 
  Deposits and Investments 
 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents have original maturities of three 
months or less from the date of acquisition. 
 
Investment of utilities' funds are restricted by state statutes.  Investments are limited to: 
 
 1. Time deposits in any credit union, bank, savings bank or trust company maturing in three years or 


less. 


 2. Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, technical college district, village, town, or 
school district of the state. Also, bonds issued by a local exposition district, local professional 
baseball park district, local professional football stadium district, local cultural arts district or by the 
University of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics Authority. 


 3. Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government. 


 4. The local government investment pool. 


 5. Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second highest rating 
category of a nationally recognized rating agency. 


 6. Securities of an open end management investment company or investment trust, subject to various 
conditions and investment options. 


 7. Repurchase agreements with public depositories, with certain conditions. 
 
The utilities have adopted an investment policy. That policy follows the state statute for allowable 
investments. 
 
Investments are stated at fair value, which is the amount at which an investment could be exchanged in a 
current transaction between willing parties. Fair values are based on quoted market prices.  No 
investments are reported at amortized cost. Adjustments necessary to record investments at fair value 
are recorded in the operating statement as increases or decreases in investment income.  Market values 
may have changed significantly after year end. 
 
  Receivables/Payables 
 
Transactions between the utilities and other funds of the municipality that are representative of 
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at year end are referred to as advances to/from other funds. 
All other outstanding balances between the utilities and other funds of the municipality are reported as 
due to/from other funds. 
 
The utilities have the right under Wisconsin statutes to place delinquent electric, water and wastewater 
bills on the tax roll for collection for properties within the municipality. As such, no allowance for 
uncollectible customer accounts is considered necessary. 
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  Materials and Supplies  
 
Materials and supplies are generally used for construction, operation and maintenance work, not for 
resale. They are valued at the lower of cost or market utilizing the average cost method and charged to 
construction or expense when used. 
  
  Restricted Assets 
 
Mandatory segregations of assets are presented as restricted assets.  Such segregations are required by 
bond agreements and other external parties.  Current liabilities payable from these restricted assets are 
so classified.   
   
  Investment in American Transmission Company (ATC) 
 
The electric utility is a member of ATC.  ATC was formed by approximately 25 utilities to plan, construct, 
maintain, monitor and own electric transmission facilities in Wisconsin.  The utility owns less than 1/2 of 1 
percent of ATC. 
 
The investment earns dividends quarterly, some of which are paid in cash and some of which are 
required to be reinvested.  From time to time, the utility has the option to contribute additional funds to 
maintain their proportionate share of ownership.  The asset is valued at original cost plus additional 
contributions and reinvested dividends.   
 
  Sick Leave Reserve Account 
 
Upon retirement, these funds are used for insurance coverage for utility employees. 
 
   Plant and Maintenance Reserve Account 
 
These accounts are utilized to segregate funds for the future repairs and replacements of electric and 
water utility capital assets as designated by the committee.  
     
  Non-Utility Property 
 
Electric utility non-utility property consists of the city dam with a balance of $84,212 and leasehold rental 
property with a balance of $91,458 at December 31, 2012 and 2011.  Water utility non-utility property 
consists of a park shelter with a balance of $107,000 at December 31, 2012 and 2011.  The costs are 
being amortized on a straight-line basis over their useful life. 
 
       Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are generally defined by the utilities as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than 
$1,500 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. 
 
Capital assets of the utilities are recorded at cost or the fair market value at the time of contribution to the 
utilities. Major outlays for utilities plant are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during 
the construction phase is reflected in the capitalized value of the capital assets constructed, net of interest 
earned on the invested proceeds over the same period. Capital assets in service are depreciated using 
the straight-line method over the following useful lives: 
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  Years  
Electric Plant    


Transmission  33  
Distribution  25 - 54  
General  5 - 30  
    


Water Plant    
Source of supply  34  
Pumping  23 - 31  
Water treatment  30 - 31  
Transmission and distribution  18 - 77  
General  4 - 34  
    


Wastewater Plant    
Collecting system  100  
Collecting system pumping  25 - 50  
Treatment and disposal  15 - 40  
General  5 - 20  


 
  Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave 
 
Under terms of employment, employees are granted sick leave and vacations in varying amounts. Only 
benefits considered to be vested are disclosed in these statements.  Vested vacation and sick leave pay 
is accrued when earned in the financial statements.  The liability is liquidated from general operating 
revenues of the utilities.   
 
  Customer Advances for Construction 
 
The balance represents fees collected for future capital improvements.  The fees may be refundable 
based on rules filed with the PSCW or statutory requirements.   
 
     Commitment to Community 
 
The electric utility charges fees to all customers as required by the 1999 Energy Reliability Act and 2005 
Act 141. Revenues generated from the fees are used to fund energy conservation and low-income energy 
assistance ("Commitment to Community") programs. The utility is acting as an agent administering the 
low income program fees so revenues and expenses associated with the low income program are 
recorded as a current liability on the statement of net position. 
 
  Customer Deposits  
 
This account represents amounts deposited with the utilities by customers as security for payment of bills. 
 
  Accrued liabilities 
 
The balance represents collections of various payroll and sales taxes due to the state and federal 
government.
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  Long-Term Obligations 
 
Long-term debt and other obligations are reported as utilities liabilities. Bond premiums and discounts, as 
well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest 
method.  Gains or losses on prior refundings are amortized over the remaining life of the old debt or the 
life of the new debt, whichever is shorter.   
  
 REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
 
The utilities distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection 
with the utilities' principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the utilities are charges 
to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales 
and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses 
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
  Charges for Services 
 
Billings are rendered and recorded monthly based on metered usage. The utilities do accrue revenues 
beyond billing dates.  
  
Current electric rates were approved by the PSCW on January 3, 2011.  The rates are designed to 
provide a 6.5% return on rate base 
  
Current water rates were approved by the PSCW effective September 1, 2010.  The rates are designed to 
earn a 6.5% return on rate base 
  
Current wastewater rates were approved by the utilities committee effective July 5, 2007.   
  
    Capital Contributions 
 
Cash and capital assets are contributed to the utilities from customers, the municipality or external 
parties.  The value of property contributed to the utilities are reported as revenue on the statements of 
revenues, expenses and changes in net position.   
 
  Transfers 
 
Transfers include the payment in lieu of taxes to the municipality and other operating transfers. 
 
 EFFECT OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ON CURRENT PERIOD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has approved GASB Statement No. 65, Items 
Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities; Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections - 2012 an 
amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and No. 62; Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension 
Plans - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25; and Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial 
reporting for Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. Application of these standards may 
restate portions of these financial statements.   
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 COMPARATIVE DATA 
 
Certain amounts presented in the prior year data may have been reclassified in order to be consistent 
with the current year’s presentation.   
 


NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 


 Carrying Value as of 
December 31,  


 


  2012  2011  Risks 


Checking and Savings $ 5,099,721 $ 3,305,285 Custodial credit risk 
LGIP  981,261  1,662,455 Credit and interest rate risks 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit  1,493,474  1,754,441 Custodial credit, credit, 


concentration and interest 
rate risks 


U.S. Agency Securities  2,874,519  3,115,073 Custodial credit, credit, 
concentration and interest 
rate risks 


Corporate Bonds  507,280  1,025,090 Custodial credit, credit, 
concentration and interest 
rate risks 


Petty Cash  750  750  


 Totals $ 10,957,005 $ 10,863,094  
 


Deposits in each local and area bank are insured by the FDIC in the amount of $250,000 for time and 
savings accounts (including NOW accounts), $250,000 for interest-bearing demand deposit accounts, 
and unlimited amounts for noninterest bearing transaction accounts through December 31, 2012. On 
January 1, 2013 the temporary unlimited coverage for noninterest bearing transaction accounts expired. 
Therefore, demand deposit accounts (interest bearing and noninterest bearing) are insured for a total of 
$250,000 beginning January 1, 2013. In addition, if deposits are held in an institution outside of the state 
in which the government is located, insured amounts are further limited to a total of $250,000 for the 
combined amount of all deposit accounts. 
 
Bank accounts are also insured by the State Deposit Guarantee Fund (SDGF) in the amount of $400,000.  
 
The utilities may also maintain separate cash and investment accounts at the same financial institutions 
utilized by the municipality.  Federal depository insurance and the SDGF apply to all municipal accounts, 
and accordingly, the amount of insured funds is not determinable for the utilities alone.  Therefore, 
coverage for the utilities may be reduced.  Investment income on commingled investments of the entire 
municipality is allocated based on average investment balances.  
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$500,000 of the utilities' investments have coverage from the Securities Investor Protection Corporation 
(SIPC).    
 
In addition, the utilities, with the city, have collateral or depository insurance agreements in the amount of 
$3,690,884 at December 31, 2012 and $3,920,512 at December 31, 2011. 
 
The Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is part of the State Investment Fund (SIF), and 
is managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF is not registered with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission, but operates under the statutory authority of Wisconsin Chapter 25. The SIF 
reports the fair value of its underlying assets annually. Participants in the LGIP have the right to withdraw 
their funds in total on one day's notice. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the fair value of the LGIP's 
assets were substantially equal to the utilities' share. 


Custodial Credit Risk 


Deposits 


Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial institution failure, the utilities' deposits may 
not be returned to the utilities. 


The utilities maintain certain deposits at the same institutions as the municipality.  The custodial credit risk 
pertaining specifically to the utilities' resources at these institutions cannot be determined individually for 
those accounts.  The following is a summary of the utilities' total deposit balances at these institutions. 


 


 
The utilities' investment policy does not address this risk. 
 
Investments 
 
For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the 
utilities will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party. 
 


Bank Carrying Bank Carrying
Balance Value Balance Value


Wells Fargo 3,915,203$  3,876,061$  3,347,697 $  3,304,357$   
Wells Fargo Brokerage 928   928  928   928   
Associated Bank 1,222,732   1,222,732  -   -   


Deposits Exposed to Custodial
  Credit Risk 5,138,863$  5,099,721$  3,348,625 $  3,305,285$   


2012 2011
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As of December 31, 2012 and 2011 the utilities' investments were exposed to custodial credit risk as 
follows: 


U.S. Agencies - Implicitly Guaranteed  2012   2011  


Neither insured nor registered and held by counterparty $ 2,874,519  $ 3,115,073  


Corporate Bonds    


Neither insured nor registered and held by counterparty $ 507,280  $ 1,025,090  


Negotiable Certificates of Deposit    


Neither insured nor registered and held by counterparty $ 10,232  $ 3,760  
 All remaining certificates are covered by FDIC. 
 
The utilities' investment policy does not address this risk. 
 


Credit Risk 
 


Credit risk is the risk an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. 
 
As of December 31, 2012, the utilities' investments were rated as follows: 
 


Investment Type 
Standard & 


Poors 


Moody's 
Investors 
Services 


U.S. Agencies - Implicitly Guaranteed AAA Aa 
Corporate Bonds AA+ A1 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit not rated  


 
As of December 31, 2011, the utilities' investments were rated as follows: 
 


Investment Type 
Standard & 


Poors 


Moody's 
Investors 
Services 


U.S. Agencies - Implicitly Guaranteed AAA Aa 
Corporate Bonds AA+ Aa2 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit not rated  
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The utilities held investments in the Local Government Investment Pool which is an external pool that is 
not rated. 


 
The utilities' investment policy follows state statutes.  
 


Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in 
a single issuer. 
 
At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the utilities' investment portfolio was concentrated as follows: 
 
   Percentage of Portfolio  


Issuer Investment Type  2012 _  2011 _ 
Ginnie Mae U.S. Agencies - Implicitly Guaranteed 21.06% 20.84% 
GE Capital Corporate bond   4.63%   9.44% 
    


 
The utilities' investment policy does not address this risk. 


 
Interest Rate Risk 


 
Interest rate risk is the risk changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. 
 
As of December 31, 2012, the utilities' investments were as follows: 
 


 Maturity (In Years) 


Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1 - 3 3 or more 


U.S. Agencies - Implicitly Guaranteed $ 2,874,519 $ 176,657 $ 215,299 $ 2,482,563 
Corporate Bonds  507,280  507,280  -   - 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit  1,493,474  248,124  735,118   510,232 


Totals $ 4,875,273 $ 932,061 $ 950,417  $ 2,992,795 
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Investment Type Fair Value 
Weighted Average 


Maturity (Years) 


External investment pools $ 981,261  .20 
 
As of December 31, 2011, the utilities' investments were as follows: 
 


 Maturity (In Years) 


Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1 - 3 3 or more 


U.S. Agencies - Implicitly Guaranteed $ 3,115,073 $ - $ -  $ 3,115,073 
Corporate Bonds  1,025,090  501,650  523,440   - 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit  1,754,441  1,004,977  253,760   495,704 


Totals $ 5,894,604 $ 1,506,627 $ 777,200  $ 3,610,777 
 


Investment Type Fair Value 


Weighted 
Average 
Maturity 
(Years) 


External investment pools $ 1,662,455 .27 
 
The utilities' investment policy does not address this risk. 
 


NOTE 3 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS 
 
The following is a schedule of interfund balances for the years ending December 31, 2012 and 2011: 
 
  2012  2011 
 Due To   Due From   Amount  Principal Purpose  Amount   Principal Purpose 
      
Municipality Water  utility $ 342,159 Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
$ 301,135  Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
Electric utility Municipality  24,918 Operating  25,630  Operating 
Water utility Municipality  6,341 Operating  -   
Sewer utility Municipality  5,971 Operating  -   
Municipality Electric utility  363,359 Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
 322,881  Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
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The following is a schedule of transfers for the years ending December 31, 2012 and 2011: 
 
  2012  2011 
 To   From   Amount  Principal Purpose  Amount   Principal Purpose 
      
Municipality Electric utility $ 25,600 Operating  $ 20,788  Operating  
Municipality Electric utility  363,359 Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
 322,881  Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
Municipality Water utility  6,935 Operating  10,600  Operating 
Municipality Water utility  342,159 Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
 301,135  Payment in lieu of 


taxes 


NOTE 4 – ADVANCE RECEIVABLE 
 
In December 2011, the Electric Utility provided an advance to the General Fund in the amount of 
$554,744 for the purpose of full payment of the Wisconsin Retirement System Unfunded Actuarial 
Accrued Liability.  The General Fund will repay the Electric Utility over a period of fourteen years at 3.0% 
annual interest.  The amount outstanding at December 31, 2012 is $513,175. 
Repayment requirements to maturity follow: 
 


Year Ending    
December 31  Principal  Interest  Total 


    
2013 $ 31,250 $ 15,395 $ 46,645 
2014  33,119  14,458  47,577 
2015  35,065  13,464  48,529 
2016  37,088  12,412  49,500 
2017  39,190  11,300  50,490 
2018 - 2022  230,493  37,512  268,005 
2023 - 2025  106,970  4,987  111,957 


    
Totals $ 513,175 $ 109,528 $ 622,703 


 


NOTE 5 - RESTRICTED ASSETS 
 
 Restricted Accounts 
 
Certain proceeds of the utilities' debt, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are 
classified as restricted assets on the statement of net position because their use is limited. The following 
accounts are reported as restricted assets: 
 
 Redemption - Used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments  
   over the next twelve months.  
 Reserve - Used to report resources set aside to make up potential future  
   deficiencies in the redemption account. 
 Depreciation - Used to report resources set aside to fund plant renewals and  
   replacement or make up potential future deficiencies in the  
   redemption account. 
 Construction - Used to report debt proceeds restricted for use in construction. 
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 Replacement Account 
 
As a condition of receiving state and federal funds for wastewater plant construction, the utilities have 
established an account for replacement of certain mechanical equipment.  
 
 Restricted Net Position 
 
The following calculation supports the amount of electric restricted net position: 
 


  2012  2011 
Restricted Assets   


Redemption account $ 377,610 $ 358,057 
Reserve account  704,728  704,728 
Depreciation account  25,000  25,000 


Total Restricted Assets  1,107,338  1,087,785 
   


Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets  (67,761)  (71,368) 
   


Total Restricted Net Position as Calculated $ 1,039,577 $ 1,016,417 
 
The following calculation supports the amount of water restricted net position: 
 


  2012  2011 
Restricted Assets   


Redemption account $ 147,233 $ 145,061 
Reserve account  274,005  274,005 
Depreciation account  25,000  25,000 


Total Restricted Assets  446,238  444,066 
   


Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets  (15,170)  (16,479) 
   


Total Restricted Net Position as Calculated $ 431,068 $ 427,587 
 
The following calculation supports the amount of wastewater restricted net position: 
 


  2012  2011 
Restricted Assets   


Redemption account $ 456,417 $ 438,483 
Depreciation account  33,283  33,283 
Replacement account  1,028,014  1,027,040 
Construction account  123  123 


Total Restricted Assets  1,517,837  1,498,929 


Less:  Restricted Assets Not Funded by Revenues   
Construction account  (123)  (123) 


Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets  (16,419)  (19,633) 


Total Restricted Net Position as Calculated $ 1,501,295 $ 1,479,173 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2012 and 2011 


 


Page 47 


NOTE 6 - CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
 Electric Utility 
 
A summary of changes in electric capital assets for 2012 follows: 
 
  Balance       Balance 
  01/01/12  Increases  Decreases   12/31/12 
Capital assets, not being depreciated     


Land and land rights(1) $ 573,461 $ - $ -  $ 573,461 
     
Capital assets being depreciated      


Transmission  15,019  -  -   15,019 
Distribution  20,767,065  736,803  121,251   21,382,617 
General  3,960,324  54,494  -   4,014,818 


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


 
 24,742,408 


 
 791,297 


 
 121,251  


 
 25,412,454 


     
Total Capital Assets  25,315,869  791,297  121,251   25,985,915 


     
Less:  Accumulated depreciation      


Transmission  (19,366)  -  -   (19,366) 
Distribution  (7,988,476)  (766,568)  137,672   (8,617,372) 
General  (2,030,203)  (187,160)  -   (2,217,363) 


Total Accumulated 
Depreciation 


 
 (10,038,045) 


 
 (953,728) 


 
 137,672  


 
 (10,854,101) 


     
Construction in progress  32,435  790,125  793,465   29,095 
     


Net Capital Assets $ 15,310,259   $ 15,160,909 
 
 


(1) Includes property held for future use. 
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A summary of changes in electric capital assets for 2011 follows: 
 
  Balance       Balance 
  01/01/11  Increases  Decreases   12/31/11 
Capital assets, not being depreciated     


Land and land rights (1) $ 573,461 $ - $ -  $ 573,461 
     
Capital assets being depreciated      


Transmission  15,019  -  -   15,019 
Distribution  20,038,521  865,364  136,820   20,767,065 
General  3,905,820  80,373  25,869   3,960,324 


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


 
 23,959,360 


 
 945,737 


 
 162,689  


 
 24,742,408 


     
Total Capital Assets  24,532,821  945,737  162,689   25,315,869 


     
Less:  Accumulated depreciation      


Transmission  (19,366)  -  -   (19,366) 
Distribution  (7,395,206)  (747,186)  153,916   (7,988,476) 
General  (1,841,212)  (214,860)  25,869   (2,030,203) 


Total Accumulated 
Depreciation 


 
 (9,255,784) 


 
 (962,046) 


 
 179,785  


 
 (10,038,045) 


     
Construction in progress  26,682  957,329  951,576   32,435 
     


Net Capital Assets $ 15,303,719   $ 15,310,259 
 


 


(1) Includes property held for future use. 
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 Water Utility 
 
A summary of changes in water capital assets for 2012 follows: 
 
  Balance       Balance 
  01/01/12  Increases  Decreases   12/31/12 
Capital assets, not being depreciated     


Land and land rights $ 24,841 $ - $ -  $ 24,841 
     
Capital assets being depreciated      


Source of supply  570,123  -  -   570,123 
Pumping  1,407,275  21,683  -   1,428,958 
Water treatment  90,763  -  -   90,763 
Transmission and distribution  13,891,213  502,758  6,777   14,387,194 
General  914,078  271,384  -   1,185,462 


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


 
 16,873,452 


 
 795,825 


 
 6,777  


 
 17,662,500 


     
Total Capital Assets  16,898,293  795,825  6,777   17,687,341 


     
Less:  Accumulated depreciation      


Source of supply  (285,930)  (16,534)  -   (302,464) 
Pumping  (988,708)  (55,351)  -   (1,044,059) 
Water treatment  (85,576)  (1,316)  -   (86,892) 
Transmission and distribution  (2,939,773)  (261,187)  2,566   (3,198,394) 
General  (485,098)  (57,500)  -   (542,598) 


Total Accumulated 
Depreciation 


 
 (4,785,085) 


 
 (391,888) 


 
 2,566  


 
 (5,174,407) 


     
Construction in progress  228,507  582,673  786,947   24,233 
     


Net Capital Assets $ 12,341,715   $ 12,537,167 
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A summary of changes in water capital assets for 2011 follows: 
 
     
  Balance       Balance 
  01/01/11  Increases  Decreases   12/31/11 
Capital assets, not being depreciated     


Land and land rights $ 24,841 $ - $ -  $ 24,841 
     
Capital assets being depreciated      


Source of supply  563,994  6,729  600   570,123 
Pumping  1,526,064  -  118,789   1,407,275 
Water treatment  90,763  -  -   90,763 
Transmission and distribution  13,413,504  484,810  7,101   13,891,213 
General  913,082  33,932  32,936   914,078 


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


 
 16,507,407 


 
 525,471 


 
 159,426  


 
 16,873,452 


     
Total Capital Assets  16,532,248  525,471  159,426   16,898,293 


     
Less:  Accumulated depreciation      


Source of supply  (270,085)  (16,445)  600   (285,930) 
Pumping  (978,830)  (55,004)  45,126   (988,708) 
Water treatment  (82,595)  (2,981)  -   (85,576) 
Transmission and distribution  (2,693,862)  (253,012)  7,101   (2,939,773) 
General  (475,802)  (42,232)  32,936   (485,098) 


Total Accumulated 
Depreciation 


 
 (4,501,174) 


 
 (369,674) 


 
 85,763  


 
 (4,785,085) 


     
Construction in progress  45,331  641,306  458,130   228,507 
     


Net Capital Assets $ 12,076,405   $ 12,341,715 
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 Wastewater Utility 
 
A summary of changes in wastewater capital assets for 2012 follows: 
 
  Balance       Balance 
  01/01/12  Increases  Decreases   12/31/12 
     
Capital assets being depreciated      


Collecting system $ 8,277,782 $ 520,682 $ 9,318  $ 8,789,146 
Collecting system pumping  397,412  -  -   397,412 
Treatment and disposal  12,786,069  132,658  4,000   12,914,727
General  841,480  309,142  -   1,150,622 


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


 
 22,302,743 


 
 962,482 


 
 13,318  


 
 23,251,907 


     
Less:  Accumulated depreciation  (7,816,519)  (642,985)  13,318   (8,446,186) 
     
Construction in progress  361,261  864,542  1,010,046   215,757 
     


Net Capital Assets $ 14,847,485   $ 15,021,478 
 
A summary of changes in wastewater capital assets for 2011 follows: 
 
  Balance       Balance 
  01/01/11  Increases  Decreases   12/31/11 
     
Capital assets being depreciated      


Collecting system $ 7,822,109 $ 457,490 $ 1,817  $ 8,277,782 
Collecting system pumping  397,412  -  -   397,412 
Treatment and disposal  12,757,388  58,271  29,590   12,786,069 
General  846,036  24,668  29,224   841,480 


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


 
 21,822,945 


 
 540,429 


 
 60,631  


 
 22,302,743 


     
Less:  Accumulated depreciation  (7,246,797)  (630,353)  60,631   (7,816,519) 
     
Construction in progress  63,761  850,982  553,482   361,261 
     


Net Capital Assets $ 14,639,909   $ 14,847,485 
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 
 
 Revenue Bonds - Electric 
 
The following bonds have been issued: 
 
      Outstanding  
      Final  Interest  Original   Amount  
 Date   Purpose  Maturity  Rate  Amount   12/31/12  
       
 April 1, 2003  Electric system 


improvements 
 April 1, 2023  2.25 - 5.10 % $ 4,580,000  $ 3,580,000  


       
November 
15, 2006  


Electric system 
improvements 


 April 1, 2023  4.00 - 4.50   2,550,000   2,325,000  


 
Revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity follows: 
 


 Year Ending    
December 31  Principal  Interest  Total 
    


2013 $ 400,000 $ 263,368 $ 663,368 
2014  450,000  246,968  696,968 
2015  450,000  227,868  677,868 
2016  475,000  206,124  681,124 
2017  500,000  182,605  682,605 
2018 - 2022  2,955,000  513,118  3,468,118 
2023  675,000  15,375  690,375 


    
Totals $ 5,905,000 $ 1,655,426 $ 7,560,426 


 
All electric utilities' revenues net of specified operating expenses are pledged as security of the above 
revenue bonds until the bonds are defeased.  Principal and interest paid for 2012 and 2011 were 
$653,243 and $641,993, respectively.  Total gross revenues as defined for the same periods were 
$15,485,952 and $15,173,023, respectively.  Annual principal and interest payments are expected to 
require 4.2% of gross revenues. 
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 Revenue Bonds - Water 
 
The following bonds have been issued: 
 
      Outstanding  
      Final  Interest  Original   Amount  
 Date   Purpose  Maturity  Rate  Amount   12/31/12  
       
March 25, 
2003  


Additions and 
improvements 


 May 1, 2013  3.50 - 4.80 % $ 520,000  $ 85,000  


November 
15, 2006  


Additions and 
improvements 


 May 1, 2023  4.00 - 4.50   1,925,000   1,650,000  


January 27, 
2010  


Additions and 
improvements 


 May 1, 2029  2.668%   575,018   527,123 


 
Revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity follows: 
 


 Year Ending    
December 31  Principal  Interest  Total 
    


2013 $ 184,910 $ 87,146 $ 272,056 
2014  150,575  80,277  230,852 
2015  151,257  74,273  225,530 
2016  176,958  67,719  244,677 
2017  177,677  60,428  238,105 
2018-2022  974,862  184,195  1,159,057 
2023-2027  370,949  26,139  397,088 
2028-2029  74,935  2,012  76,947 


    
Totals $ 2,262,123 $ 582,189 $ 2,844,312 


 
All water utilities' revenues net of specified operating expenses are pledged as security of the above 
revenue bonds until the bonds are defeased.  Principal and interest paid for 2012 and 2011 were 
$274,005 and $270,426, respectively.  Total gross revenues as defined for the same periods were 
$1,767,596 and $1,746,122, respectively.  Annual principal and interest payments are expected to require 
15.5% of gross revenues. 
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 Revenue Bonds - Wastewater 
 
The following bonds have been issued: 
 
      Outstanding  
      Final  Interest  Original   Amount  
 Date   Purpose  Maturity  Rate  Amount   12/31/12  
       
March 9, 
1994  


WWTP improvements  May 1, 2013  3.224 % $ 5,472,357  $ 399,962  


December 
22, 1999  


Wastewater interceptor  May 1, 2019  3.049   623,465   264,823  


July 12, 
2000  


WWTP improvements  May 1, 2020  3.049   1,116,259   530,113  


September 
10, 2003  


WWTP improvements  May 1, 2023  2.766   1,670,624   1,036,622  


June 27, 
2007  


WWTP improvements  May 1, 2027  2.475   1,539,762   1,321,672  


 
Revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity follows: 
 


 Year Ending    
December 31  Principal  Interest  Total 
    


2013 $ 649,737 $ 88,589 $ 738,326 
2014  256,735  75,084  331,819 
2015  263,891  67,829  331,720 
2016  271,247  60,369  331,616 
2017  278,809  52,700  331,509 
2018-2022  1,229,789  151,309  1,381,098 
2023-2027  602,984  32,739  635,723 


    
Totals $ 3,553,192 $ 528,619 $ 4,081,811 


 
All sewer utilities' revenues net of specified operating expenses are pledged as security of the above 
revenue bonds until the bonds are defeased.  Principal and interest paid for 2012 and 2011 were 
$738,623 and $738,910, respectively.  Total gross revenues as defined for the same periods were 
$2,072,369 and $2,089,402, respectively.  Annual principal and interest payments are expected to require 
35.6% of gross revenues. 
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 Long-Term Obligations Summary - Electric 
 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2012 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/12      12/31/12   Due Within 
  Balance  Additions  Reductions  Balance   One Year 
       
Revenue bonds $ 6,280,000 $ - $ 375,000 $ 5,905,000  $ 400,000 
Accrued sick leave  170,916  34,552  33,649  171,819   - 
Customer advances 


for construction 
 
 9,440 


 
 62,884 


 
 64,242 


 
 8,082  


 
 - 


      
Totals $ 6,460,356 $ 97,436 $ 472,891 $ 6,084,901  $ 400,000 


 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2011 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/11      12/31/11   Due Within  
  Balance  Additions  Reductions  Balance   One Year  
        
Revenue bonds $ 6,630,000 $ - $ 350,000 $ 6,280,000  $ 375,000  
Accrued sick leave  163,637  34,757  27,478  170,916   -  
Customer advances 


for construction 
 
 2,427 


 
 32,138 


 
 25,125 


 
 9,440  


 
 - 


 


       
Totals $ 6,796,064 $ 66,895 $ 402,603 $ 6,460,356  $ 375,000  


 
 Long-Term Obligations Summary - Water 
 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2012 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/12      12/31/12   Due Within 
  Balance  Additions  Reductions  Balance   One Year 
       
Revenue bonds $ 2,441,386 $ - $ 179,263 $ 2,262,123  $ 184,910 
Accrued sick leave  88,632  9,819  6,005  92,446   - 


      
Totals $ 2,530,018 $ 9,819 $ 185,268 $ 2,354,569  $ 184,910 


 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2011 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/11      12/31/11   Due Within  
  Balance  Additions  Reductions  Balance   One Year  
        
Revenue bonds $ 2,610,018 $ - $ 168,632 $ 2,441,386  $ 179,263  
Accrued sick leave  85,691  9,472  6,531  88,632   -  


       
Totals $ 2,695,709 $ 9,472 $ 175,163 $ 2,530,018  $ 179,263  
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 Long-Term Obligations Summary - Wastewater 
 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2012 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/12      12/31/12   Due Within 
  Balance  Additions  Reductions  Balance   One Year 
       
Revenue bonds $ 4,183,666 $ - $ 630,474 $ 3,553,192  $ 649,737 
Accrued sick leave  97,782  6,905  12,970  91,717   - 


      
Totals $ 4,281,448 $ 6,905 $ 643,444 $ 3,644,909  $ 649,737 


 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2011 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/11      12/31/11   Due Within  
  Balance  Additions  Reductions  Balance   One Year  
        
Revenue bonds $ 4,795,454 $ - $ 611,788 $ 4,183,666  $ 630,475  
Accrued sick leave  93,331  12,932  8,481  97,782   -  


       
Totals $ 4,888,785 $ 12,932 $ 620,269 $ 4,281,448  $ 630,475  


 
 Bond Covenant Disclosures 
 
The following information is provided in compliance with the resolutions creating the utilities' revenue 
bonds: 
 
 Insurance 
 
The utilities are exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, or destruction of 
assets, errors and omissions, workers compensation, and health care of its employees. These risks are 
covered through the purchase of commercial insurance, with minimal deductibles. Settled claims have not 
exceeded coverage in any of the last three years. There were no significant reductions in coverage 
compared to the prior year. 
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The utilities are covered under the following insurance policies at December 31, 2012: 
 


 Type  Coverage   Expiration 
    
Automobile $ 10,000,000 CVMIC     Self-Insured 1/1/13 
Excess Liability  5,000,000 CVMIC     Self-Insured 1/1/13 
Workers Compensation  5,000,000 CVMIC     Self-Insured 1/1/13 
  1,000,000 CVMIC     Self-Insured 1/1/13 
Boiler Insurance  100,000,000 CVMIC     Self-Insured 1/1/13 
Property  47,230,211 Wisconsin Local 2/1/13 
  Property Insurance  
  Fund  


 
 Debt Coverage - Electric  
 
Under terms of the resolutions providing for the issue of revenue bonds, revenues less operating 
expenses excluding depreciation (defined net earnings) must exceed 1.3 times the highest annual debt 
service of the bonds.  The coverage only includes revenue debt and does not include general obligation 
or other debt.  The coverage requirement was met in 2012 and 2011 as follows: 
 


  2012  2011   
     
Operating revenues $ 15,385,267 $ 15,055,468   
Investment income  100,685  117,555   
Less:  Operation and maintenance expenses  (13,336,299)  (13,136,259)   
     


Net Defined Earnings $ 2,149,653 $ 2,036,764   
     
Minimum Required Earnings per Resolution:     


Highest annual debt service  $ 704,728 $ 704,728   
Coverage factor  1.30  1.30   


     
Minimum Required Earnings $ 916,146 $ 916,146   


Actual Debt Coverage  3.05  2.89   
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 Debt Coverage - Water 
 
Under terms of the resolutions providing for the issue of revenue bonds, revenues less operating 
expenses excluding depreciation (defined net earnings) must exceed 1.3 times the highest annual debt 
service of the bonds.  The coverage only includes revenue debt and does not include general obligation 
or other debt.  The coverage requirement was met in 2012 and 2011 as follows: 
 


  2012  2011  
    
Operating revenues $ 1,756,878 $ 1,734,825  
Investment income  10,718  11,297  
Less:  Operation and maintenance expenses  (745,471)  (788,488)  
    


Net Defined Earnings $ 1,022,125 $ 957,634  
    
Minimum Required Earnings per Resolution:    


Highest annual debt service  $ 272,056 $ 274,005  
Coverage factor  1.30  1.30  


    
Minimum Required Earnings $ 353,673 $ 356,207  


Actual Debt Coverage  3.76  3.49  
 
  Debt Coverage - Wastewater 
 
Under terms of the resolutions providing for the issue of revenue bonds, revenues less operating 
expenses excluding depreciation (defined net earnings) must exceed 1.1 times the highest annual debt 
service of the bonds.  The coverage only includes revenue debt and does not include general obligation 
or other debt.  The coverage requirement was in 2012 and 2011 as follows: 
 


  2012  2011  
    
Operating revenues $ 2,062,606 $ 2,073,764  
Investment income  9,763  15,638  
Less:  Operation and maintenance expenses  (877,033)  (905,616)  
    


Net Defined Earnings $ 1,195,336 $ 1,183,786  
    
Minimum Required Earnings per Resolution:    


Highest annual debt service  $ 738,326 $ 738,622  
Coverage factor  1.10  1.10  


    
Minimum Required Earnings $ 812,158 $ 812,484  


Actual Debt Coverage  1.62  1.60  
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 Number of Customers - Electric 
 
The utility has the following number of customers and billed volumes for 2012 and 2011: 
 


  Customers  Sales (000 kWh) 
  2012  2011  2012   2011 
     
Residential  7,583  7,596  64,853   65,811 
General  840  785  18,624   17,478 
Small power  47  47  14,359   14,460 
Large power  8  8  11,153   9,959 
Industrial  6  6  30,081   31,251 
Street and highway lighting  6  6  913   1,004 
     


Totals  8,490  8,448  139,983   139,963 
 
 Number of Customers - Water 
 
The utility has the following number of customers and billed volumes for 2012 and 2011: 
 


  Customers  Sales (000 gals) 
  2012  2011  2012   2011 
     
Residential  4,401  4,401  228,325   216,334 
Commercial  426  416  81,977   80,246 
Industrial  23  21  179,812   186,533 
Public authority  47  47  6,839   6,228 
Interdepartmental  3  3  1,022   534 
     


Totals  4,900  4,888  497,975   489,875 
 
 Number of Customers - Wastewater 
 
The utility has the following number of customers and billed volumes for 2012 and 2011: 
 


  Customers  Sales (000 gals) 
  2012  2011  2012   2011 
     
Residential  4,345  4,360  225,577   216,279 
Commercial  389  384  80,010   81,661 
Industrial  21  16  21,831   23,667 
Public authority  33  33  4,258   3,981 
Interdepartmental  2  2  45   67 
     


Totals  4,790  4,795  331,721   325,655 
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 Utilities Budget    
 
The 2012 and 2011 utilities' budgets were prepared and approved as required by the bond resolutions.   
   


NOTE 8 - NET POSITION 
 
GASB No. 34 requires the classification of net position into three components - investment in capital 
assets, restricted; and unrestricted.  These classifications are defined as follows: 
 
Investment in capital assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets, including 
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the 
portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds are not included in the calculation of invested in 
capital assets, net of related debt. Rather, that portion of the debt is included in the same net position 
component as the unspent proceeds. 
 
Restricted - This component of net position consists of constraints placed on net position use through 
external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or 
laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions 
or enabling legislation. 
 
Unrestricted net position - The component of net position consist of net position that do not meet the 
definition of "restricted" or "invested in capital assets, net of related debt." 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the utilities' policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
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The following calculation supports the electric investment in capital assets: 
 
  2012   2011  
    
Plant in service $ 25,633,251  $ 24,963,205  
Accumulated depreciation  (10,854,101)   (10,038,045)  
Construction work in progress  29,095   32,435  


Sub-Totals  14,808,245   14,957,595  
    
Less:  Capital related debt    


Current portion of capital related long-term debt  400,000   375,000  
Long-term portion of capital related long-term debt  5,505,000   5,905,000  
Unamortized debt issuance costs  -   -  


Sub-Totals  5,905,000   6,280,000  
 
Total Investment in Capital Assets 


 
$ 8,903,245  


 
$ 8,677,595 


 


 
The following calculation supports the water investment in capital assets: 
 
  2012   2011  
    
Plant in service $ 17,687,341  $ 16,898,293  
Accumulated depreciation  (5,174,407)   (4,785,085)  
Construction work in progress  24,233   228,507  


Sub-Totals  12,537,167   12,341,715  
    
Less:  Capital related debt    


Current portion of capital related long-term debt  184,910   179,263  
Long-term portion of capital related long-term debt  2,077,213   2,262,123  
Unamortized debt issuance costs  -   -  


Sub-Totals  2,262,123   2,441,386  
 
Total Investment in Capital Assets 


 
$ 10,275,044  


 
$ 9,900,329 


 


 
The following calculation supports the wastewater investment in capital assets: 
 
  2012   2011  
    
Plant in service $ 23,251,907  $ 22,302,743  
Accumulated depreciation  (8,446,186)   (7,816,519)  
Construction work in progress  215,757   361,261  


Sub-Totals  15,021,478   14,847,485  
    
Less:  Capital related debt    


Current portion of capital related long-term debt  649,737   630,475  
Long-term portion of capital related long-term debt  2,903,455   3,553,191  


Sub-Totals  3,553,192   4,183,666  
    
Add:  Unspent debt proceeds    


Construction funds  123   123  
 
Total Investment in Capital Assetst 


 
$ 11,468,409  


 
$ 10,663,942 
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NOTE 9 - EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
 
All eligible employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS), a cost-sharing, multiple-
employer, defined benefit, public employee retirement system. All employees, initially employed by a 
participating WRS employer prior to July 1, 2011, expected to work at least 600 hours a year and 
expected to be employed for at least one year from employee's date of hire are eligible to participate in 
the WRS. All employees, initially employed by a participating WRS employer on or after July 1, 2011, and 
expected to work at least 1,200 hours a year and expected to be employed for at least one year from 
employee's date of hire are eligible to participate in the WRS. 
 
Prior to June 29, 2011, covered employees in the General category were required by statute to contribute 
6.5% of their salary to the plan. Employers could make these contributions to the plan on behalf of 
employees. Employers were required to contribute an actuarially determined amount necessary to fund 
the remaining projected cost of future benefits. 
 
Effective the first day of the first pay period on or after June 29, 2011 the employee required contribution 
was changed to one-half of the actuarially determined contribution rate for General category employees. 
Employers are required to contribute the remainder of the actuarially determined contribution rate. The 
employer may not pay the employee required contribution unless provided for by an existing collective 
bargaining agreement.  Contribution rates for 2012 and 2011 are: 
 
     Employees Employer 
 
   2012       5.9%     5.9% 
   2011       6.4%     6.4% 
  
 
Electric 


  Year Ended December 31 
  2012  2011  2010 
    
Total Covered Employee Payroll $ 917,915 $ 985,805 $ 846,254 
Total Required Contributions $ 108,314 $ 126,183 $ 103,243 
Total Required Contributions  11.8%   12.8%   12.2%  


 
Water 


  Year Ended December 31 
  2012  2011  2010 
    
Total Covered Employee Payroll $ 256,822 $ 240,336 $ 252,779 
Total Required Contributions $ 30,305 $ 30,763 $ 30,839 
Total Required Contributions  11.8%   12.8%   12.2%  


 
Wastewater 


  Year Ended December 31 
  2012  2011  2010 
    
Total Covered Employee Payroll $ 324,062 $ 299,570 $ 323,422 
Total Required Contributions $ 38,239 $ 38,345 $ 39,458 
Total Required Contributions  11.8%   12.8%   12.2%  


 
Details of the plan are disclosed in the basic financial statements of the City of Stoughton. 
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NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
 Long-Term Contracts - WPPI Energy 
 
The electric utility is one of 51 WPPI Energy member municipalities located throughout the States of 
Wisconsin, Iowa and Michigan. On December 1, 1989, each initial WPPI Energy member commenced 
purchasing electric service from WPPI Energy under a long-term Power Supply Contract for Participating 
Members (long-term contract). Under the long-term contract, WPPI Energy is obligated to provide and 
sell, and each member is obligated to take and pay for, the electric power and energy required for the 
operation of each member's electric utility.  
 
The long-term contract requires all WPPI Energy members to pay for power and energy requirements 
supplied or made available by WPPI Energy at rates sufficient to cover WPPI Energy's revenue 
requirement including power supply costs, administrative expenses and debt service. WPPI Energy's 
subsequent year's operating budget and rates are approved annually by its Board of Directors, consisting 
of representatives from each member. The members have agreed to charge rates to retail customers 
sufficient to meet their WPPI Energy obligations. The long-term contract provides that all payments to 
WPPI Energy constitute operating expenses of the utility payable from any operating and maintenance 
fund established for that system. 
 
In 2002, all WPPI Energy members ratified a thirteen year extension to their original thirty-five year 
contracts. The new contract expires at midnight on December 31, 2037. 
 
WPPI Energy's outstanding debt service obligation to be paid by its members through their wholesale 
power charges through the remainder of the long-term contract is $390 million as of December 31, 2012. 
 


NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (cont.) 
 
 Claims and Judgments 
 
From time to time, the utilities are party to various pending claims and legal proceedings. Although the 
outcome of such matters cannot be forecasted with certainty, it is the opinion of management and the 
utilities' legal counsel that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or proceedings will have a 
material adverse effect on the utilities' financial position or results of operations. 
 


NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
 Wisconsin Municipal Insurance Commission (WMIC) 
  Cities and Villages Mutual Insurance Company (CVMIC) 
                        
The WMIC is an intergovernmental cooperation commission created by contract under Section 66.30 of 
the Wisconsin Statutes. It was created in August, 1987 for the purpose of facilitating the organization, 
establishment and capitalization of the CVMIC, and has numerous municipalities as members. 
 
The CVMIC is a municipal mutual insurance company established on September 19, 1987 under Section 
611.23 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The CVMIC provides liability insurance coverage to the municipalities 
which make up the membership of the WMIC. 
 
The CVMIC is self-insured up to a maximum of $2,000,000 of each insurance risk. Losses paid by CVMIC 
plus administrative expenses will be recovered through premiums to the participating pool of 
municipalities. The municipality's share of such losses is less than 1%. 
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NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.) 
 
Management of each organization consists of a board of directors or officers comprised of 
representatives elected by each of three classes of participants based on population. The municipality 
does not exercise any control over the activities of the agencies beyond the election of the officers and 
board. 
 
Financial statements of WMIC and CVMIC are available directly from:  Cities and Village Mutual 
Insurance Company, 1250 South Sunnyslope Road, Suite 105, Brookfield, WI  53005.   
 
The municipality shows the general obligation bond that it owes to WMIC in the insurance internal service 
fund (governmental activities column of government-wide statement of net position). The transactions of 
the organization are not included in these financial statements. 
 


NOTE 12 - SELF INSURANCE  
 
The utilities are part of the municipality's self-funded health insurance program with claims processed by 
an administrative firm on behalf of the municipality. A separate fund has been established into which 
deposits are made and actual claims are paid out. As part of the plan, a reinsurance policy has been 
purchased which covers claims in excess of $45,000 per individual up to a maximum of $1,000,000. 
Deposits to the self-insured fund in excess of the claims and other costs paid are retained by the 
municipality. The utilities' total contributions to the program during the years 2012 and 2011 were 
$327,527 and $318,389, respectively. Details of the plan can be found in the basic financial statements of 
the City of Stoughton. 
 


NOTE 13 – SUSBSENQUENT EVENTS  
 
The utilities evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were available to 
be issued, for events requiring recording or disclosure in the financial statements. 
 
On February 21, 2013 the municipality, on behalf of the utilities, issued $3,170,000 of electric revenue 
debt to refund the 2003 electric revenue bonds. The debt is payable through 2023 and bears a net 
interest rate of 2.0%-2.25%. 
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ELECTRIC UTILITY 







Balance Balance
1/1/2012 Additions Retirements 12/31/2012


TRANSMISSION
Land and land rights 1$                 -$                -$                1$                 
Poles and fixtures 5,035            -                  -                  5,035            
Overhead conductors and devices 9,984            -                  -                  9,984            


Total Transmission 15,020          -                  -                  15,020          


DISTRIBUTION
Land and land rights 220,796        -                  -                  220,796        
Structures and improvements 44,389          -                  -                  44,389          
Station equipment 4,250,509     19,428        -                  4,269,937     
Poles, towers and fixtures 2,858,221     120,006      26,422        2,951,805     
Overhead conductors and devices 5,203,585     269,687      20,439        5,452,833     
Underground conduit 341,483        67,739        275             408,947        
Underground conductors and devices 2,511,392     154,139      20,935        2,644,596     
Line transformers 2,802,140     51,055        19,967        2,833,228     
Services 1,615,093     28,521        7,662          1,635,952     
Meters 630,055        2,203          -                  632,258        
Street lighting and signal systems 510,198        24,025        25,551        508,672        


Total Distribution 20,987,861   736,803      121,251      21,603,413   


GENERAL
Structures and improvements 1,635,949     -                  -                  1,635,949     
Office furniture and equipment 188,915        3,427          -                  192,342        
Computer equipment 178,348        -                  -                  178,348        
Transportation equipment 288,978        -                  -                  288,978        
Stores equipment 9,984            -                  -                  9,984            
Tools, shop and garage equipment 64,576          17,215        -                  81,791          
Laboratory equipment 50,236          -                  -                  50,236          
Power-operated equipment 1,200,625     -                  -                  1,200,625     
Communication equipment 58,270          33,852        -                  92,122          
SCADA equipment 279,453        -                  -                  279,453        
Miscellaneous equipment 4,990            -                  -                  4,990            


Total General 3,960,324     54,494        -                  4,014,818     


TOTAL ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT 24,963,205$ 791,297$   121,251$    25,633,251$


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT
December 31, 2012
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OPERATING REVENUES 2012 2011
Sales of Electricity


Residential 5,198,813$        5,187,083$       
Rural 2,920,985          2,876,794         
General service 1,682,787          1,542,501         
Large commercial and industrial 1,281,437          1,270,052         
Large power 1,049,188          956,963            
Industrial 2,761,836          2,781,578         
Public street and highway lighting 132,550             140,379            
Interdepartmental 208,217             163,262            


Total Sales of Electricity 15,235,813        14,918,612       
Other Operating Revenues


Forfeited discounts 47,637               45,508              
Other 101,817             91,348              


Total Operating Revenues 15,385,267        15,055,468       


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and Maintenance


Other Power Supply
Purchased power 11,889,641        11,563,743       


Transmission  
Operating supervision and engineering 6,919                 5,502                
Station 35,150               38,993              
Overhead lines 77,054               72,853              
Underground lines 36,577               31,438              


Total Transmission 155,700             148,786            
Distribution


Street lighting and signal system 6,585                 5,194                
Meter 41,578               34,567              
Customer installations 27                      375                   
Miscellaneous 4,560                 4,577                
Maintenance


Station equipment 33,627               20,050              
Overhead lines 213,053             191,236            
Underground lines 10,258               17,598              
Line transformers 842                    3,491                
Street lighting and signal system 537                    971                   
Meters -                         547                   
Miscellaneous 1,999                 -                        


Total Distribution 313,066             278,606            
Customer Accounts


Meter reading 8,106                 7,076                
Accounting and collecting labor 212,603             213,762            
Miscellaneous 234                    16,402              


Total Water Treatment 220,943             237,240            


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


ELECTRIC UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
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STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


ELECTRIC UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011


OPERATING EXPENSES (cont'd)
Operation and Maintenance (cont'd)


Administrative and General
Salaries 214,060$           216,789$          
Office supplies 32,621               48,675              
Outside services employed 19,920               19,526              
Property insurance 19,590               18,637              
Injuries and damages 24,421               24,736              
Employee pensions and benefits 221,491             333,997            
Regulatory commission -                         46                     
Miscellaneous 13,490               16,462              
Rents 11,013               10,673              
Maintenance 33,025               45,703              


Total Administrative and General 589,631             735,244            
Taxes 167,318             172,640            


Total Operation and Maintenance 13,336,299        13,136,259       
Depreciation 910,353             912,530            


Total Operating Expenses 14,246,652        14,048,789       


OPERATING INCOME 1,138,615$        1,006,679$      
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2012 2011


Utility Plant in Service - Utility Financed
Beginning of year 22,421,815$      21,630,993$         
End of year 22,981,902        22,421,815           


Average 22,701,859        22,026,404           


Accumulated Depreciation - Utility Financed
Beginning of year (9,353,662)         (8,653,406)           
End of year (10,083,729)       (9,353,662)           


Average (9,718,695)         (9,003,534)           


Materials and Supplies
Beginning of year 135,057             124,597               
End of year 139,181             135,057               


Average 137,119             129,827               


Regulatory Liability
Beginning of year (265,924)            (288,084)              
End of year (243,764)            (265,924)              


Average (254,844)            (277,004)              


Customer Advances for Construction
Beginning of year (9,440)                (2,427)                  
End of year (8,082)                (9,440)                  


Average (8,761)                (5,934)                  


AVERAGE NET RATE BASE 12,856,678$     12,869,759$        


OPERATING INCOME - REGULATORY BASIS 884,783$          791,512$            


RATE OF RETURN (PERCENT) 6.88                 6.15                    


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


RATE OF RETURN - REGULATORY BASIS
December 31, 2012 and 2011


This schedule is  computed  based  on Public  Service  Commission of Wisconsin regulatory accounting
which differs from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America due to 


PSC order 05-US-105, which was effective January 1, 2003 as amended September 8, 2004.
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WATER UTILITY 







Balance Balance
1/1/2012 Additions Retirements 12/31/2012


SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Land and land rights 11,635$             -$                -$                11,635$        
Wells and springs 570,123             -                  -                  570,123        


Total Source of Supply 581,758             -                  -                  581,758        


PUMPING
Structures and improvements 576,342             21,683        -                  598,025        
Other power production equipment 246,036             -                  -                  246,036        
Electric pumping equipment 584,896             -                  -                  584,896        
Other pumping equipment -                     -                  -                  -                


Total Pumping 1,407,274          21,683        -                  1,428,957     


WATER TREATMENT
Structures and improvements 13,671               -                  -                  13,671          
Water treatment equipment 77,092               -                  -                  77,092          


Total Water Treatment 90,763               -                  -                  90,763          


TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION
Land and land rights 13,206               -                  -                  13,206          
Structures and improvements 1,611                 -                  -                  1,611            
Distribution reservoirs and standpipes 1,919,253          36,597        -                  1,955,850     
Transmission and distribution mains 8,411,993          374,129      1,425          8,784,697     
Services 1,897,226          43,610        1,141          1,939,695     
Meters 584,598             5,249          -                  589,847        
Hydrants 1,075,560          43,173        4,211          1,114,522     
Other transmission and distribution plant 973                    -                  -                  973               


Total Transmission and Distribution 13,904,420        502,758      6,777          14,400,401   


GENERAL
Land and land rights 405,290             -                  -                  405,290        
Office furniture and equipment 55,277               1,246          -                  56,523          
Computer equipment 59,925               -                  -                  59,925          
Transportation equipment 28,026               -                  -                  28,026          
Stores equipment 2,187                 -                  -                  2,187            
Tools, shop and garage equipment 35,109               -                  -                  35,109          
Power-operated equipment 102,034             -                  -                  102,034        
Communication equipment 35,668               2,190          -                  37,858          
SCADA equipment 190,473             267,948      -                  458,421        
Miscellaneous equipment 89                      -                  -                  89                 


Total General 914,078             271,384      -                  1,185,462     


TOTAL WATER UTILITY PLANT 16,898,293$     795,825$   6,777$        17,687,341$


STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


WATER UTILITY PLANT
December 31, 2012
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2012 2011
OPERATING REVENUES


Sales of Water
Metered


Residential 816,587$           792,642$          
Commercial 193,863             192,504            
Industrial 255,137             263,376            
Public authorities 19,222               17,828              
Interdepartmental 2,485                 1,467                


Total Metered Sales 1,287,294          1,267,817         
Private fire protection 25,422               25,417              
Public fire protection 420,871             417,354            


Total Sales of Water 1,733,587          1,710,588         
Other Operating Revenues


Forfeited discounts 5,341                 5,701                
Other 17,950               18,536              


Total Operating Revenues 1,756,878          1,734,825         


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and Maintenance


Source of Supply
Operation labor -                         44                     


Total Source of Supply -                         44                     
Pumping


Fuel or purchased power for pumping 121,645             120,322            
Pumping labor 2,878                 2,258                
Miscellaneous 249                    68                     
Maintenance


Structures and improvements 3,185                 2,572                
Pumping equipment 9,552                 8,275                


Total Pumping 137,509             133,495            
Water Treatment


Chemicals 18,349               16,541              
Operation labor 12,663               19,435              
Miscellaneous -                         99                     
Maintenance


Structures and improvements 1,700                 1,625                
Water treatment equipment 3,640                 2,204                


Total Water Treatment 36,352               39,904              


STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


WATER UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
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STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


WATER UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011


OPERATING EXPENSES (cont'd)
Operation and Maintenance (cont'd)


Transmission and Distribution
Transmission and distribution lines 17,387$             17,997$            
Meters 11,503               3,749                
Miscellaneous 7,385                 12,384              
Maintenance


Reservoirs and standpipes 87,838               62,047              
Mains 36,055               73,543              
Services 26,422               14,158              
Hydrants 7,479                 5,022                
Miscellaneous 2,097                 4,997                


Total Transmission and Distribution 196,166             193,897            
Customer Accounts


Meter reading 2,442                 3,252                
Accounting and collecting labor 76,337               75,070              


Total Customer Accounts 78,779               78,322              
Administrative and General


Salaries 154,387             156,014            
Office supplies 10,745               15,835              
Outside services employed 4,783                 8,590                
Property insurance 7,123                 6,781                
Injuries and damages 8,930                 9,732                
Employee pensions and benefits 89,521               121,798            
Regulatory commission -                         125                   
Rents 4,005                 3,881                
Maintenance 3,238                 4,168                


Total Administrative and General 282,732             326,924            
Taxes 13,933               15,902              


Total Operation and Maintenance 745,471             788,488            
Depreciation 364,679             342,667            


Total Operating Expenses 1,110,150          1,131,155         


OPERATING INCOME 646,728$          603,670$         
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2012 2011


Utility Plant in Service - Utility Financed
Beginning of year 10,791,839$      10,512,396$     
End of year 11,571,887        10,791,839       


Average 11,181,863        10,652,118       


Accumulated Depreciation - Utility Financed
Beginning of year (3,319,808)         (3,188,937)        
End of year (3,605,921)         (3,319,808)        


Average (3,462,865)         (3,254,373)        


Materials and Supplies
Beginning of year 23,257               27,101              
End of year 35,244               23,257              


Average 29,251               25,179              


Regulatory Liability
Beginning of year (410,740)            (444,968)           
End of year (376,512)            (410,740)           


Average (393,626)            (427,854)           


AVERAGE NET RATE BASE 7,354,623$       6,995,069$      


OPERATING INCOME - REGULATORY BASIS 407,777$          404,895$         


RATE OF RETURN (PERCENT) 5.54                  5.79                 


STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


RATE OF RETURN - REGULATORY BASIS
December 31, 2012 and 2011


This schedule is  computed  based  on Public  Service  Commission of Wisconsin regulatory accounting
which differs from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America due to 


PSC order 05-US-105, which was effective January 1, 2003 as amended September 8, 2004.
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WASTEWATER UTILITY 







Balance Balance
1/1/2012 Additions Retirements 12/31/2012


COLLECTING SYSTEM
Land and land rights 100$             -$             -$                100$             
Collecting mains 6,425,521     458,044   7,554          6,876,011     
Interceptor mains 1,803,210     62,638     1,764          1,864,084     
Force mains 48,951          -               -                  48,951          


Total Collecting System 8,277,782     520,682   9,318          8,789,146     


COLLECTING SYSTEM PUMPING
Structures and improvements 67,382          -               -                  67,382          
Electric pumping equipment 308,631        -               -                  308,631        
Other pumping equipment 21,399          -               -                  21,399          


Total Collecting System Pumping 397,412        -               -                  397,412        


TREATMENT AND DISPOSAL
Structures and improvements 3,249,743     119,481   -                  3,369,224     
Preliminary treatment equipment 1,259,171     -               -                  1,259,171     
Primary treatment equipment 1,147,165     -               -                  1,147,165     
Secondary treatment equipment 529,291        -               -                  529,291        
Advanced treatment equipment 1,930,493     -               -                  1,930,493     
Chlorination equipment 366,162        -               -                  366,162        
Sludge treatment and disposal equipment 3,558,790     8,949       4,000          3,563,739     
Plant site pumping 685,498        -               -                  685,498        
Flow metering and monitoring equipment 25,166          -               -                  25,166          
Other treatment and disposal equipment 34,590          4,228       -                  38,818          


Total Treatment and Disposal 12,786,069   132,658   4,000          12,914,727   


GENERAL
Structures and improvements 232,233        -               -                  232,233        
Office furniture and equipment 55,215          1,558       -                  56,773          
Computer equipment 110,021        -               -                  110,021        
Transportation equipment 396,996        12,466     -                  409,462        
Communication equipment 17,407          292,213   -                  309,620        
Other general equipment 29,608          2,905       -                  32,513          


Total General 841,480        309,142   -                  1,150,622     


TOTAL WASTEWATER UTILITY PLANT 22,302,743$ 962,482$ 13,318$      23,251,907$


STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


WASTEWATER UTILITY PLANT
December 31, 2012
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2012 2011
OPERATING REVENUES


Wastewater Revenues
Residential 1,449,168$        1,403,877$       
Commercial 441,335             455,766            
Industrial 112,101             120,473            
Public authorities 25,855               24,129              
Interdepartmental 445                    480                   


Total Wastewater Revenues 2,028,904          2,004,725         
Other Operating Revenues


Forfeited discounts 5,345                 6,380                
Miscellaneous 28,357               62,659              


Total Operating Revenues 2,062,606          2,073,764         


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and Maintenance


Operation
Supervision and labor 1,431                 169                   
Power and fuel for pumping 96,572               98,861              
Sludge conditioning chemicals 14,188               9,839                
Other operating supplies -                         13,299              


Total Operation 112,191             122,168            
Maintenance


Collection system 52,593               77,700              
Treatment and disposal plant equipment 149,860             107,513            
General plant structures and equipment 71,430               57,975              


Total Maintenance 273,883             243,188            
Customer Accounts


Accounting and collecting 133,485             131,264            
Administrative and General


Salaries 87,050               82,934              
Office supplies 13,066               20,596              
Outside services employed 48,957               19,153              
Insurance 18,394               18,925              
Employee pensions and benefits 88,391               164,652            
Miscellaneous 20,846               20,885              
Rents 57,660               57,644              


Total Administrative and General 334,364             384,789            
Taxes 23,110               24,207              


Total Operation and Maintenance 877,033             905,616            
Depreciation 630,188             630,352            


Total Operating Expenses 1,507,221          1,535,968         


OPERATING INCOME 555,385$           537,796$         


STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


WASTEWATER UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
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600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


Date:  April 9, 2013 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Kim M. Jennings, CPA - Stoughton Utilities Finance & Administrative Manager 


 


  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. - Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Proposed Electric and Water Tax Stabilization Dividends. 


 


In September of 2003, the Stoughton Utilities Committee declared our first Stoughton Utilities Electric 


and Water Tax Stabilization Dividends to the Finance Committee and Common Council, under the 


following criteria: 


 The Tax Stabilization Dividend will be based on 5% of the Stoughton Utilities Electric 


and Water previous year’s net income adjusted for the prior-year dividend and 


contributed capital reported as non-operating income/expense from the audited 


financial statements as presented by Stoughton Utilities’ independent auditing firm. 


 The dividend is estimated at the time the annual budget is approved by the Utilities 


Committee and recommended to the Common Council; and presented to the Utilities 


Committee and Common Council at the time of audit. 


 The dividend can be suspended by the Utilities Committee and Common Council if the 


budget shows a requirement for the cash flow for debt liquidation and/or capital 


outlays, or an acceleration of electric and water rate increases occurs.  


 


Our 2012 audit reports will show that utility earnings and cash flow are sufficient in order to make the 


full tax stabilization dividend as outlined above.    Stoughton Utilities remains the highest taxpayer in 


the City with electric and water Payments In Lieu Of Taxes (PILOT) equaling $705,518.  If approved 


by the Stoughton Utilities Committee, tax stabilization dividends of $40,868 will be paid to the City of 


Stoughton in addition to the PILOT. This will lessen property tax burdens and strengthen our 


community. The following chart shows a total payment to the City of Stoughton of $746,386 in 2012. 


Electric Water Total Total


2012 2012 2012 2011


Tax Stabilization Dividend (Recommended) 29,989$     10,879$       40,868$      32,535$       


Payment in Lieu of Taxes (Required) 363,359$   342,159$     705,518$    624,016$     


Total Payment to City 393,348$   353,038$     746,386$    656,551$      








 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


Date:  April 9, 2013 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


  Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Declarations Of Official Intent Nos. 2013-3 Through 2013-6. 


 


In order to preserve the ability to borrow funds for these projects at a later date, it is requested that the 


Stoughton Utilities Committee approve: 


 


Declaration No. 2013-3 Stoughton Utilities 2013 Fourth Street and Milwaukee Street Sanitary 


Sewer Main Replacement Project for $$70,385. 


 


Declaration No. 2013-4 Stoughton Utilities 2013 Fourth Street and Milwaukee Street Water 


Main Replacement Project for $180,075. 


 


Declaration No. 2013-5 Stoughton Utilities 2013 Hillside Avenue and Ridge Street Sanitary 


Sewer Main Replacement Project for $115,870. 


 


Declaration No. 2013-6 Stoughton Utilities 2013 Hillside Avenue and Ridge Street Water Main 


Replacement and Reinforcement Project for $133,675. 


 


Encl. 


 


cc: Sean O Grady 


 Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 


 


 Brian G. Erickson 


 Stoughton Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor 


 


 Kim M. Jennings, CPA 


 Stoughton Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager 


 
  







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


 


NO.  2013-3 


 


DECLARATION OF OFFICIAL INTENT 


 


 


 This is a Declaration of Official Intent of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin 


(the “Issuer”) to reimburse an expenditure with proceeds of a borrowing or borrowings 


authorized by the Issuer.  This Declaration is made under and pursuant to Income Tax Regulation 


Section 1.103-18.  The undersigned has been designated as the entity authorized by the Issuer to 


make this Declaration of Official Intent Pursuant to a Resolution adopted on April 13, 1993.   


 


This Declaration of Official Intent is a public record maintained in the files of the Issuer 


and is available for public inspection pursuant to Subchapter II of Chapter 19 of the Wisconsin 


Statutes. 


 


 The undersigned hereby declares that it is the reasonable expectation of the Issuer to use 


proceeds of a borrowing or borrowings to be incurred by the Issuer to reimburse expenditures for 


the property, project or program or from the fund(s) / account(s) described below: 


 


 


1. Project* description: Stoughton Utilities 2013 Fourth Street and Milwaukee Street 


Sanitary Sewer Main Replacement Project. 
 


(Provide a general functional description of the property, project or program for which the expenditure to be 


reimbursed is paid, e.g. “____building program”, “highway capital improvement program”, “hospital 


equipment acquisition”, “combined utility improvement program”, etc.) 


 


 


    or 


 


 


2. Identify fund(s) /account(s):   


DNR Replacement Fund, Designated Operating Cash Fund 


 
 


 







 (Provide a general functional description of the purpose of the fund or account from which the expenditure to 


be reimbursed is paid, e.g. “Construction fund program” and “parks and recreation fund” and “highway 


fund”.) 


 


 The maximum principal amount of the borrowing or borrowings to be incurred to 


reimburse expenditures for the above-described purposes is reasonably expected, on the  date 


hereof, to be $70,385. 


 


The Issuer intends to reimburse itself from borrowed funds within (1) one year after the 


expenditure is made or (2) one year after the facility is placed in service, whichever is later. 


 


 *Each of the expenditures described must be a cost of the type that is properly chargeable 


to capital account (or would be so chargeable with a proper election) under general federal 


income tax principles.  Capital expenditures include costs incurred to acquire, construct or 


improve land, buildings and equipment and exclude current operation expenses. 


 


 No money from sources other than the anticipated borrowing or borrowings is, or is 


reasonably expected to be, reserved, allocated on a long-term basis, or otherwise set aside by the 


Issuer with respect to the expenditure, pursuant to the budgetary and financial circumstances of 


the Issuer as of the date of this Declaration. 


 


 


 Dated this 15th Day of April 2013. 


 


 


     CITY OF STOUGHTON 


     UTILITIES COMMITTEE 


 


 


 


    By:___________________________________________ 


 


    Title: STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE CHAIR 


 


 


 







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


 


NO.  2013-4 


 


DECLARATION OF OFFICIAL INTENT 


 


 


 This is a Declaration of Official Intent of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin 


(the “Issuer”) to reimburse an expenditure with proceeds of a borrowing or borrowings 


authorized by the Issuer.  This Declaration is made under and pursuant to Income Tax Regulation 


Section 1.103-18.  The undersigned has been designated as the entity authorized by the Issuer to 


make this Declaration of Official Intent Pursuant to a Resolution adopted on April 13, 1993.   


 


This Declaration of Official Intent is a public record maintained in the files of the Issuer 


and is available for public inspection pursuant to Subchapter II of Chapter 19 of the Wisconsin 


Statutes. 


 


 The undersigned hereby declares that it is the reasonable expectation of the Issuer to use 


proceeds of a borrowing or borrowings to be incurred by the Issuer to reimburse expenditures for 


the property, project or program or from the fund(s) / account(s) described below: 


 


 


1. Project* description: Stoughton Utilities 2013 Fourth Street and Milwaukee Street 


Water Main Replacement Project. 
 


(Provide a general functional description of the property, project or program for which the expenditure to be 


reimbursed is paid, e.g. “____building program”, “highway capital improvement program”, “hospital 


equipment acquisition”, “combined utility improvement program”, etc.) 


 


 


    or 


 


 


2. Identify fund(s) /account(s):   


DNR Replacement Fund, Designated Operating Cash Fund 


 
 


 







 (Provide a general functional description of the purpose of the fund or account from which the expenditure to 


be reimbursed is paid, e.g. “Construction fund program” and “parks and recreation fund” and “highway 


fund”.) 


 


 The maximum principal amount of the borrowing or borrowings to be incurred to 


reimburse expenditures for the above-described purposes is reasonably expected, on the  date 


hereof, to be $180,075. 


 


The Issuer intends to reimburse itself from borrowed funds within (1) one year after the 


expenditure is made or (2) one year after the facility is placed in service, whichever is later. 


 


 *Each of the expenditures described must be a cost of the type that is properly chargeable 


to capital account (or would be so chargeable with a proper election) under general federal 


income tax principles.  Capital expenditures include costs incurred to acquire, construct or 


improve land, buildings and equipment and exclude current operation expenses. 


 


 No money from sources other than the anticipated borrowing or borrowings is, or is 


reasonably expected to be, reserved, allocated on a long-term basis, or otherwise set aside by the 


Issuer with respect to the expenditure, pursuant to the budgetary and financial circumstances of 


the Issuer as of the date of this Declaration. 


 


 


 Dated this 15th Day of April 2013. 


 


 


     CITY OF STOUGHTON 


     UTILITIES COMMITTEE 


 


 


 


    By:___________________________________________ 


 


    Title: STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE CHAIR 


 


 


 







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


 


NO.  2013-5 


 


DECLARATION OF OFFICIAL INTENT 


 


 


 This is a Declaration of Official Intent of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin 


(the “Issuer”) to reimburse an expenditure with proceeds of a borrowing or borrowings 


authorized by the Issuer.  This Declaration is made under and pursuant to Income Tax Regulation 


Section 1.103-18.  The undersigned has been designated as the entity authorized by the Issuer to 


make this Declaration of Official Intent Pursuant to a Resolution adopted on April 13, 1993.   


 


This Declaration of Official Intent is a public record maintained in the files of the Issuer 


and is available for public inspection pursuant to Subchapter II of Chapter 19 of the Wisconsin 


Statutes. 


 


 The undersigned hereby declares that it is the reasonable expectation of the Issuer to use 


proceeds of a borrowing or borrowings to be incurred by the Issuer to reimburse expenditures for 


the property, project or program or from the fund(s) / account(s) described below: 


 


 


1. Project* description: Stoughton Utilities 2013 Hillside Avenue and Ridge Street 


Sanitary Sewer Main Replacement Project. 
 


(Provide a general functional description of the property, project or program for which the expenditure to be 


reimbursed is paid, e.g. “____building program”, “highway capital improvement program”, “hospital 


equipment acquisition”, “combined utility improvement program”, etc.) 


 


 


    or 


 


 


2. Identify fund(s) /account(s):   


DNR Replacement Fund, Designated Operating Cash Fund 


 
 


 







 (Provide a general functional description of the purpose of the fund or account from which the expenditure to 


be reimbursed is paid, e.g. “Construction fund program” and “parks and recreation fund” and “highway 


fund”.) 


 


 The maximum principal amount of the borrowing or borrowings to be incurred to 


reimburse expenditures for the above-described purposes is reasonably expected, on the  date 


hereof, to be $115,870. 


 


The Issuer intends to reimburse itself from borrowed funds within (1) one year after the 


expenditure is made or (2) one year after the facility is placed in service, whichever is later. 


 


 *Each of the expenditures described must be a cost of the type that is properly chargeable 


to capital account (or would be so chargeable with a proper election) under general federal 


income tax principles.  Capital expenditures include costs incurred to acquire, construct or 


improve land, buildings and equipment and exclude current operation expenses. 


 


 No money from sources other than the anticipated borrowing or borrowings is, or is 


reasonably expected to be, reserved, allocated on a long-term basis, or otherwise set aside by the 


Issuer with respect to the expenditure, pursuant to the budgetary and financial circumstances of 


the Issuer as of the date of this Declaration. 


 


 


 Dated this 15th Day of April 2013. 


 


 


     CITY OF STOUGHTON 


     UTILITIES COMMITTEE 


 


 


 


    By:___________________________________________ 


 


    Title: STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE CHAIR 


 


 


 







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


 


NO.  2013-6 


 


DECLARATION OF OFFICIAL INTENT 


 


 


 This is a Declaration of Official Intent of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin 


(the “Issuer”) to reimburse an expenditure with proceeds of a borrowing or borrowings 


authorized by the Issuer.  This Declaration is made under and pursuant to Income Tax Regulation 


Section 1.103-18.  The undersigned has been designated as the entity authorized by the Issuer to 


make this Declaration of Official Intent Pursuant to a Resolution adopted on April 13, 1993.   


 


This Declaration of Official Intent is a public record maintained in the files of the Issuer 


and is available for public inspection pursuant to Subchapter II of Chapter 19 of the Wisconsin 


Statutes. 


 


 The undersigned hereby declares that it is the reasonable expectation of the Issuer to use 


proceeds of a borrowing or borrowings to be incurred by the Issuer to reimburse expenditures for 


the property, project or program or from the fund(s) / account(s) described below: 


 


 


1. Project* description: Stoughton Utilities 2013 Hillside Avenue and Ridge Street 


Water Main Replacement and Reinforcement Project. 
 


(Provide a general functional description of the property, project or program for which the expenditure to be 


reimbursed is paid, e.g. “____building program”, “highway capital improvement program”, “hospital 


equipment acquisition”, “combined utility improvement program”, etc.) 


 


 


    or 


 


 


2. Identify fund(s) /account(s):   


DNR Replacement Fund, Designated Operating Cash Fund 


 
 


 







 (Provide a general functional description of the purpose of the fund or account from which the expenditure to 


be reimbursed is paid, e.g. “Construction fund program” and “parks and recreation fund” and “highway 


fund”.) 


 


 The maximum principal amount of the borrowing or borrowings to be incurred to 


reimburse expenditures for the above-described purposes is reasonably expected, on the  date 


hereof, to be $133,675. 


 


The Issuer intends to reimburse itself from borrowed funds within (1) one year after the 


expenditure is made or (2) one year after the facility is placed in service, whichever is later. 


 


 *Each of the expenditures described must be a cost of the type that is properly chargeable 


to capital account (or would be so chargeable with a proper election) under general federal 


income tax principles.  Capital expenditures include costs incurred to acquire, construct or 


improve land, buildings and equipment and exclude current operation expenses. 


 


 No money from sources other than the anticipated borrowing or borrowings is, or is 


reasonably expected to be, reserved, allocated on a long-term basis, or otherwise set aside by the 


Issuer with respect to the expenditure, pursuant to the budgetary and financial circumstances of 


the Issuer as of the date of this Declaration. 


 


 


 Dated this 15th Day of April 2013. 


 


 


     CITY OF STOUGHTON 


     UTILITIES COMMITTEE 


 


 


 


    By:___________________________________________ 


 


    Title: STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE CHAIR 


 


 


 








 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  April 9, 2013 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


  Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Committee Future Agenda Item(s). 


 


This item appears on all agendas of Committees of the City of Stoughton.   


 


cc: Sean O Grady 


Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 


 


 








AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


10:45AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


1 of 4


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 4/2/2013


Tuesday, April 02, 2013


Description


7430Company:


Us Cellular - March AchHC000686 004 Us Cellular - Ach3/31/2013  61.18


Alliant Energy - March Ach/Alliant Energy - March 


Ach/Alliant Energy - March Ach/Alliant Energy - 


March Ach/Alliant Energy - March Ach/Alliant 


Energy - March Ach/Alliant Energy - March Ach


HC000687 003 Alliant Energy - Ach3/31/2013  3,492.35


Federal Taxes-Mar Ach/Federal Taxes-Mar 


Ach/Federal Taxes-Mar Ach/Federal Taxes-Mar Ach


HC000688 025 Payroll Federal Taxes- Ach3/31/2013  46,092.82


Dept of Rev-Mar Ach/Dept of Rev-Mar AchHC000689 010 WI Dept. of Revenue Taxpayment-Ach3/31/2013  17,214.58


EBC-Mar Ach/EBC-Mar Ach/EBC-Mar Ach/EBC-Mar 


Ach


HC000690 002 Employee Benefits Corp - Ach3/31/2013  678.04


State Taxes-Mar AchHC000691 008 Payroll  State Taxes - Ach3/31/2013  9,609.40


Delta Dental - Mar Ach/Delta Dental - Mar Ach/Delta 


Dental - Mar Ach


HC000692 001 Delta Dental - Ach3/31/2013  759.72


Assoc Bank-Mar Ach/Assoc Bank-Mar Ach/Assoc 


Bank-Mar Ach


HC000693 015 Associated Bank-Ach3/31/2013  3,790,521.25


Client Analysis-Mar Ach/Client Analysis-Mar 


Ach/Client Analysis-Mar Ach/Client Analysis-Mar 


Ach


HC000694 020 Wells Fargo Client Ana-Ach3/31/2013  3,987.31


McFarland St Bk-Mar AchHC000695 357 McFarland State Bank-Ach3/31/2013  250,000.00


WPPI-Renewable energy/WPPI-Buy Back Solar 


Credit/WPPI-Shared Savings/WPPI-Large Power


HC000696 009 WPPI3/31/2013  911,329.67


New Era-Ap vouchers/New Era-Ap vouchers/New 


Era-Ap vouchers


CK022256 138 NEW ERA GRAPHICS, INC.3/6/2013  173.24


Ellsworth-Splash guard weldCK022257 147 ELLSWORTH WELDING3/6/2013  440.00


Inkworks-Payroll-Deposit slips/Inkworks-Office 


supply/Inkworks-Office 


supply/Inkworks-Payroll-Deposit 


slips/Inkworks-Payroll-Deposit slips/Inkworks-Office 


supply/Inkworks-Office supply


CK022258 166 INKWORKS, INC.3/6/2013  1,173.00


El Test Lab-Glove TestsCK022259 324 ELECTRICAL TESTING LAB., LLC.3/6/2013  180.15







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:
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10:45AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


2 of 4


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 4/2/2013


Tuesday, April 02, 2013


Description


Utility-qtr 1 maint.CK022260 362 UTILITY SERVICE CO., INC3/6/2013  15,162.63


Resco-75 & 50 kvasCK022261 400 RESCO3/6/2013  6,023.00


Strand-2013 Improvements/Strand-Hvac 


Project/Strand-Plant Elec Project/Strand-Uniroyal 


discharge/Strand-Nelson Cooling 


Tower/Strand-2013 Improvements


CK022262 448 STRAND ASSOCIATES INC.3/6/2013  28,450.50


Auxiant-Medical Admin/Auxiant-Medical 


Admin/Auxiant-Medical Admin


CK022263 590 AUXIANT3/6/2013  7,084.29


Springsted-Rev Refund bondCK022264 753 SPRINGSTED INCORPORATED3/6/2013  16,327.41


Dunkirk-Feb DunkirkCK022265 781 DUNKIRK WATER POWER CO LLC3/6/2013  2,205.38


J Campbell-Public BenefitsCK022266 103 JOLENE CAMPBELL & JACK SOCEKA3/13/2013  120.00


City Stoton-Mar Life Ins/City Stoton-Mar Life 


Ins/City Stoton-Mar Life Ins/City Stoton-Auxiant 


Claims/City Stoton-Auxiant Claims/City 


Stoton-Auxiant Claims/City Stoton-Auxiant 


Claims/City Stoton-Auxiant Claims/City 


Stoton-Auxiant Claims/More...


CK022267 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON3/13/2013  19,013.23


WI SCTF-March SupportCK022268 133 WISCONSIN SCTF3/13/2013  138.46


Inkworks-Cross ConnectionCK022269 166 INKWORKS, INC.3/13/2013  1,234.70


Elec Test-Sleeve/Blanket testsCK022270 324 ELECTRICAL TESTING LAB., LLC.3/13/2013  169.97


Rosenbaum-Dump FeeCK022271 405 ROSENBAUM CRUSHING & EXCAV.3/13/2013  532.48


Frontier-Fuel/Frontier-Fuel/Frontier-FuelCK022272 451 FRONTIER-SERVCO FS3/13/2013  2,685.65


J Johnson-Construction RefundCK022273 458 JEREMIAH JOHNSON3/13/2013  224.56


Woodward-Ads For 


Bids/Woodward-Ads/Woodward-Ads For Bids


CK022274 474 WOODWARD COMMUNITY MEDIA3/13/2013  183.23


L Peterson-Customer RefundCK022275 495 LINDA PETERSON3/13/2013  761.66


IBEW-March Union DuesCK022276 549 IBEW LOCAL 9653/13/2013  533.41
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03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 4/2/2013


Tuesday, April 02, 2013


Description


T Arvold-Customer RefundCK022277 608 TONYA ARVOLD3/13/2013  816.92


M Iverson-Customer RefundCK022278 728 MATT IVERSON3/13/2013  327.98


L Rada-Medical Reimb.CK022279 745 LOUIS RADA3/13/2013  140.00


Id Access-Id TagCK022280 756 ID-ACCESS3/13/2013  10.00


Prop. Ins-Property Insurance/Prop. Ins-Property 


Insurance/Prop. Ins-Property Insurance


CK022281 884 LOCAL GOVT PROPERTY INS. FUND3/13/2013  36,055.00


G Fay-Customer RefundCK022282 941 GUY FAY3/13/2013  186.69


WI DNR-dnr ExamsCK022283 956 WI DNR3/13/2013  100.00


Moodys-InvestmentsCK022284 462 MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE, INC.3/19/2013  11,000.00


220 W Main-Customer RefundCK022285 043 220 W MAIN LLC3/20/2013  160.30


Us Cellular-Phone/Us Cellular-PhoneCK022286 123 US CELLULAR3/20/2013  161.87


City Stoton-Stormwater FebCK022287 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON3/20/2013  31,189.09


Z Beske-Customer RefundCK022288 155 ZACHIARY BESKE3/20/2013  244.48


Assoc Trust-BondsCK022289 171 ASSOCIATED TRUST COMPANY3/20/2013  325.00


Resco-Inventory/Resco-SuppliesCK022290 400 RESCO3/20/2013  4,610.88


Vining Sparks-SafekeepingCK022291 584 VINING SPARKS IBG, L.P.3/20/2013  51.00


Seera-Focus on EnergyCK022292 603 SEERA3/20/2013  5,196.13


GLS Utility-Feb LocatesCK022293 727 GLS UTILITY LLC3/20/2013  28.10


L Rada-Medical Reimb.CK022294 745 LOUIS RADA3/20/2013  302.00


General-Heater repairs/General-Software 


upgrade/General-Heater repairs


CK022295 900 GENERAL HEATING & AIR CONDITION., INC.3/20/2013  2,517.70


City Stoton-March Retirement/City Stoton-March 


Retirement/City Stoton-March Retirement


CK022296 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON3/26/2013  23,085.51
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Check Register Summary - Standard
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WI SCTF-March C supportCK022297 133 WISCONSIN SCTF3/26/2013  138.46


United Way-March Contrib.CK022298 293 UNITED WAY OF DANE COUNTY3/26/2013  96.00


WPPI-large pwr billing/WPPI-w2's or 


1099s/WPPI-w2's or 1099s/WPPI-w2's or 1099s


CK100715 009 WPPI3/6/2013  832.74


Moodys-Investments/Moodys-InvestmentsVC100716 462 MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE, INC.3/19/2013  0.00


Great-West-Mar B Def CompCK100717 463 GREAT-WEST3/13/2013  2,000.00


N Shore-Mar B Def CompCK100718 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB3/13/2013  200.00


Quarles-Mort Rev BondsCK100719 901 QUARLES & BRADY,  LLP3/13/2013  8,500.00


MEUW-Safety manualCK100720 995 MEUW3/13/2013  320.00


Hanson Pest-Maint.CK100721 310 HANSON PEST MANAGEMENT3/20/2013  43.00


Sun Dance-March Cleaning/Sun Dance-March 


Cleaning/Sun Dance-March Cleaning


CK100722 322 SUN DANCE CLEANING SVCS LLC3/20/2013  250.00


Infosend-Billing/Infosend-Stormwater 


insert/Infosend-Billing/Infosend-Billing/Infosend-Billi


ng


CK100723 852 INFOSEND, INC3/20/2013  5,757.47


Great-West-Mar C Def CompCK100724 463 GREAT-WEST3/26/2013  2,000.00


N Shore Bk-Mar C Def CompCK100725 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB3/26/2013  200.00


Company Total  5,273,409.59







Stoughton Utilities - Credit Card Purchases


13-Mar


Acct # Name Date Debit Credit Vendor Description


7460 833 00-3611 PHILLIP LINNERUD 15-Mar-13 $315.50 NCL OF WISCONSIN INC Lab supplies


7460 833 00-3611 PHILLIP LINNERUD 21-Mar-13 $29.80 BADGER WATER Lab water


7430 921 00-0000 ERIN BOTHUM 20-Mar-13 $4.12 FOSDAL BAKERY LLC Meeting expense - Utilities Committee


7450 921 00-0000 ERIN BOTHUM 20-Mar-13 $1.50 FOSDAL BAKERY LLC Meeting expense - Utilities Committee


7460 851 00-0000 ERIN BOTHUM 20-Mar-13 $1.88 FOSDAL BAKERY LLC Meeting expense - Utilities Committee


7430 921 00-0000 ERIN BOTHUM 21-Mar-13 $7.94 FOSDAL BAKERY LLC Meeting expense - Leadership Team


7450 921 00-0000 ERIN BOTHUM 21-Mar-13 $2.88 FOSDAL BAKERY LLC Meeting expense - Leadership Team


7460 851 00-0000 ERIN BOTHUM 21-Mar-13 $3.62 FOSDAL BAKERY LLC Meeting expense - Leadership Team


7430 920 00-0000 ROBERT KARDASZ 11-Mar-13 $29.00 LEGAL SEA FOODS #200 Meals - APPA Washington DC trip


7430 920 00-0000 ROBERT KARDASZ 12-Mar-13 $12.05 HARRIETTS Meals - APPA Washington DC trip


7430 920 00-0000 ROBERT KARDASZ 12-Mar-13 $11.00 HARD ROCK WASHINGTON DC R Meals - APPA Washington DC trip


7430 143 00-0000 ROBERT KARDASZ 12-Mar-13 $16.00 HARD ROCK WASHINGTON DC R Meals - APPA Washington DC trip


7430 920 00-0000 ROBERT KARDASZ 12-Mar-13 $25.00 DELTA AIR   0068210370770 Travel expense - baggage - APPA Washington DC trip


7430 920 00-0000 ROBERT KARDASZ 14-Mar-13 $10.00 WASH METRORAIL Travel expense - subway - APPA Washington DC trip


7430 920 00-0000 ROBERT KARDASZ 14-Mar-13 $40.00 DANE CNTY TOLL HOUSE Travel expense - parking - APPA Washington DC trip


7430 920 00-0000 ROBERT KARDASZ 15-Mar-13 $25.00 DELTA AIR   0068211223560 Travel expense - baggage - APPA Washington DC trip


7430 926 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 4-Mar-13 $78.95 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7460 854 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 4-Mar-13 $13.86 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7450 926 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 4-Mar-13 $9.24 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7430 920 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 8-Mar-13 $999.00 DRI INNOVATIVE MAINT Vehicle maint/equipment management software


7430 926 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 11-Mar-13 $78.95 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7460 854 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 11-Mar-13 $13.86 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7450 926 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 11-Mar-13 $9.24 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7430 586 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 14-Mar-13 $22.51 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC Replacment electirc meter cover.


7430 926 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 18-Mar-13 $78.95 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7450 926 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 18-Mar-13 $9.24 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7460 854 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 18-Mar-13 $13.86 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7430 903 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 19-Mar-13 $63.10 U.S. CELLULAR Cell phone


7450 903 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 19-Mar-13 $22.94 U.S. CELLULAR Cell phone


7460 840 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 19-Mar-13 $28.68 U.S. CELLULAR Cell phone


7450 920 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 21-Mar-13 $26.68 RED LOBSTER US00001552 WRWA Conference


7450 920 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 22-Mar-13 $14.05 TUNDRA FOOD & BEVERAGE WRWA Conference


7450 920 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 22-Mar-13 $15.85 COACHES CORNER WRWA Conference


7450 920 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 25-Mar-13 $14.89 APPLEBEES 887263688725 WRWA Conference


7430 926 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 25-Mar-13 $78.95 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7460 854 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 25-Mar-13 $13.86 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7450 926 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 25-Mar-13 $9.24 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7450 920 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 25-Mar-13 $198.00 TUNDRA LODGE RESORT & WA WRWA Conference


7450 920 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 25-Mar-13 $198.00 TUNDRA LODGE RESORT & WA WRWA Conference


7430 921 00-0000 KIM JENNINGS 22-Mar-13 $21.10 VZWRLSS PREPAID PYMNT 3G Service for I-Pad


7430 921 00-0000 KIM JENNINGS 26-Mar-13 $2.46 GPS GOVT PAYMENT SRVCS Dane County Sheriif - Accident Reports


7430 588 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 4-Mar-13 $2,294.49 DLT SOLUTIONS 703-773- AutoCAD software license for LRada workstation


7450 665 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 4-Mar-13 $834.36 DLT SOLUTIONS 703-773- AutoCAD software license for LRada workstation


7460 857 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 4-Mar-13 $1,042.96 DLT SOLUTIONS 703-773- AutoCAD software license for LRada workstation
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7430 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 6-Mar-13 $14.93 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY Monthly maint. contract for iR5070 copy machine


7450 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 6-Mar-13 $5.37 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY Monthly maint. contract for iR5070 copy machine


7460 851 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 6-Mar-13 $7.16 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY Monthly maint. contract for iR5070 copy machine


7430 233 00-1099 BRIAN HOOPS 6-Mar-13 $2.41 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY Monthly maint. contract for iR5070 copy machine


7430 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 11-Mar-13 $285.13 APPLE STORE  #R229 Replacement iPad for KJennings - iPad2, 3G, Verizon, 16GB


7450 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 11-Mar-13 $103.68 APPLE STORE  #R229 Replacement iPad for KJennings - iPad2, 3G, Verizon, 16GB


7460 851 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 11-Mar-13 $129.61 APPLE STORE  #R229 Replacement iPad for KJennings - iPad2, 3G, Verizon, 16GB


7430 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 12-Mar-13 $227.76 TDS METROCOM Office PRI phone service


7450 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 12-Mar-13 $81.99 TDS METROCOM Office PRI phone service


7460 851 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 12-Mar-13 $109.32 TDS METROCOM Office PRI phone service


7430 233 00-1099 BRIAN HOOPS 12-Mar-13 $36.45 TDS METROCOM Office PRI phone service


7460 851 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 13-Mar-13 $60.64 CDW GOVERNMENT Repl. ink cartridges, color/black, for WW tel. trk inkjet printer


7430 903 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 13-Mar-13 $29.97 PAYFLOW/PAYPAL Credit card processing -- Recurring, desktop, and phone V-Pay


7450 903 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 13-Mar-13 $10.79 PAYFLOW/PAYPAL Credit card processing -- Recurring, desktop, and phone V-Pay


7460 840 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 13-Mar-13 $14.38 PAYFLOW/PAYPAL Credit card processing -- Recurring, desktop, and phone V-Pay


7430 233 00-1099 BRIAN HOOPS 13-Mar-13 $4.81 PAYFLOW/PAYPAL Credit card processing -- Recurring, desktop, and phone V-Pay


7430 903 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 13-Mar-13 $21.97 PAYFLOW/PAYPAL Credit card processing -- Online E-Pay


7450 903 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 13-Mar-13 $7.91 PAYFLOW/PAYPAL Credit card processing -- Online E-Pay


7460 840 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 13-Mar-13 $10.54 PAYFLOW/PAYPAL Credit card processing -- Online E-Pay


7430 233 00-1099 BRIAN HOOPS 13-Mar-13 $3.53 PAYFLOW/PAYPAL Credit card processing -- Online E-Pay


7430 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 14-Mar-13 $16.76 STAPLES General office supplies


7450 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 14-Mar-13 $6.09 STAPLES General office supplies


7460 851 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 14-Mar-13 $7.63 STAPLES General office supplies


7430 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 14-Mar-13 $150.00 VOICESHOT LLC Outbound calling for automated disconnect warning calls.


7450 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 14-Mar-13 $54.00 VOICESHOT LLC Outbound calling for automated disconnect warning calls.


7460 851 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 14-Mar-13 $72.00 VOICESHOT LLC Outbound calling for automated disconnect warning calls.


7430 233 00-1099 BRIAN HOOPS 14-Mar-13 $24.00 VOICESHOT LLC Outbound calling for automated disconnect warning calls.


7430 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 15-Mar-13 $177.06 CDW GOVERNMENT New monitors for LRada workstation


7450 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 15-Mar-13 $64.38 CDW GOVERNMENT New monitors for LRada workstation


7460 851 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 15-Mar-13 $80.50 CDW GOVERNMENT New monitors for LRada workstation


7430 586 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 18-Mar-13 $247.06 ATT CONS PHONE PMT Phone lines for large power metering data connections


7450 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 18-Mar-13 $14.36 ATT CONS PHONE PMT Phone lines for SCADA dialers


7460 851 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 18-Mar-13 $25.87 ATT CONS PHONE PMT Phone lines for SCADA dialers and generator


7430 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 18-Mar-13 $102.49 CHARTER COMM Internet service for email and SU operations


7450 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 18-Mar-13 $36.89 CHARTER COMM Internet service for email and SU operations


7460 851 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 18-Mar-13 $49.19 CHARTER COMM Internet service for email and SU operations


7430 233 00-1099 BRIAN HOOPS 18-Mar-13 $16.42 CHARTER COMM Internet service for email and SU operations


7430 391 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 25-Mar-13 $11,693.00 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY Canon iR C7055 color copier/printer - replacement for iR5070.


7450 391 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 25-Mar-13 $4,252.00 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY Canon iR C7055 color copier/printer - replacement for iR5070.


7460 391 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 25-Mar-13 $5,315.00 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY Canon iR C7055 color copier/printer - replacement for iR5070.


7430 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 26-Mar-13 $41.81 CDW GOVERNMENT Ink cartridges for HP T770 plotter


7450 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 26-Mar-13 $15.20 CDW GOVERNMENT Ink cartridges for HP T770 plotter


7460 851 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 26-Mar-13 $19.02 CDW GOVERNMENT Ink cartridges for HP T770 plotter


7430 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 27-Mar-13 $19.77 CDW GOVERNMENT DVI extension cables for workstation monitors


7450 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 27-Mar-13 $7.19 CDW GOVERNMENT DVI extension cables for workstation monitors


7460 851 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 27-Mar-13 $8.99 CDW GOVERNMENT DVI extension cables for workstation monitors


7460 828 00-0000 BRIAN ERICKSON 14-Mar-13 $457.55 ROSCO INC Camera system for Jet-Vac


7450 903 00-0000 BRIAN ERICKSON 21-Mar-13 $19.35 RED LOBSTER US00001552 Supper at water confrence
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7450 903 00-0000 BRIAN ERICKSON 22-Mar-13 $12.01 COACHES CORNER Lunch for water conference


7450 903 00-0000 BRIAN ERICKSON 22-Mar-13 $14.00 TUNDRA FOOD & BEVERAGE Supper for water conference


7450 903 00-0000 BRIAN ERICKSON 25-Mar-13 $16.96 APPLEBEES 887263688725 Lunch for water confrenece


7450 673 00-0000 ROGER THORSON 1-Mar-13 $519.70 DECKER SUPPLY CO INC rollup traffic signs


7450 107 00-0000 ROGER THORSON 14-Mar-13 $300.00 NORTHERN LAKES SERVICE IN fee for samples from all for wells  nitrates and VOCs


7450 641 00-0000 ROGER THORSON 27-Mar-13 $1,999.20 HAWKINS INC chemicals / chlorine and flouride


7430 932 00-0000 SCOTT GRADY 6-Mar-13 $190.35 ELIGHTBULBS  800-948-1063 T8 Bulbs


7430 932 00-0000 SCOTT GRADY 11-Mar-13 $155.00 MONONA PLUMBING 1/4 Fire Inspection Admin. Building


7430 584 00-0000 SCOTT GRADY 11-Mar-13 $24.40 MIDWEST SAFETY SUPPLY Latex Gloves


7430 584 00-0000 SCOTT GRADY 21-Mar-13 $88.56 MIDWEST SAFETY SUPPLY Safety Vests


7430 362 49-0000 SCOTT GRADY 21-Mar-13 $6,000.00 NOVA TECH Regulator controller reconfigurations & maint. to the SCADA sys.


7430 933 00-0000 SCOTT GRADY 25-Mar-13 $101.98 GALLS INTERN Bulb for amber flashers


7430 583 00-0000 SCOTT GRADY 28-Mar-13 $15.70 UPS 1ZT8V9840390235937 Returned sample tool to vendor


7430 583 00-0000 SCOTT GRADY 28-Mar-13 $6.53 ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW Bolts for pipe knobs


7430 921 00-0000 CRAIG WOOD 21-Mar-13 $19.99 RADIOSHACK DEA00019513 Cell phone battery


7430 592 00-0000 LARRY DONALDSON 12-Mar-13 $7.99 CULVER'S #187 School Expense


7430 592 00-0000 LARRY DONALDSON 13-Mar-13 $6.22 FOOD SERVICES INC - NO School Expense


7430 592 00-0000 LARRY DONALDSON 13-Mar-13 $7.09 BIG DS RAMADA GREEN BAY School Expense


7430 592 00-0000 LARRY DONALDSON 13-Mar-13 $11.56 NOODLES  CO 212 School Expense


7430 592 00-0000 LARRY DONALDSON 14-Mar-13 $6.39 CULVER'S #187 School Expense


7430 592 00-0000 LARRY DONALDSON 14-Mar-13 $6.85 SUBWAY        00073726 School Expense


7430 592 00-0000 LARRY DONALDSON 14-Mar-13 $6.62 FOOD SERVICES INC - NO School Expense


7430 143 00-0000 LARRY DONALDSON 14-Mar-13 $2.13 FOOD SERVICES INC - NO School Expense - sales tax to be reimbursed


7430 592 00-0000 LARRY DONALDSON 15-Mar-13 $6.85 SUBWAY        00073726 School Expense


7430 592 00-0000 LARRY DONALDSON 15-Mar-13 $9.02 FOOD SERVICES INC - NO School Expense


7430 592 00-0000 LARRY DONALDSON 18-Mar-13 $3.59 FOOD SERVICES INC - NO School Expense


7430 592 00-0000 LARRY DONALDSON 18-Mar-13 $4.64 FOOD SERVICES INC - NO School Expense


7430 592 00-0000 LARRY DONALDSON 18-Mar-13 $6.49 CULVER'S OF WAUPUN School Expense


7430 592 00-0000 LARRY DONALDSON 18-Mar-13 $8.70 SUBWAY        00423681 School Expense


7430 592 00-0000 LARRY DONALDSON 18-Mar-13 $10.44 FOOD SERVICES INC - NO School Expense


7430 592 00-0000 LARRY DONALDSON 18-Mar-13 $27.15 EXXONMOBIL    97297659 School Expense-Fuel


7430 592 00-0000 LARRY DONALDSON 18-Mar-13 $495.00 RAMADA PLAZA SUITES GREEN School Expense


7430 583 00-0000 LARRY DONALDSON 28-Mar-13 $3.50 STOUGHTON LUMBER Sharpen Pole Pruner Blade


7430 933 00-0000 BRYCE SIME 1-Mar-13 $31.95 ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW Valve stem replacement on #14.


7430 583 00-0000 BRYCE SIME 7-Mar-13 $14.00 PETERSON SERVICE INC Chainsaw Bar


7430 932 00-0000 CHARLES VIKE 7-Mar-13 $84.95 ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW ice melt for sidewalks at office


7450 678 00-0000 CHARLES VIKE 11-Mar-13 $8.38 ADVANCE AUTO PARTS 6292 oil filters for backhoe


7430 932 00-0000 CHARLES VIKE 15-Mar-13 $200.89 R H D PLUMBING admin building hot water heater replacement


7430 932 00-0000 CHARLES VIKE 15-Mar-13 $73.05 R H D PLUMBING admin building hot water heater replacement


7460 834 00-0000 CHARLES VIKE 15-Mar-13 $91.32 R H D PLUMBING admin building hot water heater replacement


7430 932 00-0000 CHARLES VIKE 18-Mar-13 $31.86 ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW plumbing supplies for faucet in back garage


7450 652 00-0000 CHARLES VIKE 18-Mar-13 $424.95 USA BLUE BOOK chemical pumping equipment replacement parts


7450 652 00-0000 CHARLES VIKE 29-Mar-13 $130.28 USA BLUE BOOK chemical pumping equipment parts


7450 626 00-0000 MARTIN SEFFENS 13-Mar-13 $5.96 ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW keys


7460 833 00-0000 SCOTT GUNSOLUS 1-Mar-13 $14.61 FASTENAL COMPANY01 Saw blade, water softener salt.


7460 834 00-0000 SCOTT GUNSOLUS 11-Mar-13 $8.58 ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW Exit light lite bulb


7460 828 00-0000 SCOTT GUNSOLUS 13-Mar-13 $8.99 663 STOUGHTON BUMPER TO B Relay switch for jet-vac


7460 834 00-0000 SCOTT GUNSOLUS 18-Mar-13 $36.24 ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW Kerosene, pipe cap
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7460 833 00-0000 SCOTT GUNSOLUS 20-Mar-13 $9.16 ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW Pipe fittings


7460 828 00-0000 SCOTT GUNSOLUS 25-Mar-13 $10.98 ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW Wax for trucks


7460 833 00-0000 SCOTT GUNSOLUS 27-Mar-13 $13.69 663 STOUGHTON BUMPER TO B exhaust fan belt


7460 833 00-0000 SCOTT GUNSOLUS 27-Mar-13 $24.49 663 STOUGHTON BUMPER TO B belt for RTU #901


7460 833 00-0000 SCOTT GUNSOLUS 28-Mar-13 $24.49 663 STOUGHTON BUMPER TO B Belts for exhaust fan


$42,247.92 $0.00
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DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 
Monday, March 18, 2013 – 5:03 p.m. 
Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room 
Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 
Stoughton Utilities Building 
600 S. Fourth St. 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
Members Present: Alderperson Michael Engelberger, Citizen Member David Erdman, 


Citizen Member Jonathan Hajny, Alderperson Eric Hohol, and 
Alderperson Elvin (Sonny) Swangstu. 


  
Excused: Mayor Donna Olson and Citizen Member Alan Staats. 
   
Absent: None. 


 
Others Present: Stoughton Utilities Office and Information Systems Supervisor 


Brian Hoops, Stoughton Utilities Finance and Administrative 
Manager Kim Jennings, CPA, and Stoughton Utilities Director 
Robert Kardasz, P.E. 


  
Call To Order:  Alderperson Eric Hohol called the regular Stoughton Utilities Committee 
Meeting to order at 5:03 p.m.   
 
Stoughton Utilities Committee Consent Agenda: Stoughton Utilities Director Robert 
Kardasz presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting Consent 
Agenda Items.  Discussion Followed.  Mr. Kardasz explained that due to safety concerns, 
Stoughton Utilities will no longer be reconnecting electric and water service after normal 
working hours.  Motion by Alderperson Elvin (Sonny) Swangstu, the motion seconded by 
Alderperson Michael Engelberger, to approve the following consent agenda items as 
presented:  Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List, Draft Minutes of the February 12 and 18, 
2013 Special and Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meetings, Stoughton Utilities 
January 2013 Financial Summary, Stoughton Utilities January 2013 Statistical Information, 
Stoughton Utilities Communications, Stoughton Utilities Committee Annual Calendar, and the 
Stoughton Utilities February 2013 Activities Report.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Status Of The Stoughton Utilities Committee Recommendation(s) To The Stoughton 
Common Council:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz informed the committee 
that the Stoughton Common Council approved the following recommendation: 
 


 Current Refunding of the Stoughton Utilities 2003 Electric Bond Issue. 


 Stoughton Utilities Proposed Customer Service Technician Position.  


 Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List. 


 Stoughton Utilities Committee Regular January 14, 2013 Meeting Minutes. 


 Stoughton Utilities December 2012 Financial Summary. 


 Stoughton Utilities December 2012 Statistical Worksheet. 
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Stoughton Utilities Bad Debt Write-Offs Through December 31, 2012:  Stoughton Utilities 
Finance and Administrative Manager Kim Jennings and Stoughton Utilities Director Robert 
Kardasz presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities bad debt write-offs through 
December 31, 2012.  Discussion followed.  Motion by Alderperson Michael Engelberger, the 
motion seconded by Citizen Member Jonathan Hajny, to approve the Stoughton Utilities bad 
debt Write-offs through December 31, 2012 and recommend and the approval and the 
adoption of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common Council on March 26, 
2013.   The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Proposed Rental Of Stoughton Utilities Agricultural Land:  Stoughton Utilities Director 
Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the proposed rental of Stoughton Utilities 
agricultural land.  Discussion followed.  Motion by Alderperson Michael Engelberger, the 
motion seconded by Alderperson Elvin (Sonny) Swangstu, to approve the rental of the 12.2 
acres of agricultural land for cropping in 2013 to the Stoughton FFA and Alumni Chapter for 
$75 - $175 per acre for a total of $915 - $2,135 and recommend such rental and the adoption 
of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common Council on March 26, 2013.  The 
motion carried unanimously. 
 
Stoughton Utilities Committee Governance:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz 
presented and discussed information regarding Stoughton Utilities Committee Governance 
and information provided by the American Public Power Association.  Discussion followed.  
Motion by Citizen Member Jonathan Hajny, the motion seconded by Alderperson Eric Hohol 
to forward the American Public Power Association (APPA) Model City Charter Provisions 
For A Public Utilities Authority to the City Attorney to determine applicability to the Stoughton 
Utilities Committee and provide such  determination and previously developed commission 
language for the April 15, 2013 Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting.  The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Stoughton Utilities Consumer Confidence Report (CCR):  Stoughton Utilities Office and 
Information Systems Supervisor Brian Hoops and Stoughton Utilities Director Robert 
Kardasz presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities CCR.  Discussion followed.    
   
Stoughton Utilities Committee Future Agenda Items: 
 


 Stoughton Utilities governance at the April 15, 2013 Regular Stoughton Utilities 
Committee Meeting. 


 Stoughton Utilities Committee Hearings for placement of delinquent utilities bills on the 
tax roll. 


 Stoughton Utilities Financial Forecasts. 
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Alderperson Michael Engelberger requested information from the American Public Power 
Association (APPA) regarding tax exempt financing. 
 
Adjournment:  Motion by Citizen Member Jonathan Hajny, the motion seconded by Citizen 
Member David Erdman to adjourn the Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting at 5:50 
p.m.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 
Stoughton Utilities Director 








Highlights-Comparison to prior month


I have no concerns with the utility's financial status.  The following items are


meant to illustrate significant changes in the financial summary from prior periods.


Financial results are as expected through February 2013.


Revenues and expenses are in line with budgeted amounts for January and February.


A review of electric, water and wastewater rates will be completed during 2013.


Staff will continue to give updates on the progress of rate reviews.


Submitted by: 


 Kim M. Jennings, CPA


Stoughton Utilities
Financial Summary


February 2013-YTD







Stoughton Utilities
Income Statement


February 2013-YTD


Electric Water Wastewater Total


Operating Revenue:


Sales 2,515,439$         277,274$          326,633$             3,119,346$        


Other 47,346                7,121                4,444                   58,910               


Total Operating Revenue: 2,562,785$         284,395$          331,076$             3,178,256$        


Operating Expense:


Purchased Power 1,947,797$         -$                  -$                    1,947,797$        


Expenses 278,321              101,868            126,377               506,566             


Taxes (Including PILOT) 65,000                60,834              -                      125,834             


Depreciation 156,666              63,334              111,666               331,666             


Total Operating Expense: 2,447,784$         226,036$          238,043$             2,911,863$        


Operating Income 115,001$            58,359$            93,033$               266,394$           


Non-Operating Income 109,623              9,782                28,179                 147,584             


Non-Operating Expense (38,297)               (14,334)             (14,334)               (66,965)              


Net Income 186,328$            53,807$            106,879$             347,013$           







Stoughton Utilities
Rate of Return


February 2013-YTD


Electric Water


Operating Income (Regulatory) 115,001$            58,359$            


Average Utility Plant in Service 22,983,524         11,573,592       


Average Accumulated Depreciation (10,165,041)        (3,638,488)        


Average Materials and Supplies 137,937              34,469              


Average Regulatory Liability (232,684)             (359,398)           


Average Customer Advances (4,857)                 


Average Net Rate Base 12,718,880$       7,610,175$       


Actual Rate of Return 0.90% 0.77%


Authorized Rate of Return 6.50% 6.50%







Stoughton Utilities
Cash & Investments


Electric Feb-13


Unrestricted (4 months O&M) 4,972,150      


Bond Reserve 704,728         


Redemption Fund (P&I) 483,610         


Designated 1,421,258      


Total 7,581,746      


Water Feb-13


Unrestricted (1.5 months O&M) 189,557         


Bond Reserve 274,005         


Redemption Fund (P&I) 188,633         


Designated 829,361         


Total 1,481,556      


Wastewater Feb-13


Unrestricted (2 months O&M) 242,009         


DNR Replacement 1,280,964      


Redemption Fund (P&I) 536,417         


Designated 599,382         


Total 2,658,772      


4,972,150 , 66%


704,728 , 9%


483,610 , 6%
1,421,258 , 19%


Electric Cash - February 2013


Unrestricted (4 months O&M) Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated


189,557 , 13%


274,005 , 18%


188,633 , 13%


829,361 , 56%


Water Cash - February 2013


Unrestricted (1.5 months O&M) Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated


242,009 , 9%


1,280,964 , 48%536,417 , 20%


599,382 , 23%


Wastewater Cash - February 2013


Unrestricted (2 months O&M) DNR Replacement
Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated







Stoughton Utilities
Balance Sheet


February 2013-YTD


Assets Electric Water WW Total


Cash & Investments 7,581,746$         1,481,556$       2,658,772$         11,722,074$     


Customer A/R 366,917              54,860              61,294                483,071            


Other A/R 135,535              4,545                1,548                  141,627            


Other Current Assets 672,678              48,477              8,729                  729,884            


Plant in Service 23,513,481         11,682,297       23,251,903         58,447,681       


Accumulated Depreciation (10,393,090)        (3,730,297)        (8,557,852)          (22,681,239)      


Plant in Service - CIAC 2,662,880           6,115,456         -                      8,778,336         


Accumulated Depreciation-CIAC (770,372)             (1,568,485)        -                      (2,338,858)        


Construction Work in Progress 30,648                39,175              360,309              430,132            


Total Assets 23,800,423$       14,127,583$     17,784,702$       55,712,708$     


Liabilities + Net Assets


A/P 1,180,755$         72$                   (458)$                  1,180,370$       


Taxes Accrued 428,359              402,993            -                      831,352            


Interest Accrued 99,161                29,504              30,753                159,418            


Other Current Liabilities 167,931              125,456            112,349              405,736            


Long-Term Debt 6,076,819           2,354,569         3,553,192           11,984,580       


Net Assets 15,847,398         11,214,989       14,088,866         41,151,252       


Total Liabilities + Net Assets 23,800,423$       14,127,583$     17,784,702$       55,712,708$     








Total Sales Total KwH Total Sales Total KwH Demand Demand
2012 KwH Purchased 2012 2013 KwH Purchased 2013 Peak 2012 Peak 2013


January 11,868,378 12,433,320 12,980,664 12,941,309 22,832 24,115


February 11,038,451 11,343,024 11,093,150 11,375,749 21,427 21,962


March


April


May


June


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 22,906,829 23,776,344 24,073,814 24,317,058


Total Sales Total Gallons Total Sales Total Gallons Max Daily High Max Daily Highs
2012 Gallons Pumped 2012 2013 Gallons Pumped 2013 2012 2013


January 39,638,000 47,363,000 41,148,000 42,597,000 1,875,000 1,736,000


February 37,722,000 44,248,000 35,083,000 37,233,000 1,810,000 1,525,000


March


April


May


June


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 77,360,000 91,611,000 76,231,000 79,830,000


Total Sales Total Treated Total Sales Total Treated Precipitation Precipitation
2012 Gallons Gallons 2012 2013 Gallons Gallons 2013 2012 2013


January 26,040,000 34,934,000 28,637,000 34,646,000 1.48 2.80


February 24,529,000 33,123,000 24,392,000 31,119,000 1.10 3.00


March


April


May


June


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 50,569,000 68,057,000 53,029,000 65,765,000 2.58 5.80


2013 Statistical Worksheet
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600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


Date:  April 9, 2013 


         


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


  Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Communications. 


 


 March 2013 “Things you should KNOW” newsletter from WPPI Energy President 


and CEO Michael W. Peters. 


 


 March 14, 2013 email from John Randall regarding a Stoughton Utilities response to 


an issue in the field. 
 


 March 19, 2013 news release regarding the Stoughton Utilities’ participation in the 


American Public Power Association (APPA) Legislative Rally. 
 


 March 25, 2013 American Public Power Association (APPA) announcement 


recognizing Stoughton Utilities as one of 112 utili 
 


 March 28, 2013 report from the United States Environmental Protection Agency 


(USEPA) recognizing Stoughton being ranked 45
th


 in the Country for using green 


power for 3% of its energy useage and participation from 5% of its residential and 


business customers. 


 


 March 29, 2013 email from Carole E. Brown regarding the Stoughton Utilities online 


payment access program. 
 


 March-April 2013 APPA magazine “Public Power.” 
 


 April 2013 WPPI Energy newsletter “Power Report.” 
 


 April 2013 Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW) newsletter “Live 


Lines” article regarding the 31 members including Stoughton Utilities that will be 


recognized for safety achievement in 2012. 
 


Encl. 


 


cc: Sean O Grady 


 Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent  







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


MARCH 2013 


 


Bond financing moves forward. Last week, WPPI’s Executive Committee and Board of Directors approved 


the issuance of WPPI’s Series 2013A bonds to fund the Boswell 4 plant environmental upgrades and the 


CapX2020 La Crosse transmission project, along with the anticipated refunding of WPPI’s 2003A bonds and 


a portion of the 2005A bonds. We expect to price the bonds on April 3 and to close on April 18.  


 


Credit ratings reaffirmed. Earlier this month, WPPI Energy Board Chair Jeff Feldt, our financial advisor 


Sandra McDonald, WPPI senior staff members Marty Dreischmeier, Tom Hanrahan, and Pat Connors, and I 


met with the three major credit rating agencies to discuss our planned debt issuance. Our goal in those 


meetings was to proactively address any concerns regarding WPPI’s financial position, provide an update on 


the specific projects, and discuss the impact of the additional debt on our rates to members and their 


competitiveness. In light of the “negative outlook” that Moody’s placed on WPPI in December 2012, we 


were concerned about a possible downgrade, which could have increased the cost of borrowing.  


 


I am pleased to report that last week the agencies reaffirmed the following ratings for WPPI: “A1” 


(Moody’s), “A+” (Fitch), and “A” (Standard & Poor’s). Moody’s maintained its negative outlook. Following 


is a summary of the ratings rationale and drivers cited by the agencies:  


 


 Stable financial position 


 Diverse, flexible power supply 


 Competitive wholesale electric rates to members  


 Below-average retail rates for most members, especially compared to investor-owned utilities 


 Improving debt service coverage 


 A shift toward greater liquidity  


 Savings from refunding of outstanding debt 


 Diversified, 51-member participant group  


 Long-term, all-requirements power supply contracts with members 


 Member power cost adjustment clause ensures sufficiency of WPPI’s rates  


 Management’s track record of resource management 


 Management team viewed as “strong and sophisticated” and “fully engaged in providing a high level 


of service to member utilities and their retail customers” 


 


Going forward, WPPI’s credit can be further strengthened by doing what we can to strengthen our financial 


metrics and by any improvements in the averaged weighted credit quality of WPPI’s members.  


 


WI customer privacy bill update: Thanks for your advocacy. We have made significant strides toward a 


legislative solution to existing uncertainty for municipal utilities, which are subject both to Wisconsin’s open 


records laws and Public Service Commission rules requiring confidential treatment of municipal utility 
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customer information. This month, legislative language was finalized with leaders in both houses and 


circulated for co-sponsorship.  


 


Thanks in large part to outreach by WPPI members to their local legislators, the measure has enjoyed strong 


bipartisan support, with more than 30 co-sponsors signing on. We greatly appreciate the phone calls made 


and e-mails sent by our membership to seek support for the bills. This is yet another example of the power of 


joint action by municipal utilities for the benefit of the customers we serve. Together, our voices are strong 


and effective.   


 


The Senate will hold an April 2 hearing on the bill, and we anticipate that the Assembly will hold a hearing 


in the weeks to come as well. We will keep you posted as the legislative process unfolds. In the meantime, if 


you have any questions, please contact Dan Ebert at (608) 834-4516 or debert@wppienergy.org. 


 


Wisconsin Municipal Utility Legislative Day; POWER Breakfast in April. Municipal utility officials, 


mayors, utility commissioners, city and village officials are invited to attend the 2013 Municipal Utility 


Legislative Rally on April 23 in Madison. State Sen. Paul Farrow (R-Pewaukee), Rep. Mark Honadel (R-


South Milwaukee), Department of Natural Resources Deputy Secretary Matt Moroney and Public Service 


Commissioner Ellen Nowak have been invited to speak. Time has been set aside following the morning 


program for you to make afternoon visits to your legislators. 


 


I hope you will participate in this important event, as it is advocacy from local leaders like you that helps 


ensure sound energy policy for your customers. Register for the event by April 18 at www.meuw.org. For 


assistance scheduling meetings with your legislators, please contact Shayla Dvorak at 


sdvorak@wppienergy.org or (608) 834-4517. 


 


Breakfast Event. The following morning, on April 24, the Customers First! Coalition (CFC) will host its 


annual POWER Breakfast in Madison. WPPI Energy is a member of CFC, a broad-based alliance dedicated 


to preserving Wisconsin's historically safe, affordable, reliable and environmentally responsible electricity. 


At the POWER Breakfast, you’ll hear from national and state energy leaders on issues facing electricity 


customers and the power industry. To register, visit www.customersfirst.org. 


 


A successful legislative rally. Forty-three WPPI Energy utility managers and municipal leaders gathered in 


Washington, D.C., for the American Public Power Association Legislative Rally, March 11-13. The event 


provides an opportunity for local officials to meet face to face with federal legislators to advocate for 


responsible energy policies that directly benefit customers. This year, participants visited the offices of 


Senators Tammy Baldwin and Representatives Tom Petri, Reid Ribble, Mark Pocan, Sean Duffy, Jim 


Sensenbrenner and Ron Kind of Wisconsin; Senator Debbie Stabenow and Representative Dan Beneshik of 


Michigan; and Senators Tom Harkin and Chuck Grassley and Representative Bruce Braley of Iowa. Our key 


advocacy topic was the preservation of tax-exempt financing for state and local entities, including municipal 


utilities. Thanks to a strong showing by WPPI’s members, we made some important gains during our 


meetings with our congressional delegation.  


 


I am always open to suggestions and feedback from WPPI members. If you have any questions, comments or 


concerns about WPPI or the updates I’ve provided here, please don’t hesitate to reach me at (608) 834-4557 


or mpeters@wppienergy.org. 



mailto:debert@wppienergy.org

https://bl2prd0510.outlook.com/owa/redir.aspx?C=JbXDqxZdjEKwbMpoeVNkY4-eZG77-c8IFfxQsMK1UzIrzVRJI-rIDESCcwEMq7gp--aD23n9sno.&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.meuw.org

mailto:sdvorak@wppienergy.org

https://bl2prd0510.outlook.com/owa/redir.aspx?C=JbXDqxZdjEKwbMpoeVNkY4-eZG77-c8IFfxQsMK1UzIrzVRJI-rIDESCcwEMq7gp--aD23n9sno.&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.customersfirst.org

mailto:mpeters@wppienergy.org
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Keep Municipal Bonds Tax Exempt,  


Local Officials Tell D.C. Lawmakers 
 


Eliminating the tax exemption for municipal bonds ultimately could raise taxes and the costs of 


services for Wisconsin residents, Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz told members of 


Congress while visiting Washington, D.C.     


 


Lawmakers on both sides of the aisle have advocated removing or limiting the tax exemption on 


municipal bonds to raise more money toward reducing the federal deficit. But this proposal does 


more harm than good, local officials said while attending the American Public Power 


Association’s Legislative Rally, March 11-13. 


 


Not-for-profit and governed by local leaders, public power utilities like Stoughton Utilities must 


preserve affordable financing options for infrastructure projects that directly benefit the 


community.  


 







“Like other state and local governments nationwide, Stoughton has long issued municipal bonds 


to build roads, bridges, sewers, hospitals, libraries, schools, town halls, police stations, and 


electric and gas infrastructure for public power utilities,” said Kardasz. “Without the tax 


exemption, we may have to delay needed updates or raise rates for essential services like water 


and electricity.” 


 


With support from power supplier WPPI Energy, utility managers and municipal leaders come 


together to help educate state and federal elected officials on topics unique to public power 


utilities and advocate for responsible energy policies that benefit their customers. This year, 43 


WPPI Energy member officials participated in the APPA Legislative Rally. Two other particular 


areas of concern included: 


 Maintaining a balanced approach to cyber security, one that does not duplicate 


currently regulatory requirements for small electric utilities and subject them to 


unnecessary cost burdens; and 


 Developing a legislative solution to address inconsistencies in U.S. Commodity 


Futures Trading Commission rules that place customers of municipal utilities at 


greater risk of price fluctuations and higher costs. 


 


 


# # # 


 


Founded in 1886, Stoughton Utilities serves electric customers in Stoughton and the surrounding 


area; and wastewater and water customers in Stoughton. 
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members


WPPI Energy is a regional power company 
serving 51 consumer-owned electric utilities. 
Through WPPI Energy, these public power 
utilities share resources and own generation 
facilities to provide reliable, affordable electricity 
to more than 195,000 homes and businesses  
in Wisconsin, Upper Michigan and Iowa.


Despite their many differences in equipment, 
systems, policies and procedures, the public 
power utilities that make up WPPI Energy recently 
learned they had a lot in common in the ways they 
approached metering and billing.


Each utility saw room for improvement in the process 
and wanted to ensure accuracy.


To achieve that end, last February WPPI Energy’s 
Executive Committee established a diverse member 
task force to share their knowledge. During five 
productive meetings in the next eight months, the 
task force documented the ideas that became the 
WPPI Energy Electric Metering and Billing Best 
Practices Manual.


To reinforce the practices in the manual, the task force asked WPPI Energy staff  
to develop a workshop for utility employees. WPPI Energy extended an invitation to  
non-member utilities as well.


In all, more than 150 utility employees are attending the workshops, held in 
Eau Claire, Green Bay, and Wisconsin Dells. The final workshop is planned for  
April 18–19 in Sun Prairie. 


In the coming months, WPPI Energy will produce a series of metering and billing best 
practices training videos for ongoing staff development.


“Utility managers have said that the manual is very useful, but we don’t want it to just get 
read and put on a shelf. We’re hoping many people can go through the workshops, watch 
the videos, and learn more about developing an in-house metering team to stay ahead of 
any possible mistakes,” said task force Chair Steve Thompson, general manager of New 
London Utilities.


“The results of the task force’s work is another example of the benefits of joint action beyond 
power supply,” said task force member Zak Bloom, general manager at Waupun Utilities. 


“Any time we can share what we’ve learned, we improve the service we provide to 
customers,” Bloom said.


From Task Force to Training: Metering 
and Billing Best Practices Shared 


Randy Jaeckels, general manager at New Holstein 
Utilities, left, talks with Steve Thompson, general 
manager at New London Utilities and chair of 
the WPPI Energy Metering & Best Practices Task 
Force, at the Green Bay workshop.


Metering and Billing Best Practices Task Force:


Chair Steve Thompson, New London Utilities
Dale Bender, City Utilities of Richland Center
Steve Grenell, Menasha Utilities
Dave Mikonowicz, Reedsburg Utilities (retired)
Earl Monson, Plymouth Utilities


Zak Bloom, Waupun Utilities
Eric Miller, Kaukauna Utilities
Dawn Timm, City of Hartford
Rick Wicklund, Sun Prairie Utilities
John Schuh, City of Oconomowoc
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New Videos Promote Public Power


Two new videos, “Public 
Power Defined” and “Public 
Power Benefits,” are online 
at www.whypublicpower.org. 
Launched in 2012, the web site 
emphasizes the affordable rates, 
support for the community, and 


environmental responsibility that locally owned utilities offer, as 
well as the economies of scale that WPPI Energy creates as a 
joint action agency. 


City governments, chambers of commerce and utility 
commissions will use the videos as an educational tool in their 
communities. For more information, contact Kelanie Davis at 
(608) 834-4519.


CapX2020 Construction Begins


Construction crews have begun working on the 150-mile, 
345-kilovolt Hampton-Rochester-La Crosse portion of the 
CapX2020 group of transmission line projects.


The 161-kV North Rochester-Northern Hills segment is expected 
to be completed this summer, with the 345-kV segment between 
the North Rochester Substation and the Mississippi River to 
begin in August. Construction in Wisconsin will begin in 2014.


Five utilities—WPPI Energy, Dairyland Power Cooperative, 
Rochester Public Utilities, Southern Municipal Power Agency 
and Xcel Energy—received approval in January to begin the 
estimated $500 million project. WPPI Energy expects to invest 
between $15 million and $17.5 million for its 3 percent share.


The margin that WPPI Energy earns on the owned transmission 
assets will help hedge anticipated transmission costs increases 
in western Wisconsin, in the Northern States Power Co. (NSP) 
pricing zone.


New ESR Joins WPPI Energy Staff


Joseph Owen joined the WPPI Energy staff on 
November 12 as an energy services representative 
serving Sun Prairie and Waunakee.


A federal proposal to eliminate or reduce the 
proposed tax exemption on municipal bonds will 
ultimately hurt customers. 


That’s the message that 
utility managers and local 
officials voiced to members 
of Congress when we 


traveled to Washington, D.C., in March. 


It’s a subject our group knew well. Public 
power —including joint action agencies 
like ours and the locally owned utilities we 
serve—has been among the top state and 
local entities to use tax-exempt financing. 
During the decade 2003 to 2012, public 
power raised nearly $147 billion through 
municipal bonds, according to a new study 
from the National Association of Counties, 
the National League of Cities and the United 
States Conference of Mayors.


In all, state and local governments financed 
more than $1.65 trillion of investment over 
the decade ending in 2012 through the tax-
exempt bond market. Vital infrastructure improvements—including 
schools, roads, water and sewer systems, airports, bridges, electric 
power lines, and power generation—were financed this way.


WPPI Energy will rely on municipal bonds this year to finance up 
to $100 million for required environmental controls at our Boswell 


power plant (see story, page 7). Eliminating 
tax-exempt financing would raise borrowing 
costs by 48%, according to the American 
Public Power Association (APPA). A second 
proposal—which would cap the interest 
deduction for high-income purchasers of 
municipal bonds—would increase borrowing 
costs by 25%. 


As a result, changes to the tax-exempt bond 
market would cost our utilities and their 
customers an estimated $16 million to $32 
million in additional borrowing costs, just on 
this project alone. Given such substantial 
increases, local projects could be postponed 
or canceled—which means a loss of jobs 
and infrastructure for local businesses—or 
communities will have to raise taxes, or like 
WPPI Energy, raise rates to customers. 


Taxing municipal bonds would create more 
revenue for the federal government, but the 


price is simply too high for our communities’ residents. Public 
power utilities have an important responsibility to customers to 
keep costs as low as possible—and it’s with them in mind that we 
continue to ask our lawmakers to think carefully before enacting 
this proposal.


From the CEO: Keep Bonds Tax-Exempt mpeters@wppienergy.org


Utility staff and members of Congress met with elected 
leaders in Washington, D.C., in March. Pictured is a 
group from Wisconsin’s 8th Congressional District.


Quick     Takes 
WPPI Energy News in Brief







One of the advantages of being a locally 
owned utility is the ability to become 
closely acquainted with customers.


For New London Utilities (NLU), that has 
meant hosting a breakfast meeting in 
December for the utility’s 30 large power 
customers, followed by a personal visit 
by General Manager Steve Thompson 
and Energy Services Representative 
Lisa Miotke to each business in the fi rst 
quarter of 2013. 


Among them are the area’s largest 
employers. The nationally recognized 
Hillshire Brands started here in the 
1950s, and today the facility on County 
Road D continues to produce its 
famous sausage. That same decade, 
two packaging pioneers started 
another international business that 
still thrives. Today Curwood is part 
of Bemis Corp. and makes plastic 


packing fi lm. A separate division, 
Perfecseal, manufactures packing for 
medical products. Granite Valley Forest 
Products maintains a large lumber yard 
in town after purchasing the local Wolf 
River Lumber Co.


“Our growth has been slow but steady,” 
Thompson said. 


Expanding Highway 15 to four lanes 
all the way into New London—which is 
planned within the next decade—could 
bring more economic development to 
the area. In the meantime, the city’s 
7,300 residents already enjoy amenities 
such as a library, museum, community 
pool, the 120-acre Hatten Park, wildlife 
centers and fi shing.


Thompson is in his 28th year of 
managing the city’s electric and water 
utilities, which employ 21 people. 
Previously, he worked for local utilities 
in the village of Hustisford, Wis., and the 
city of Elroy, Wis.


Promoting Effi ciency


As Thompson and Miotke meet 
with commercial customers, they 
offer to come back and complete a 
comprehensive facility study. The study 
can then identify ways that the business 
can save money; prioritize potential 
projects; and determine whether dollars 


new london, 
wisconsin fast facts


Counties: 
Outagamie; Waupaca 


Number of Customers:
3,750 electric; 2,850 water


Member Website: 
www.newlondonutilities.org


Did you know? 


•  New London’s early founders 
voted to establish their own city-
owned utility in 1904 to provide 
light to the downtown area 
and to encourage economic 
development. 


•  Each March, 
New London 
is renamed 
New Dublin 
for the week 
and hosts 
Wisconsin’s 
largest St. Patrick’s Day parade, 
along with an Irish Fest.


•  The Heritage Days and Rail 
Fest each August features 
a buckskinners rendezvous 
encampment at New London’s 
Heritage Historical Village.


•  New London Utilities’ Offi ce 
Manager Rose Stern will 
offi cially retire September 8 after 
31-plus years of service.


WPPI Energy member since 1980.


continued on next page


The Embarrass and Wolf rivers make New London a destination for fi shing, canoeing and river tubing.


New London Utilities is one of WPPI Energy’s founding 
members.


member      spotlight


New London, Wisconsin 







Member Spotlight: New London, Wisconsin continued


are available through the utility, WPPI 
Energy and Focus on Energy. 


“They’re all quite interested in 
efficiency, but they have to still get 
the capital dollars to get it done. 
Everybody’s a little hesitant about 
where are we in this recovery and 
capital dollars are still hard to come 
by,” Thompson said.


Many businesses made significant 
energy efficiency improvements in the 
late 1990s, when the utility pioneered 
an approach called the New London 
Resource Project. 


The money the utility spent during the 
three-year initiative was injected back 
into the local economy as businesses 
saved money on their electric bills.


“We tried to push energy conservation 
and change how it was done,” 
Thompson explained. “We provided 
low-interest loans that were paid back 
on the utility bill. If you identify the 
project, provide the funds, and they 
pay you back with the money they save, it’s amazing how much 
easier it is to get things done.” 


NLU still offers this kind of financing through the Shared 
Savings program, which can also be combined with other 
rebates and incentives.


“We’ve been able to provide value-added service to our 
business customers. When they need something, we strive to 
be very responsive and helpful,” Thompson said.


Like other public power utility managers, Thompson stays 
engaged in economic development. “Whenever the city 
administrator gets into any type of project, I’m always one of 
his first calls,” he said. 


Giving Back


Residential customers can take advantage of several programs 
as well. In honor of Public Power Week last October, NLU 
hosted its first electronics recycling event. Customers could 
bring in old computers, TVs and more at no cost. In just one 
Saturday morning, the utility collected more than 53,000 
pounds of electronics that did not end up in the landfill. 


The response to the event was so positive that it will be 
repeated again this summer, Thompson said.


The utility provided another public service recently by 
responding to a request for funding from the police 


department. The contribution allowed each school to purchase 
an emergency police radio in response to the tragedy in 
Newtown, Connecticut. 


Throughout his tenure, Thompson has overseen significant 
infrastructure improvements, which included rebuilding both 
the electric and water systems. 


Adapting to Change


NLU’s long history of involvement in the industry dates back to 
founding WPPI Energy in 1980. 


“The last 20 years in particular have brought lots of change,” 
Thompson said. “I think we’re going to continue to see that. 
WPPI has helped us to fight through some very difficult years.”


Joint action has evolved throughout the years to not only give 
locally owned utilities ownership to power supply resources, 
but also access to a successful joint purchasing initiative, 
programs for business and residential customers, legislative 
advocacy, and shared knowledge. The Metering and Billing 
Best Practices Task Force, which Thompson chaired, is a 
recent example. (See story, page 1.)


“The utility business has been very good to me and WPPI has 
been a big part of my career,” Thompson said. “We are so much 
better and stronger together than we are as individual units.”


New London Utilities’ first electronics recycling event kept more than 53,000 pounds of waste out of the landfill. 
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Michigan Saves Works with Businesses 


WPPI Energy members have joined other  
Michigan utilities in promoting Michigan Saves, a new 
program that offers businesses low-cost financing 
ranging from $2,000 to $150,000, plus cash-back 


incentives. For more information, see www.michigansaves.org. 


ATC Modifies Bay Lake Project


American Transmission Co. has modified the scope of its Bay 
Lake Project, a proposed collection of transmission lines and 
substations to enhance reliability in northeastern Wisconsin and 
the Upper Peninsula of Michigan. Work will be deferred on the 
northernmost of two proposed new 345-kilovolt lines while the 
Midwest Independent System Operator (MISO) completes its 
Northern Area Study to review long-range transmission needs in 
Manitoba, North Dakota, South Dakota, Minnesota, Wisconsin 
and Michigan. ATC also is reviewing whether a single new 138 
kilovolt circuit—between the Wisconsin border and the Escanaba 
area—will meet foreseeable needs. 


Michigan Studies Energy Policy


Michigan Gov. Rick Snyder’s administration has launched a yearlong 
study to explore future energy policies for the state.


The study will provide the governor and the state Legislature 
with information to establish new energy strategies. In addition to 
holding seven public meetings, the state is accepting comments at  
www.michigan.gov/energy. 


IAMU Makes Market Recommendations


The Iowa Association of Municipal Utilities recently 
released its 2020 Taskforce Report on the Midwest 
Independent System Operator (MISO) capacity market. 


The task force emphasized the advantages of the joint action 
agency model in its report. “Current challenges, such as the MISO 
energy and capacity markets, staffing, credit and capital risks, 
and increased pressure for transfers to city general funds are not 
unique. The strengths of the business model are still there, as are 
the solutions. What we need to do is to capitalize on those strengths 
and keep them in front of our communities,” the report said.


IAMU members also recently met with legislators during a day at the 
state Capitol on Feb. 7.


Annual Legislative Day, Breakfast Planned


Municipal utility officials, mayors, utility commissioners, 
city and village officials are invited to attend the 2013 
Municipal Utility Legislative Rally on April 23 in Madison. 


State Sen. Paul Farrow (R-Pewaukee), Rep. Mark Honadel 
(R-South Milwaukee), Department of Natural Resources Deputy 
Secretary Matt Moroney and Public Service Commissioner Ellen 
Nowak have been invited to speak. Attendees are encouraged to 
schedule personal visits with their representatives and senators. The 
event is sponsored by Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin, the 
Wisconsin Rural Water Association, the Municipal Environmental 
Group (MEG)-Water Division, and MEG-Wastewater Division. 
Register by April 18 at www.meuw.org. 


On April 24, the Customers First! Coalition (CFC) will host its annual 
POWER Breakfast in Madison. See www.customersfirst.org.


Commissioner Confirmed for Full Term


The Wisconsin Senate confirmed Ellen Nowak to a full, six-year term 
on the Public Service Commission. She was originally appointed to 
the post to fill the remainder of Lauren Azar’s term. Commissioner 
Eric Callisto’s term is next up for consideration in March 2015.


•  Volunteer crews from many locally owned utilities throughout the 
region traveled in bucket trucks to the east coast after Hurricane 
Sandy knocked down power lines from Virginia to Maine last 
November. Participating WPPI Energy utilities included: 
Cedarburg, Hartford, Kaukauna, Menasha, New Richmond, 
Oconomowoc, River Falls, Stoughton and Sun Prairie. The 
Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW) coordinated 
the effort as part of its mutual aid program. In all, utility workers 
had to restore service to some 8 million customers. 


•  Forty-three WPPI Energy utility managers and municipal 
leaders gathered in Washington, D.C., for the American Public 
Power Association Legislative Rally, March 11-13. WPPI 
Energy and MEUW coordinate the annual trip, which lets local 
officials meet face-to-face with federal legislators to advocate 
for responsible energy policies that directly benefit customers. 
This year, participants met with Senators Tammy Baldwin and 
Ron Johnson and Representatives Tom Petri, Reid Ribble, 
Mark Pocan, Sean Duffy, Jim Sensenbrenner and Ron Kind of 


Wisconsin; Senator Debbie Stabenow and Representative Dan 
Beneshik of Michigan; and Senators Tom Harkin and Chuck 
Grassley and Representative Bruce Braley of Iowa.


•  Plymouth Utilities and American Transmission Co. built a new 
substation and a 2.25-mile, 138-kilovolt line to Johnsonville 
Sausage in Sheboygan Falls. The project adds more than 
40,000 square feet to the existing manufacturing plant.


•  The village of Prairie du Sac won the golden medal award 
for best-tasting water in the nation during the Great American 
Water Taste Test on Feb. 13 at the Rural Water Rally in 
Washington, D.C.


•  Menasha Utilities has earned the American Public Power 
Association’s Safety Award of Excellence for safe operating 
practices in 2012.  The utility earned the first place award in 
the category for utilities with 30,000–59,999 worker-hours of 
annual worker exposure.


State        Updates


member       News







6 Power Report • April 2013


Free Energy Assessment Leads to Savings, Improved Production 


Lower outdoor temperatures make for lower energy bills at  
Hi-Tech Plastics, Inc. in Kaukauna. 


Last spring, the company accepted Kaukauna Utilities’ offer of 
a comprehensive energy assessment. The utility, as well as the 
50 other locally owned utilities that comprise WPPI Energy, 
received funding for facility energy assessments through a U.S. 
Department of Energy program called Save Energy Now. 


The assessment identified a number of projects with the potential 
for significant energy savings for the company.


One idea in particular appealed to the stretch film and pallet  
wrap supplier: using “free cooling” to chill water for the 
production process.


Now, a heat exchanger does the work of chilling the water,  
which means chiller compressors that use a lot of electricity can 
be shut down. 


“When you’re in Wisconsin, free cooling can provide a lot of 
value to companies that operate chillers,” said Jeff Forbes, energy 
services representative for Kaukauna. “Hi-Tech’s compressors 
were running often, but now during the colder months they hardly 
run at all.” 


Because Hi-Tech Plastics installed the new system within six 
months of the audit, the company received a limited-time incentive 
from WPPI Energy as well as an incentive from Focus on Energy, 
bringing down the total cost of the $115,000 project by $40,000.


The free cooling system can be used throughout most of the fall, 
winter and spring, yielding energy savings that result in a payback 
period of less than two years. 


“The system has far surpassed our expectations and eliminated a 
production bottleneck, providing elevated production rates,” said 


Jim Thielke, production manager at Hi-Tech Plastics.


Over the last two years, WPPI Energy member utilities have 
conducted 30 industrial assessments and have developed work 
plans with some of their largest customers.


“We’re always trying to keep businesses competitive in our 
communities,” said Weston Arndt, energy services representative 
and program coordinator. “The facility energy assessments have 
allowed us to explore a number of new projects with energy-
intensive customers.” 


As a next step, utilities can provide qualifying businesses with 
a study grant—which covers 50 percent of the cost, up to 
$10,000—to investigate the energy-efficiency impact of specific 
improvements, such as compressed air, refrigeration or air 
conditioning.


These efforts fit with the mission of Save Energy Now, which works 
to enhance partnerships between DOE, state government and 
not-for-profit organizations to reduce industrial energy intensity. 
WPPI Energy is one of the program’s four industry partners.


WPPI Energy and member utilities are partnering with area 
industrial assessment centers, or IACs, to deliver energy-
use assessments to qualifying customers.


Those nearest to WPPI Energy’s region are the University 
of Wisconsin-Milwaukee and Iowa State University. 


They are among 24 universities around the country that 
have created IACs, which are funded by the Department 
of Energy. Engineering faculty work with graduate and 
undergraduate students to meet with small and medium-
sized manufacturers and conduct the assessments at no 
cost. Each assessment report identifies an average of 
$55,000 in potential annual savings that a company can 
achieve while improving productivity, reducing waste and 
saving energy, according to the DOE.


WPPI Energy, Members Work With IACs


Kaukauna Utilities provided technical assistance and helped with funding for a recent  
energy-efficiency project at Hi-Tech Plastics, Inc.


ENERY       Business&
News


Jeff Forbes, energy services representative for Kaukauna, left, worked with Jim Thielke, 
production manager at Hi-Tech Plastics, after the company completed an energy assessment.
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DATEBOOK: Spring


eQUEST Energy Modeling Series 
Energy Center University  I  www.ecw.org/university 
•  April 9–11  I  Appleton, Wis.


Industrial Management Workshop: Economic 
Development by Gaining Efficiency (EDGE)
Iowa Energy Center  I  www.iowaenergycenter.org 
•  April 11 I  Ankeny, Iowa


Second Annual Efficiency United Commerical 
& Industrial Energy Conference
This is a free conference for Efficiency United customers 
and contractors. 
Efficiency United  I  www.efficiencyunited.com 
•  April 17  I  Harris, Mich. (Upper Peninsula)
•  May 2  I  Battle Creek, Mich. (Lower Peninsula)


Pump Systems Optimization: Energy 
Efficiency and Bottom-Line Savings
Iowa Energy Center  I  www.iowaenergycenter.org 
•  May 1  I  Johnston, Iowa


LEDs: Lighting in the Age of Electronics 
Energy Center University  I  www.ecw.org/university 
•  May 15  I  Hudson, Wis.
•  May 16  I  Appleton, Wis.


Free On-Demand Webinars 
The Energy Center of Wisconsin  I  www.ecw.org/university 
•  Daylighting in the Midwest: Tools and Analysis          
•  DOE Commercial Lighting Solutions: 


Technical Demonstration               
•  Dynamic Ventilation Reset Strategies              
•  Energy Management Best Practices              
•  Evolving Lighting: Technology and Human Factors
•  Exploring LED Lighting Technology for Facilities
•  LED Lighting: Fact and Fiction             
•  Mastering Infrared Thermography             
•  SSL Technology and LED Lighting: 


New Tools in Your Toolbox
•  Ventilation Update: Products, Codes, Performance 


WPPI Energy and its 51 members in Wisconsin, Upper Michigan and 
Iowa sponsor and provide support for energy education conferences and 
technical workshops benefiting commercial and industrial utility customers. 


Wisconsin regulators have approved WPPI Energy’s request 
to invest in major improvements to one of its primary generating 
resources. Construction will likely begin in April after Minnesota 
Power, the coal facility’s other owner, receives its air permit.


WPPI Energy and Minnesota Power must make a significant 
investment in Boswell Unit 4 to remain in full compliance with state 
and federal environmental rules. 


While utilities in the region are choosing to retire many older and 
smaller coal-fired units, newer and larger plants such as Boswell 
are often being upgraded to allow them to continue to operate for 
many more years. 


Although the project will require WPPI Energy to invest $84.2 
million plus interest during construction and financing costs, WPPI 
Energy and Minnesota Power have each concluded that upgrading 
Boswell is the best option for maintaining an affordable, reliable 
source of baseload power. Boswell can provide 117 megawatts of 
capacity and more than 800,000 megawatt-hours of annual energy, 
meeting a significant portion of the power supply needs of WPPI 
Energy’s 51 member utilities in Wisconsin, Michigan and Iowa. 


WPPI Energy considered alternatives to the Boswell project, 
including constructing a natural gas plant, using additional 
renewable energy sources, purchasing power at market prices, and 
implementing extensive energy conservation efforts, but found no 
other reasonable, cost-effective options. 


Coal still remains the largest source of U.S. energy, but it’s 
expected to decline from 42 percent of all generation in 2011 to 35 
percent by 2040, the U.S. Department of Energy says. According 


to the National Center for 
Policy Analysis, coal-fired 
electricity generation has 
already decreased 10 
percent in the United States 
over the past decade, while 
natural gas generated 
electricity increased 50 
percent. 


WPPI Energy had already 
established a power 
supply mix that’s more 
than one-third carbon-
free. A purchased power agreement with Point Beach Nuclear 
Plant and significant renewable resources have reduced WPPI 
Energy’s reliance on fossil fuels in advance of state and federal 
requirements. Of the remaining fossil resources, the Elm Road 
Generating Station—in which WPPI Energy has an 8.33 percent 
ownership stake—is among the cleanest plants of its kind. 


The Boswell retrofit project will reduce mercury, particulate matter 
and sulfur dioxide to comply with the Minnesota Mercury Emission 
Reduction Act (MERA), the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Mercury and Air Toxics Standard (MATS), as well as other enacted 
or pending rules. The project is expected to reduce mercury 
emissions by nearly 90 percent and sulfur dioxide emissions by 
nearly 40 percent.


WPPI Energy will seek financing this year using fixed-rate, tax-
exempt bonds. 


Boswell Improvements to Begin


The Boswell retrofit project will employ up to 500 
construction workers by the time it is completed 
in December 2015.
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Ask the Experts


  How does WPPI Energy generate its load 
   forecasts and how are they used? 


 Our energy forecasts are just one tool that we use for 
maintaining a reliable, affordable power supply for the communities 
we serve.


Each spring we develop a 20-year load forecast for each member 
that projects maximum demand and total energy use by month. 
These forecasts are reviewed again in the fall.


WPPI assumes “normal weather” when developing its projections. 
Energy forecast models use heating degree days (HDD) and 
cooling degree days (CDD) for each month; demand models 
use CDD on the day of the peak, minimum temperature and dew 
point. WPPI uses an average over the past 15 years of actual 
weather data to represent normal weather.


In some cases, adjustments are made to the forecasts to account 
for any large commercial and industrial customers that have 
moved into or left the communities. 


WPPI Energy uses these forecasts for power supply planning, 
budgeting, rate development and financial forecasting. Our 
Billing and Rates department uses this information for rate 
development and to develop five-year projections for member 
utilities. Member utilities use the five-year projections in their 
financial planning and budgeting. 


WPPI also submits the forecasts to regulatory agencies including 
the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSC), the Midwest 
Independent System Operator (MISO) and the North American 
Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC). 


 


Q:


A:


Your Questions Answered: Have a question you’d like 
answered by one of WPPI Energy’s experts? E-mail 
your inquiry to PowerReport@wppienergy.org.


Todd Komplin is director of planning analyses and 
NERC standards compliance officer at WPPI Energy.
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Municipal Customer Privacy Bill introduced; 
committee public hearing scheduled for April 2 


 Assembly Bill 106 and Senate Bill 103 
are the formal names given to the municipal 
customer privacy bill drafted by State  
Representative Mark Honadel and State 
Senator Paul Farrow on 
beha l f  o f  MEUW  
Member utilities. The 
legislative process contin-
ues and the Assembly 
Energy and Utilities 
Committee will hold a 
public hearing on the 
matter on Tuesday, April 
2 in Room 225 Northwest 
Capitol beginning at 
11:00 a.m. If the bill is 
reported out from the Committee favorably, 
the soonest it could reach the Assembly floor 
for action would be between April 9 and 18. 


“We are very appreciative of the  
leadership of Rep. Honadel and Senator 
Farrow in taking the lead on this important 
issue,” said Scott Meske, MEUW Interim 
Executive Director. “MEUW Members have 
contacted their legislators and helped  


emphasize the importance of this piece of 
legislation for their customers. That is  
evident by the 31 cosponsors on the bill, both 
Republicans and Democrats.” 


 Meske said the next 
steps in the legislative 
process are critical to  
ensure the bill is passed 
in a timely fashion. 
“MEUW Members can 
use SB103 and AB106 as 
a reason to contact their 
state legislators and ask 
for their support. If their 
representative or senator 


has already signed on to the bill, it’s a great 
time to reinforce their support and thank 
them for cosponsorship.” 


If passed and signed into law, the bill gives 
customers assurance that their data remains a 
private issue between them and their local  
utility. The measure would also reconcile a gray 
area between Public Service Commission rules 
pertaining to customer information and  
statutory Open Records Laws. 


UPCOMING MEUW 
EVENTS: 


MEUW Executive Director search on schedule 
The MEUW Executive Director Search 


Committee, chaired by MEUW 1st Vice 
President Jerry Ewert (Black River Falls) is 
continuing on schedule. Interviews have been 
conducted and the MEUW Executive  
Committee will be reviewing the search  
committee’s recommendations the first week 
of April. After which the full MEUW Board 


of Directors will hold a special meeting to 
approve the final candidate and compensa-
tion package. 


It is anticipated a formal announcement 
will be made sometime in mid-April and the 
new executive director, MEUW’s fourth full 
time leader, will be on the job in mid-May. 
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Not many states can boast a public power delegation 
of 63 mayors, village presidents, city council and village 
board members, utility managers and commissioners at 
the annual APPA Legislative Rally. Wisconsin’s  
contingent  ranks among the largest annually, and this 
year was no exception. The benefit for MEUW Member  


utilities and MEUW 
as an organization 
is stronger relation-
ship building with 
staff and congres-
sional representa-
tives; which in turn 
increases influence. 
In a word – grass 
roots lobbying. 


This year Wisconsin’s public 
power officials had face to face 
meetings with Wisconsin’s  
newest US Senator, Tammy  
Baldwin, as well as US Reps 
Mark Pocan, Ron Kind, Jim  
Sensenbrenner, Tom Petri, Sean 
Duffy and Reid Ribble. Wisconsin 
Rapids Mayor Zack Vruwink is a 
first time participant in the rally 
and said the trip was very benefi-
cial. 


“It’s a great opportunity to 
see first hand how much effort is 
made in support of public power 
and our issues,” said Mayor  


Vruwink. “It’s very important to 
meet with members of Congress 
in person and talk through things 
like tax exempt financing so they 
and their staffs understand these 
things matter to us back in  
Wisconsin.” 


 Wisconsin attendees partici-
pated in the APPA Legislative  
& Resolutions Committee pro-
ceedings, spent time on Capitol 
Hill, and networked and interacted 
with public power advocates from 
around the country over the three 
day event. Next year the APPA 
Legislative Rally is scheduled for 
March 10-12, 2014.  


Lobbying Congress the old fashioned way in DC 
2013 APPA Legislative Rally 


Rep. Reid Ribble (R-8th) greets Mayor Gene Rosin 
(Kaukauna) as Utility Commissioner John Moore 
(Kaukauna) looks on. 


 


Wisconsin members of the 5th Congressional District meet with Rep. Jim  
Sensenbrenner (R-5th) in his D.C. office to speak on behalf of public power com-
munities, the challenges ahead, and the benefits of a municipally-owned utility. 


(L-R): Brad Mashek (Westby), Rep. Ron Kind (D-
3rd), Doris Bautch (Whitehall), Mayor Dan Jefson 
(Westby), Mayor Zack Vruwink (Wisconsin  
Rapids), and Travis Cooke (Trempealeau). 


Wisconsin members of the 8th Congressional District (L-R): Jeff 
Feldt (Kaukauna), Roger Steingraber (New London), Mayor Gene 
Rosin (Kaukauna), Steve Thompson (New London), Mike Peters 
(WPPI Energy), Lee Myerhofer (Kaukauna), Randy Jaeckels (New 
Holstein), Mayor Diane Reese (New Holstein), John Moore 
(Kaukauna), and Mayor Gary Henke (New London). 


(L-R): Zak Bloom (Waupun), David Dederich, (Manitowoc), Rep. Tom Petri (R-
6th), Nilaksh Kothari (Manitowoc), Mayor Donald Merkes, (Menasha), Dennis 
Dedering (Kiel), Jill Hennessey (Manitowoc), Tom Bushman (Two Rivers), and 
Gregory Buckley (Two Rivers). 
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Stay safe during disconnection season 
Steve Hedden, MEUW Job Training and Safety Instructor 


 While most people 
think of April 15 as the day 
they have to buckle down, 
round up all those receipts, 
and file their taxes, Wisconsin 
electric utility personnel 
have a different perspec-
tive. That date is when the 
“winter moratorium” ends, 
and for Wisconsin electric 


utilities, it means the start of “shut off or disconnection 
season.” 


 For utility office personnel it means sending out  
disconnection notices and fielding phone calls from  
customers. For field staff it means the unpleasant job of 
going to someone’s home and disconnecting the electric 
service.  Line personnel are frequently confronted by  
upset customers while trying to carry out their work on 
energized equipment.  When people already suffering 
from other psychological stressors in their lives are facing 
the loss of their electric service it can sometimes be “the 
last straw” for them.  Last year an electric utility  
employee, working for an electric cooperative in  
Mississippi, was killed by a customer when he went to the 
home to disconnect electric service. 


 When a customer shows signs of anxiety, it is  
important for utility personnel to have empathy for the 
customer’s situation.  Listen, but always maintain space 
between yourself and the customer, to allow for reaction 
time.  Maintaining a calm demeanor can be an important 
factor in managing a customer who is being verbally  
abusive. It is also important for office staff to communicate 
to field staff when the verbal aggression started with a 
phone call to the utility office. Warning field staff of  
potentially aggressive customers puts them on “high alert” 
when they attempt to disconnect power at these  


residences. If possible, have another employee or police 
officer on the premises during a disconnection, which can 
help diffuse a potentially troublesome situation. Staying 
focused and alert will help allow all utility personnel to 
experience a safe disconnect season. 


 During MEUW’s Job Training & Safety (JT&S)  
Program Course Three, Session E & F training, some 
parts of the sessions were focused on recognizing and 
managing aggressive behavior by customers, along with 
tips for installing or removing electric meters.  Here are 
some tips on meter safety: 


1. Damaged or worn meter sockets can pose a  
significant hazard with little warning. It is  
imperative that proper PPE is worn while installing 
or removing electric meters. 


2. Rubber gloves with protectors shall be worn when 
installing or removing energized electric metering 
equipment. 


3. Proper FR clothing, hard hat, and safety glasses 
are mandatory protective equipment for employees 
working on or near energized metering equip-
ment. A face shield is recommended as the arc 
flash is always more significant when it happens 
in a “box” where it is magnified and directed right 
back at the worker. 


4. Always be aware of your surroundings as dogs,  
property hazards, and aggressive customers can 
each pose unseen hazards. 


5. Always check for backfeed when reconnecting 
electric service. 


Remember to use best safety  
practices on every job, and especially 
during this disconnection season!  



www.jrundergroundllc.com

mailto:ray@acengineer.com

www.acengineer.com
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 There is an old saying “Red sky in the morning,  
sailors take warning, red sky at night, sailors delight.”  
This saying was developed 
before satellite, radar, and all 
the weather related gadgets 
were developed. There is 
still some truth to keeping an 
eye on the sky and paying  
attention to current weather, 
forecasts, patterns, and  
conditions. 


 Pre-planning for work 
can lead to a successful  
project or outing.  But what 
does pre-planning include?  
For some it may just be 
grabbing gloves, hat, or a 
rain jacket.  For utility workers 
it may include much more than this to ensure safe operat-
ing conditions in the field so the jobsite remains injury 
free.  A utility worker has to be concerned with wind 
speeds during pole setting operations or rainfall during an 
excavation project.  There may be winter projects where 
employees are exposed to extremely cold conditions that 
could also include poor visibility.  Winter can also bring 
poor driving conditions that continue to deteriorate.  Or 
on the extreme opposite end, there could be a summer 
project with excessive heat and humidity that could lead 
to heat related illnesses for employees. 


 So how does a supervisor handle all of the possible 
changes that they may be faced with each day?  It begins 
with monitoring weather forecasts for you area.  Some-
times we may need to reschedule projects or plan around 
weather conditions.  It could also mean rotating work 
crews so they are not exposed to the extreme hot and cold 
weather conditions for extended periods of time.  These 
conditions make work more difficult for the crews in the 


field and sometimes it may lead to delays.  Supervisors 
need to encourage employees to work safely.  Rushing to 


make up lost time on a  
project increases potential 
for injuries or damage to 
equipment.  There is a direct 
correlation that when people 
are rushing they increase 
their risk for injury. 


 Here are some quick 
tips for successful perform-
ance: 
 Scheduling – when  
possible, schedule projects 
during fair weather days or 
encourage inside work dur-
ing poor weather conditions. 


 Travel – allow enough time for delays and poor 
road conditions. 


 Slips and Falls – scan area before exiting  
vehicles, use three points of contact when exiting, 
and take smaller steps during travel. 


 Rushing – whether it is driving, performing work 
tasks, or pre planning activities, rushing can lead 
to critical errors...don’t rush! 


 Tailgate Meetings – Conduct tailgate or job  
briefing meeting prior to the start up of any  
project.  This is especially critical during projects 
involving multiple departments, or utilities  
working together during mutual aid events. 


 The force of nature can be beautiful, but also very 
damaging at times.  With proper planning we can put the 
odds in our favor for a successful,  
injury free project.  


Keeping an eye on the sky; forecasting and planning for safety 
Jeff Helgestad,  MEUW Regional Safety Coordinator 



www.boardmanclark.com

www.borderstates.com
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 Transmission and Distribution 


 Red Pine, SYP, Doug Fir, and WRC 


 Disposal Programs 


 Laminated Wood Structures 


 Local Treated Stock Available 


www.blpole.com 


Sarah Dunlavy 
Cell: 715‐492‐0188 


sarah.dunlavy@blpole.com 


Manufacturing in Barron, WI 


 


Two teams from MEUW Member 
Utilities participate in 2013 APPA 
Lineworker Rodeo 
Josh Rohan, Tony Stobbe, and Tyler 
Leick from Kaukauna Utilities, and 
Craig Clemmensen, Tim Stelpflug, and 
Jason Otto from Oconomowoc Utilities 
competed in the APPA Lineworker  
Rodeo March 22-23, in Florida, with 
lineman from all over the US. “It’s  
fascinating to see the exceptional skills 
these lineworkers showcase,” said 
MEUW JT&S Instructor Lonnie Mesar. 
All six linemen have competed in  
previous MEUW Lineman’s Skills  
Competitions. This year’s MEUW Skills 
Competition will again be hosted by 
Oconomowoc Utilities on August 9, 
2013. For a complete list of APPA  
Rodeo results click the APPA link above. 


MEUW Members receive national 
safety honors for 2012 
Nineteen MEUW Members out of 112 
utilities around the nation were recipients 
of the APPA 2012 Safety Award during 
APPA’s Engineering & Operations 
(E&O) Technical Conference last week 
in Kissimmee, FL. Entrants were placed 
in categories according to number of 
worker hours and judged for the most  
incident-free records in 2012. Group A 
(less than 15,000 worker-hours) first 
place winners are Reedsburg Utility 
Commission, Rice Lake Utilities,  
Columbus Water & Light, City Utilities 
of Richland Center, Medford Utilities, 
Lodi Utilities, Muscoda Utilities, with 
honorable mention to New Holstein 
Utilities.  
Group B (15,000 - 29,999 worker hours) 
first place winners are Sturgeon Bay 
Utilities, Stoughton Utilities, Two Rivers 
Water & Light, Black River Falls  
Municipal Utilities, Waupun Utilities, 
and Brodhead Water & Light.  
Group C (30,000 - 59,999 worker 


hours) first place winners are Menasha 
Utilities and Oconomowoc Utilities with 
Wisconsin Rapids Water Works & 
Lighting Commission receiving honor-
able mention. 
Kaukauna Utilities received first place 
along with six other utilities in Group D 
(60, 000 - 109,000 worker hours). 
The 2012 MEUW Safety Achievement 
Award recipients are listed on page 6. 
Congratulations to all municipal utilities 
with exceptional safety records during 
2012! 


MEUW Members receive APPA 
RP3® designation 
Last week in Kissimmee, FL, five 
MEUW Members were designated as 
2013 APPA Reliable Public Power  
Provider (RP3®) Utilities at the  
annual APPA E&O Conference. Two 
Rivers Water & Light received Diamond 
Level status and has maintained RP3® 
status since 2007; City Utilities of  
Richland Center (RP3® status since 
2009) and River Falls Municipal Utilities 
(RP3® status since 2007) received  
Platinum Level status; and Evansville 
Water & Light and Wisconsin Rapids 
Water Works & Lighting Commission 
(RP3® status since 2011) received Gold 
Level status. 


APPA’s RP3® Program recognizes  
utilities across the nation that demonstrate 
high proficiencies in reliability, safety, 
work force development, and system 
improvement. RP3® designation is valid 
for three years, which is new criteria this 
year. Validation was only for two years 
prior to 2013. A complete list of  RP3® 
designees and information regarding the 
program is available on the APPA  
website  by clicking the link above. 


Cadott Light & Water Dept.  
Superintendent Ray Weiland retired 
After 37 years as Superintendent of  
Cadott Light & Water, Ray Weiland, Sr. 
retired on February 28, 2013. MEUW 
thanks Weiland for his years in public 
power. Best wishes are extended to Ray 
on his future endeavors. 


Plymouth Utilities Manager  
announces retirement 
Plymouth Utilities Manager John 
MacKinnon announces his retirement 
effective October 1, 2013. MacKinnon 
has spent 31 years working for the City 
of Plymouth. “It has been an honor and 
a privilege to conclude my career as 
the head of Plymouth Utilities,” 
MacKinnon stated.  


MEUW Member News and TidbitsMEUW Member News and TidbitsMEUW Member News and Tidbits   


Send your Member news and tidbits to Shari Baumann at sbaumann@meuw.org 


(L-R): Tom Bushman (Two Rivers), Charlie Beranek (River Falls), Dale Bender 
(Richland Center), and Mark Sendelbach (Evansville) accept APPA RP3 ® status 
awards for their utilities at last week’s ceremony. 
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April 10, 2013 
MEUW Legislative & Regulatory Committee 
Teleconference 


May 10, 2013 
MEUW Board of Directors 
Meeting - Wisconsin Rapids 


Mark Willms 
mwillms@intren.com 
15350 W. National Ave, Suite 201  
New Berlin, WI 53151       
(262) 786‐1779 


SERVING A FULL SPECTRUM OF ELECTRICAL & GAS UTILITY NEEDS: 


Gas Distribution 
Cathodic Protection 
Design/Build 
Fault Repair 
Locating Services 


Storm Response 
Overhead & Underground Distribution 
Directional Drilling 
Cable Pulling 
Substations 


www.intren.com 


April 17, 2013 
MEUW Management Certification Program 
 Session ‘C’ 
Wisconsin Dells, WI  


April 23, 2013 
Municipal Legislative Rally Day 
Madison, WI  


April 23-24, 2013 
MEUW Overhead Workshop 
Green Bay, WI  


 
April 24, 2013 
Customers First! Coalition POWER Breakfast 
Madison, WI  


June 26-28, 2013 
MEUW Annual Conference 
Green Bay, WI  


For more information or an up-to-date list of events, visit 
www.meuw.org/events.htm or call 608-837-2263. 


MEUW to recognize safety achievements for 2012 
 Congratulations to the 31 MEUW members who will be 
recognized at the 2013 MEUW Annual Conference in Green 
Bay for safety achievements earned from January 1 - December 
31, 2012.   


 Arcadia Electric Utility, Bangor Municipal Utility, Brodhead 
Water & Light, Cedarburg Light & Water Commission,  
Clintonville Water & Electric Utility, Columbus Water & Light 
Department, Eagle River Light & Water Department, City of 
Elkhorn Electric Department, Elroy Electric & Water Utility, 
Fennimore Municipal Utilities, Hustisford Utilities, Juneau 
Utility Commission, Kaukauna Utilities, Kiel Electric Utility, 
Lodi Utilities, Manitowoc Public Utilities, Menasha Utilities, 
New Holstein Utilities, Oconomowoc Utilities, Prairie du Sac 
Electric Department, Reedsburg Utility Commission, City  
Utilities of Richland Center, River Falls Municipal Utilities, 
Sauk City Utilities, Shawano Municipal Utilities, Stoughton 
Utilities, Sturgeon Bay Utilities, Sun Prairie Utilities, Two Rivers 
Water & Light, Waterloo Utilities, Waupun Utilities, and 
Westby Electric & Water Utility are recipients of the MEUW 
2012 Safety Achievement Award. 


 In its thirteenth year, the MEUW Safety Achievement 
Award is a voluntary reporting system that MEUW developed 
to recognize safety achievement, and to encourage pro-active 


safety activities. We encourage all MEUW members to partici-
pate each year, even if injuries have occurred. It helps us track 
injury trends, which then allows us to target particular training 
areas in the future. 


 It takes hard work and commitment from the employees on 
the job site watching out for one another, following safety rules 
and safe work practices — every day, every job. It also takes 
commitment from the utility management and governing board 
to provide the employees with the equipment they need to do 
the job safely, the training to maintain or improve their skills, 
and the knowledge, time, and effort to promote pro-active 
safety practices through regular participation in the MEUW 
Safety Program, seminars and workshops. 


 When employees are safely doing their jobs each day, there 
are real benefits to the utilities. Employee morale is raised,  
reduction or elimination of work related injuries, and monetary 
savings for the utilities.  


  The MEUW Safety Achievement Awards will be given out 
Thursday, June 27, during the MEUW 
Annual Conference in Green Bay. Regis-
tration materials will be available soon. 


Coming Events 
MEUW Committee Meetings/Teleconferences 
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The Village of Slinger is seeking a self-directed, highly motivated, 
team player to fill a full-time Utility Operator position.  Salary range 
$18.00-$23.15 based on qualifications and experience.  Duties will 
include learning the day to day operation of a DNR Grade 3 WWTP 
and a water distribution system that includes 30 miles of distribution 
mains, an iron filter, booster station, two water towers, and three  
municipal wells.  The position requires a valid Wisconsin CDL (with 
airbrakes) or the ability to acquire within 1 year of hiring.  DNR  
licensing in Wastewater, Groundwater and Water Distribution a plus, 
but the opportunity to acquire them will be given to the successful 
candidate.  Slinger offers a full benefit package including Wisconsin 
Retirement.  This position will require residency within 10 miles of the 
Village of Slinger within 12 months of hire.  Weekends, being on-call, 
and holiday work is required on rotation.  Job application available 
online at www.vi.slinger.wi.gov or at Village Hall, 300 Slinger Road, 
Slinger, WI  53086.  Application deadline is 12:00 p.m. on April 15, 
2013.  The successful candidate is required to pass a background 
check, job related physical and pre-employment drug testing prior to 
starting the trial employment period.  EOE. 


The City of New Lisbon (pop 1440) is accepting applications for a 
Director of Public Works.  We are seeking a highly motivated  
individual who will oversee the planning of all related capital projects 
and contracted engineering. All administrative work in supervising and 
physically working with the Public Works Department including 
streets, storm water facilities, water utility, sanitary sewer utility, and 
electric utility as well as maintaining all related budgets. Candidates 
must possess strong skills and/or experience in creative problem  
solving, maintain a budget and interpersonal/communication skills. 
Candidates must have 5 plus years in upper management experience 
with public works and utility operations. Salary is dependent on  
qualification and has a residency requirement. Resume and reference 
deadline is May 10, 2013, and should be sent to: City of New Lisbon, 
Mayor Lloyd Chase, PO Box 26, New Lisbon, WI  53950. 


Municipally-owned Marshfield Utilities is recruiting for an individual 
to fill an Electrical Engineer position.  This position is responsible to 
assist with the study, design, and operation of electric system additions 
and changes, and perform general engineering related projects.   
Minimum qualifications include a Bachelor’s degree in Electrical  
Engineering.  Applicant must live or be willing to relocate within the 
service territory of the Marshfield utility. Resumes will be accepted 
until this position is filled.  Send resume and salary requirements to: 
Human Resources Manager, Marshfield Utilities, PO Box 670,  
Marshfield, WI 54449. According to WI statutes, applications for a 
position with a public authority are subject to release upon request 
under the Wisconsin’s Public Records Law.  However, an applicant 
may indicate in writing that his or her identity should not be disclosed. 


Municipally-owned Marshfield Utilities is recruiting for an individual 
to fill a Power Systems Engineer position. This position is responsible 
to assist with the study and design of electric distribution system  
additions and changes, and perform general engineering related  
projects. Supervise the operation and maintenance of the substations, 
electric metering, combustion turbine generator, and high pressure gas 
line.  Minimum qualifications include a Bachelor’s degree in Electrical 
Engineering with five years of job experience in Electrical Power  
Systems preferred.  Applicant must live or be willing to relocate within 
the service territory of the Marshfield utility. Resumes will be  
accepted until this position is filled.  Send resume and salary  
requirements to: Human Resources Manager, Marshfield Utilities, PO 
Box 670, Marshfield, WI 54449. According to WI statutes,  


applications for a position with a public authority are subject to release 
upon request under the Wisconsin’s Public Records Law.  However, an 
applicant may indicate in writing that his or her identity should not be 
disclosed. 


Municipally-owned Marshfield Utilities is recruiting for an individual 
to fill a Technical Services Manager position. This position is  
responsible for oversight of general safety, information technology, 
energy and water conservation, purchasing functions, and regulatory 
compliance programs. Minimum qualifications include a Bachelor’s 
degree in safety or regulatory compliance or Business Administra-
tion. Applicant must live or be willing to relocate within the service 
territory of the Marshfield utility.  Resumes will be accepted until 
this position is filled.  Send resume and salary requirements to:  
Human Resources Manager, Marshfield Utilities, PO Box 670,  
Marshfield, WI 54449.  According to WI statutes, applications for a 
position with a public authority are subject to release upon request 
under the Wisconsin’s Public Records Law.  However, an applicant 
may indicate in writing that his or her identity should not be disclosed.  


The City of Norway, Michigan is seeking an Electrical Working 
Foreman – Hydro Foreman. This position is a skilled journeyman 
level work in the construction, maintenance, extension and repair of 
overhead and underground electric distribution and transmission lines, 
sub stations and hydro-electric generation in accordance with standard 
trade practices. Employees frequently work at heights with high  
tension lines under unfavorable weather conditions. Work is subjected 
to inspection while in progress and upon completion for quality and 
adherence to safety precautions. Competitive pay rates and benefits per 
IBEW local #219 contract. Click here for more details and application 
information. Posting open until filled. 


The City of Norway, Michigan is seeking a Journeyman Lineman/
Hydro Operator. This position is a skilled journeyman level work in 
the construction, maintenance, extension and repair of overhead and 
underground electric distribution and transmission lines and sub  
stations in accordance with standard trade practices. Employees  
frequently work at heights with high tension lines under unfavorable 
weather conditions. Work is subjected to inspection while in progress 
and upon completion for quality and adherence to safety precautions.  
Competitive pay rates and benefits per IBEW local #219 contract.  
Click here for more details and application information. Posting open 
until filled. 


For an up-to-date list of jobs, 
go to www.meuw.org/jobs.htm. Live Lines Classified Ads 


Click here for April/May APPA 
Webinar Series information. 
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WESCO Delivers: 
More Brands. More Products. More Extra‐Effort Service. 


Whether you are producing energy, delivering energy, managing energy, conserving energy, or 
improving the quality of energy, WESCO Distribution can help you better serve your consumer base! 
 


Ken Leinweber 


Outside Sales‐WI/MI/IL 


119 Roberts Road 


Dousman, WI 53118 


Phone (262) 719‐9581 


kleinweber@wesco.com 


See us on the web at www.wesco.com/utility or www.wescodirect.com 


cfriend@wesco.com 


  PIEPERLINE 
      L I N E   C O N S T R U C T I O N 


●  Overhead               ●  Directional Bore 
●  Underground         ●  Substation cleaning 
●  Substations            ●  Subtransmission 
●  Teledata                 ●  Storm Response  


       
                                       


Melissa Skiffington                                      


    
melissa.skiffington@pieperpower.com 
www.pieperline.com 


5070 N. 35th Street 
Milwaukee, WI 53209 
Phone: 414-349-9697 
Fax: 414-462-6529 


“Clearing The Way To Reliable Energy” 


(715) 428‐2121 makovsky@centurytel.net 
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600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  April 9, 2013 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


  Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Committee Annual Calendar. 


 


The following calendar is provided for information and discussion. 


 


April 15, 2013 Regular Meeting - Stoughton Utilities 2012 Annual 


Audit and Management Letter presentation, 


discussion, approval and recommendation to the 


Common Council - Stoughton Utilities Tax 


Stabilization Dividends discussion, approval, and 


recommendation to the Common 


 


April 23, 2013 Common Council - Stoughton Utilities 2012 Annual 


Audit and Management Letter Presentation and 


Approval - Accept Stoughton Utilities Tax 


Stabilization Dividends Recommendation 


   


May 5-11, 2013 Drinking Water Week 


 


May 20, 2013 Regular Meeting - First Regular Meeting after the 


Common Council Reorganization Meeting - Elect 


Committee Chair and Vice Chair - Elect Committee 


Liaison and Alternate Liaison - Establish Meeting 


Time and Monthly Meeting Date - Council 


Stoughton Utilities Goals Status Report - Review 


Wisconsin Public Service Commission (WPSC) 


Annual Electric and Water Reports - Tour 


Stoughton Utilities Building 


 


June 6, 2013 WPPI Energy Orientation Meeting in Sun Prairie 


 


June 10-14, 2013 American Water Works Association (AWWA) 


National Conference 







 


June 16-20, 2013 American Public Power Association (APPA) 


National Conference 


 


June 17, 2013 Regular Meeting - Approve and recommend the 


Wastewater Compliance Maintenance Annual 


Report (CMAR) and Resolution to the Common 


Council - Discuss Stoughton Utilities 2012 


Accomplishments -  


 


June 25, 2013 Common Council - Approve the recommended 


Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR) 


and adopt the corresponding Resolution 


  


June 26-28, 2013 Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW) 


Annual Conference in Stevens Point 


July14-20, 2013 Public Power Week 


 


July 15, 2013 Regular Meeting - Stoughton Utilities RoundUp 


Donation - Approve Stoughton Utilities Ten Year 


(2014-2023) Capital Projects Program and 


recommend it to the Stoughton Common Council - 


Annual Stoughton Utilities Studies Discussion 


 


July 18, 2013 Stoughton Utilities Public Power Celebration 


 


August 19, 2013 Regular Meeting - Approve the Stoughton Utilities 


2014 Budget including the Non-Represented 


employees wage adjustments and recommend to the 


Stoughton Common Council - Tour the Wastewater 


Treatment Facility  


  


September 12, 2013 WPPI Energy (WPPI) Annual Conference in 


Madison 


 


September 16, 2012 Regular Meeting  


 


September 17-20, 2013 Wisconsin Water Federation (AWWA) Annual 


Conference in Wisconsin Dells 


 


October 22-25, 2013 Wisconsin Wastewater Operators Association 


Annual Conference in Stevens Point 


 


October 21, 2013 Special Meeting - Conduct hearings for the 2013 


Tax Roll Nomination 


 


October 21, 2013 Regular Meeting - Annual Stoughton Utilities Goals 


Discussion and Approval - North Electric 


Substation Tour 


 







October 22, 2013 WPPI Energy Orientation Meeting in Sun Prairie 


 


October 24, 2013 Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW) 


District Dinner Meeting in Sun Prairie 


 


November 18, 2013 Regular Meeting  


 


December 5, 2013  Stoughton Utilities Holiday Open House 


 


December 16, 2013 Regular Meeting - Well No. 5 Tour 


 


January 15-17, 2014 Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW) 


Superintendents Conference in Wisconsin Dells 


 


January 21, 2014 Regular Meeting - Stoughton Utilities RoundUp 


Donation 


 


February 21, 2014   Regular Meeting - Declaration(s) of Official Intent 


 


March 9-12, 2014 American Public Power Association (APPA) 


Legislative Rally in Washington, D.C. 


 


March 17, 2014 Regular Meeting - Agricultural Land Rental 


recommendation to the Common Council - Write 


Off’s - Review Drinking Water Consumer 


Confidence Report (CCR) 


 


March 25, 2014 Common Council Meeting - Approve Agricultural 


Land Rental and Write Off’s 


 


March 23-26, 2014 American Public Power Association (APPA) 


Engineering and Operations Conference in 


Minneapolis, MN 


 


March 25-27, 2014 Wisconsin Rural Water Association (WRWA) 


Annual Conference in Green Bay 


 


cc: Sean O Grady 


      Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent  








   Stoughton Utilities 
Activities Reports 


 
 


           MARCH 2013 
 


 
ADMINISTRATION – Utilities Director Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 
 
The colder than normal temperature variations for the month caused some challenges 
for Stoughton Utilities.  Electric system vegetative management and mandated 
infrastructure inspections continued to occur along with weather related response 
issues.  The Screw Pump Replacement Project proceeded on schedule at the 
wastewater treatment facility.  Water and wastewater staff remained involved with 
wastewater treatment facility construction and maintenance, sanitary sewer cleaning 
and televising, and water system maintenance.  Several projects scheduled for 2013 
are proceeding as planned.  Efforts on working with customers to meet their financial 
obligations continued.  Water service disconnections continued.  New customer 
construction continues to occur, and with few exceptions, our large commercial and 
industrial customers are operating at increased production.  All staff responses were 
handled in exemplary fashion.  Efforts to fill vacant positions proceeded on schedule.    
 
ACCOUNTING – Utilities Accounting and Administrative Manager Kim M. 
Jennings, CPA 
 
Accomplishments: 
 


 Completed and filed PSC Electric and Water Annual Reports. 


 Completed training on lockbox services and finalized account set-up. 


 Prepared final payment and documentation for 2003 Electric Revenue Bonds 
(refunded). 


 Work order allocations and closing. 


 A/P, CCER, payroll and treasury management approvals. 


 Investment sales/purchases and income tracking.   


 Monthly account reconciliation, reporting and billing statistics for February 2013. 
 
In Progress: 
 


 Upcoming training on Microsoft Dynamics Work Order module. 


 Updating 5-year cash forecasts – Electric, Water and Wastewater Divisions. 


 Monthly account reconciliation and reporting for March 2013. 
 
 


 







CUSTOMER SERVICES AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES DIVISION – Utilities 
Office and Information Systems Supervisor Brian R. Hoops 


 


Activities & Accomplishments: 


 Staff processed 8,911 payments totaling $1.68 million, including 4,628 checks, 
598 credit cards, 813 online E-Pay payments, 1,894 automated bank 
withdrawals, 692 direct bank payments, and over $19,000 in cash.  


 Staff processed customer credits from our local Commitment to Community 
program as well as Wisconsin’s energy assistance program.  96 customers 
received benefits totaling over $7,400. 


 Staff pursued threats of electric service disconnections for delinquent commercial 
accounts and water service disconnections for delinquent residential accounts.  
Eight water accounts wound up being disconnected.  Staff is busy preparing for 
the upcoming end of the winter disconnection moratorium.  Beginning April 15, 
we will begin disconnecting the electric services of delinquent residential 
accounts. 


 No customer inquiries or complaints were reported to the Wisconsin Public 
Service Commission (PSC) during the month of March.  As always, division staff 
is doing an excellent job or problem solving and working with customers to come 
to an acceptable resolution, which generally eliminates the need for PSC 
involvement. 


 Utilities Office & Information Systems Supervisor Brian Hoops attended a water 
IT & Security conference, participated in the candidate selection and interviews 
for the new Customer Service Technician position, worked to finalize our new 
Paperless E-Billing service, worked to configure our new Lockbox payment 
processing service which will go into effect April 1, worked to install and configure 
our new color copy machine, evaluated Microsoft Office 2010 for potential 
upgrade, made numerous modifications to our System Center Configuration 
Manager server and SQL databases to improve performance, made numerous 
modifications to our organization’s Group Policy Objects to clean up standard 
system and software settings, worked to diagnose a remote access issue that is 
preventing our SCADA vendor from making remote configuration changes, setup 
our Voiceshot.com account and call scripts for outbound calling using text-to-
speech (which replaces our Teleworks service used in 2012), and continued the 
2013 IT system upgrades/replacements with five new workstation upgrades. 


 Utilities Billing Technician Erin Bothum completed the monthly utility billing as 
well as issued 118 final billing statements for customers who have moved from 
their prior addresses.  In addition, she continued to research and correct new 
storm water services, assisted with the implementation of the new Paperless E-
Billing service and attended a training session on how to send the E-Bills, and 
worked to make changes to our 10-day disconnect notices and door hangers to 
reflect the end of after-hours service reconnections. 


  







 Utilities Accounts Receivable Technician Enecia Sabroff continues to work 
diligently on ensuring customer’s accounts remain current as well as obtaining 
customer deposits from accounts that have proven to be unreliable in making 
payment. So far in 2013 we have requested 141 customer deposits totaling 
$62,268.  In addition, numerous Wisconsin Tax Refund Intercept Program (TRIP) 
payments have been coming in as customers with delinquent balances have their 
balances automatically deducted from their WI tax refund payments; YTD totals 
are $3,523 from 16 accounts. 


 Utilities Accounts Specialist Shannon Gunsolus kept busy with general 
accounting tasks, including payroll, accounts payable, customer account 
corrections, customer service and daily cash deposits. 


 Our new G.I.S. Technician, Louis Rada, started employment at SU on March 11.  
Since then, Lou has been spending a lot of time getting settled into his new role, 
as well as familiarizing himself with our GIS data and maps, infrastructure, 
service territory, and operations.  He has also begun documenting our system 
and methods, and is currently prioritizing his list of planned future improvements 
and modifications. 


 


ELECTRIC DIVISION AND PLANNING DIVISION – Utilities Operations 
Superintendent Sean O Grady 


 
Two-Way Radio Communications:  General Communications has struggled over the 
past several months to get our radio service back up to what we had before the pre- 
mandated narrow band frequency update.  It’s not only frustrating for me but our staff 
relies on the service for communications and personal safety when working in the field.  
We never had issues like this when we worked with Evans Communications. 
 
Hybrid Bucket Truck No. 16.  The battery pack was replaced successfully in February 
along with some warranty work on the boom.  When the equipment was tested before 
being placed back in service by DUECO, they found the DC to DC convert along with a 
fuse failed.  The converter was in stock and the fuse had a 7 day lead time.  We had the 
truck back by mid- March. 
 
Wisconsin Clean Cities:  Previously scheduled meetings between our staff and Clean 
Cities Program Administrators had to be canceled due to the lack of equipment 
available for inspection.  We’ve tentatively scheduled a meeting in April to review our 
program successes and failures.   
 
After Hour Trouble Calls:  This month we had two trouble calls.  One was for a squirrel 
that made contact with the tank and jumper at a transformer setting knocking out 
electric service to approximately 5 residential customers.  We also had two car vs. pole 
accidents in the rural area of our service territories with one pole required replacement. 
 
 







Line Clearance Work:  Unlike last year, we had several days of rain, snow and colder 
temperatures that hampered our ability to meet our goals this year.  After completing 
performance reviews with staff, several staff members had the same idea to stay on 
track they suggested we could improve moral and boost production by rotating crews 
weekly and setting time aside to meet with crews to establish goals and objectives.  We 
implemented the change immediately and will be monitoring the success.  Staff will 
continue with line clearance work through mid to late April.  Distribution reconstruction 
projects will begin in May. 
 
APPA eReliability Software:  This year, we started using APPA’s eReliability software, 
hosted and supported by APPA to monitor and track our electric outages.  This new 
software uses industry standards for reporting the types of outages along with the time it 
takes our crews to safely restore power.  At the end of the calendar year, we are able to 
look at how many outages we had by type, location, substation, feeder, and time it took 
to restore power.  The software also calculates several industry standards for reporting 
such as the number of times a customer is interrupted during a specific time period, the 
average time a customer is interrupted, the average length of an interruption, and the 
total number of momentary interruptions less than five minutes.  The annual reports are 
included in our RP3 application and we also share the data with other utilities that are 
benchmarking how successful their utilities are compared to other comparable size 
utilities. 
 
 2013 Street and Utility Construction Projects:  A public bid opening was held on 
Wednesday, March 13, 2013 at the Utilities Office.  Five bids were received. S&L 
Underground and Trucking was the apparent low bidder with a bid of $928,705. 
 
WDNR Monthly Reporting:  After several attempts and revisions to the electronic files 
and working with Strand and Associates, we were able to submit our first electronic 
monthly pumpage report to the WDNR.  Next month will be a breeze and I’ll be training 
the other two water operators on the process. 
 
Schools/Training for the Month:  Government Affairs Meeting, attended by Brian 
Erickson and myself;  Wisconsin Rural Water Association Annual Conference, attended 
by Brian Erickson and myself; Substation Apprenticeship School attended by Larry 
Donaldson; MEUW Job Safety and Training for Lineman hosted by Stoughton Utilities 
with participation from Brodhead, Evansville Mount Horeb and New Glarus utilities; and 
Hazard Communications, Emergency Action Plan and Blood Borne Pathogens for all 
affected Stoughton Utilities employees.  
 
Statistical Numbers for the Past Month: 
New Customers-0 
Service Upgrades-2 
Temporary Services-1 
Service Repairs-1 
 
 







WASTEWATER DIVISION – Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor Brian G. 
Erickson 
 
2013 WWTP projects:  We continue to work with engineers on a major plant 
improvement project that will include all of the plant electrical equipment and the 
digester mixing process.  
 
Screw Pump Project:  Contractors have pulled out the east screw pump and removed 
the old grout and installed the new screw pump.  The contractor is now waiting for 
warmer weather to pour the new channel.  They will repeat this process for the west 
screw pump weather permitting.   
 
2013 Sanitary Sewer Project:  We continue to work with engineers on this project.  This 
will included the replacement of sewers and manholes on Milwaukee, Ridge and Hillside 
Streets. 
 
Sean Grady and I attended the annual Rural Water Convention in Green Bay.  We 
attended classes on water and waste water technologies, new regulations and laws and 
networked with other operators.   
 
Staff attended the following training: Emergency Action Plan and Blood Borne 
Pathogen. 
 
8th Street lift station:  We had two pump failures with this lift station due to debris being 
disposed of through the sewer system in March. 
 
Staff continues to work on plant maintenance projects throughout the plant.  
   
The wastewater treatment facility processed an average flow of 0.959 million gallons 
per day with a monthly total of 28.780 million gallons.   
 
WATER DIVISION – Utilities Water System Supervisor Roger M. Thorson 
 
With spring weather arriving late this year, the start of our outdoor spring projects have 
been pushed back to late March and some will run into April. The most important one of 
those projects is our spring flushing of our water mains. We flush some of the older 
parts of the city along with the far outer limits of the city. We continue flushing different 
areas of the city throughout the summer months. Come September, we start our fall 
flushing program. We flush all of our 650 hydrants throughout the city which takes 
almost three weeks to complete. The purpose of flushing is to remove sediment and 
mineral deposits that settle on the bottom of the water mains and also to exercise the 
fire hydrants. 
 
Working with our engineers preparing for the start of our water main replacements for 
2013. These projects should get started in early spring.  
 
Again this month we are busy working on changing out and testing our larger water 
meters throughout the City.  







Water staff participated in classroom safety training on the following subjects in March. 
Emergency action plan and blood borne pathogens training. 
 
Total water pumped for the month of March was 39,698,000 gallons.  
 
ENERGY SERVICES SECTION OF THE PLANNING DIVISION – Stoughton 
Utilities/WPPI Energy Energy Services Representative (ESR) Cory Neeley 
 


 I attended a presentation from Jeff Rich (Executive Director of GL Envision) and the 
Stoughton Hospital advisory committee.  Jeff talked about the program they offer 
and I presented the hospital with an energy use and cost report that Jeff used to 
conduct a baseline energy use analysis.  The initial report from Jeff is that Stoughton 
Hospital uses much less energy than other benchmarked hospitals.   


 I met with the new large power Focus On Energy Representative Tex Reitter and 
two of our largest customers (Uniroyal Engineered Products and Stoughton 
Trailers).    Tex has a ton of experience and was enthusiastic about getting to work 
helping these customers with efficient technologies. 


 Uniroyal Engineered Products may have a large lighting project to complete, which 
could be the majority of their lighting.  It seems that the corporate leadership is 
looking to spend more money on the plant.  They also recently merged with another 
facility in England. 


 Stoughton Trailers is considering applying for a staffing grant to tackle some larger 
projects dealing with compressed air and welding processes.  Tex said he is going to 
take a look into what they may be able to get. 


 Focus On Energy has added some new prescriptive incentives including more 
options for LED lighting, food service equipment, and several other technologies.  
The small business program has been moderately changed, adding walk in cooler 
strips to the gold package and some other new co-pay options. 


 I spoke with Mark Miller about Cummins.  They are interested in having me come 
over to look at the Power Profiler data with them. 


 We continue to get customers enrolled in the Small Business program.  We have not 
had many apply for the $50 rebate yet, but I anticipate more customers going 
through the program and as more hear about the program, more should take 
advantage of the rebate. 


 I contacted the Stoughton Rotary Club to offer a presentation on the Small Business 
program to them. They said that they were interested and would add me to the list of 
potential speakers this year. 


 We are very close to having materials ready for the 100% club.  This program is 
designed to get businesses access to the benefits of renewable energy and use 
marketing to offset the cost of adding renewable blocks to their bill. 


 
Dates in Stoughton 
 
March 3, 7,12,14,19,21,26,27, and 28 
 
 
 
 







SAFETY AND COMPLIANCE SECTION OF THE PLANNING DIVISION – Stoughton 
Utilities/Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW) Southeastern Regional 
Safety Coordinator Christopher Belz 
 
Accomplishments 
  


Training  
 Prepare/conduct multiple sessions of Emergency Action Plan Training 
 Prepare and conduct multiple sessions of Blood Borne Pathogens 


Training 
 
Audits/Inspections  


 Completed a Facility Inspection 
 Completed a Forklift compliance inspection 


    Compliance/Risk Management  


 Complete MEUW Safety Award Application 
 Review LO/TO periodic inspections on Energy Control Procedures 
 Safety Data Sheet and Chemical Inventory Update 
 Review Incident reports 
 Review/Audit Confined Space Entry Written Program 


 
Goals & Objectives 
 
 Training 


 Employee make up training audit 
 


 Audits/Inspections  
 Inspect Crews for proper Work Zone set ups and Personal Protective 


Equipment   
 Perform facility inspections in all Stoughton Utilities facilities 


     Compliance/Risk Management  


 Review Emergency Action Plan 
 Review Forklift Written Program 


 
Scheduled dates MEUW SCRSC Safety Coordinator, Chris Belz, was at Stoughton 
Utilities: March 4, 11 and 18 
 
 
Please visit us on our website at www.stoughtonutilities.com to view current events, 
follow project schedules, view meeting notices and minutes, review our energy 
conservation programs, pay your utilities bill via the internet, or to learn more 
about your Stoughton Utilities Electric, Wastewater and Water services.  
 


 
 



http://www.stoughtonutilities.com/





 
 








 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  April 9, 2013 
 
To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 
 
From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. - Stoughton Utilities Director 
 
Subject: Recommended Actions At The April 15, 2013 Regular Stoughton Utilities 


Committee Meeting. 
 
AGENDA: 


 
• Stoughton Utilities Committee Consent Agenda. 


 
a) Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List Report.  (Review, discuss and accept the 


Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List Report via the consent agenda 
approval.) 


b) Draft Minutes of the March 18, 2013 Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee 
Meeting. (Approve the Draft Minutes of the March 18, 2013 Regular 
Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting via the consent agenda approval.) 


c) Stoughton Utilities February 2013 Financial Summary.  (Discuss and accept the 
Stoughton Utilities February 2013 Financial Summary via the consent 
agenda approval.) 


d) Stoughton Utilities February 2013 Statistical Information.  (Discuss and accept 
the February 2013 Stoughton Utilities Statistical Information via the consent 
agenda approval.) 


e) Stoughton Utilities Communications.  (Discuss and accept the Stoughton 
Utilities Communications via the consent agenda approval.) 


f) Stoughton Utilities Committee Annual Calendar.  (Discuss and accept the 
Stoughton Utilities Committee Annual Calendar via the consent agenda 
approval.) 


g) Stoughton Utilities March 2013 Activities Report.  (Discuss and accept the 
Stoughton Utilities March 2013 Activities Report via the consent agenda 
approval.) 







BUSINESS: 
 


1. Status Of The Stoughton Utilities Recommendation(s) To The Stoughton 
Common Council.  (Discussion.)  (Review and discuss the Stoughton Utilities 
Committee recommendation(s) to the Stoughton Common Council.) 


2. Stoughton Utilities Audit Report And Management Letter.  (Action.)  (Review, 
discuss, approve and recommend the approval and the adoption of the 
corresponding resolution regarding the Stoughton Utilities Audit and 
Management Letter to the Stoughton Common Council on May 14, 2013.) 
 


3. Stoughton Utilities Proposed Electric And Water Tax Stabilization Dividends.  
(Action.) (Review, discuss, approve, and recommend the acceptance of the 
proposed Electric and Water Tax Stabilization Dividends to the Stoughton 
Common Council on April 23, 2013.) 


4. Stoughton Utilities Declarations Of Official Intent Nos. 2013-3 Through 2013-6.  
(Action.)  (Review, discuss, and approve the Stoughton Utilities Declarations 
of Official Intent Nos. 2013-3 through 2013-6.) 


5. Stoughton Utilities Governance. (Discussion and Possible Action.)  (Review, 
discuss, and possibly take action regarding Stoughton Utilities Governance.)    


 
6. Stoughton Utilities Committee Future Agenda Item(s).  (Discussion.)  (Review 


and discuss Stoughton Utilities Committee future meeting agenda item(s).) 


cc: Sean O Grady 
 Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 
 


 
   


 








 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  April 9, 2012 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


  Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Committee Governance. 


 


Information from City Attorney Matt Dregne addressing the Model City Charter 


Provisions For A Public Utilities Authority developed by the American Public Power 


Association and additional previously-developed information is provided for 


consideration. 


 


Encl. 


 


cc: Sean O Grady 


Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 
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Confi dential Memorandum
Privileged Lawyer-Client Communication


To. Robert Kar dasz, Utilities D irector


From Matt Dregne, City Attorney Ø
Date April 10,2013


Re Governance of Municipal Utilities


Bob,


You recently asked me to provide a copy of the materials I prepared in 2009, at the


request of the Utilities Committee, relating to creating a utility commission. I have


enclosed a copy of my December 10,2009 memorandum and draft ordinance.


You also asked me to review the "Model City Charter Provisions" prepared by the


American Public Power Association (the "APPA Model Ordinance"), and comment on


whether the governance structure presented in that document could be used in Wisconsin.


The APPA Model Ordinance establishes a governance structure that provides for
managing a municipal utility through an independent "board of commissioners" and a


"general manager." The board would have independent policy making authority. The


general manager would be appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the board, and would


be responsible for the day-to-day management and operation of the utility.


Wisconsin law authorizes a city to establish a governance structure that is quite similar to


the structure in the APPA Model Ordinance. The City may "provide for the nonpartisan


management of a municipal public utility by creating a commission" under Wis. Stat.


$ 66.0805(l). Under this statute, "the board of commissioners, under the general control


and supervision of the governing body, shall be responsible for the entire management of
and shall supervise the operation of the utility." The commission would be authorizedto


appoint amaîager, who would serve at the pleasure of the commission.


LIDOCS\005649\00 I I 49\À4EMOS\3 I El 055.DOCX
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I have not performed a detailed analysis of the APPA Model Ordinance for consistency


with Wisconsin law.. S/isconsin law may require that some issues be addressed


differently (an easy example of a differenpe is the procedure for appointing the


eommissioners). The City might also choose to descrfüe the por¡vers and duties of the


board somçwhat differently than the APPA Model Ordinance. However, in genera-l


terms, 'Wisconsin law allows the City to choose a govÊrnance struoture for Stoughton


Utilitjes that is cornparable to the APPA Ïvfodel Or inancc.


Please let me knorr if you have any questio-ns, or if I can provide any further assistance.


Enc.logure * December 10, 2009 Memorandum


cc: Mayor Do,nna Olson (with Enclosure)
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Ïy'is. Sta¿. $ 66.0807(6), itt lier¡ of â "cornlilission" constituterf ¡rursuaüt ro V/is. 51¿ü.


$ rt6.0805(t). My rfraiT ordinance i,s enolosed wirh this uiemorandum.


In rny memora¡rcilur: datecl Nr¡ve¡nber 13, 2009, I proviclecl a general cli.çcu^ssion of the
a¡lplicable l¿rtv a¡rcl the City's o¡ltions. f have preparecl this supplemental nlemor-ant|un to
provide a short list oI key ¡roints io consicler in connection w¡ìt?r establishing a
rilflnas.cmenf. st¡'uc{.urc lt¡r the utiiities, as f olloil's:


L l he cor.urcil ca,n provide fru'nranagement olithe utìrities rry;


A conrmission ai:irointed under (ancl comp,rlsecl ol urcmbers i:l ¿rccclrtJance


',rrith) Wis. Stat. g 66.ûSOJ(t);
Aboaxl ollpublicworks (includirig tÌe comrnon coulcil acting as thc board
of ¡:ub.lie u'orks), pursuant to Wis. Stat. g G6.0S05(6);
A¡l ol'ftcer or ¿ì- grotllt o1'of.lìcc',rs (inuluding lhe conrnron cor.rncil). appointeel
pursuarrt to Wis. Srat. g 66.0S05(6).
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B,
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As we discussed at the November 16,2A09 meeting, the name given to a
managernent entity is less significant than its cornposition. For example, a
group of officers appointed under wis, stat. $ 66.0905(6) could be callecl a
"committee" ot a "cornrnission."


V/hatever tnanagement entity tlre Common Council chooses to manage ancl
operate the utility (other than itself) will lilcely have the same aurholity that a
corunission appointed under sec. 66,0805(1) would have. Therefore, whatever
management entity the Comrnon Council chooses will be lesponsible for the
"entire manâgement of and shall supervise the operation of' the utilities.


'Ihe Common Council rnay exercise "general control and supervision of' the
fiìanagelnent entity, but rnay do so only by adoptìng ordinances. It is unclear irow
much co¡rtrol the comtnon council may exer[ over the management entity. For.
example, ir is not clear whether the Corumon Council may, by ordinance, require
that specifìed decisions (such as who to appoint as utility lnanagel, the q,ages to be
paid to employees, or the purchase of property) be approved by the council. That
Type of control would seem. to be inconsistent with the requirement that control be
exercised by adopting. ordinances. Furtheruore, onoe l'he management entity
makes a decision that is within its power, the conrn:on council likety coulcl not
reverse that decision, by a subsequently adoptecl ordinance or otherwise.


Providing for manageilent of the utilities by a cominission or other management
eotity (other than the Comtnon Council) allows for management of tlre utilities by
a body that would have more or less independence from the Common Council.
The particular cornposition of'the rnanagement entity clearly irnpacts its relative
independence, For example, a greater number of Common Couneil members 6n
the rnanagement entity rryill rnean relatively less autonorny fi'om the Common
Council, in the sense that some Common Corincil r¡ernbers will have a vote on the
managemerf entity.


Given the al:ove coitsiclerations, the Conrrnon Council has three basic options to
choose arnong, as follows:


A, Provide for management of the utilities by the common Council ("council
management"). The council could also create a standing commiltee to
serve in an advisory capaclty to the cornmon council on utility issues. This
model appears to be closest to what the cìty's actual practice has been,
because the curent Utilities Committee has essentially acted as advisor)¡ to
the co:nmon council. If the comn:on Council decides that this is the
appropriate structure, it would be necessary to amcncl the current
ordinanees.


4


5


l TJDOCS\00J64 9\00009n 00t74523.Docx
t210t90834 2







B Provide for management of the utilities by a strong and indepenclent
lnanagement entity ("strong commission management"). A strong
commission would have relatively fewer council members (anct rlay not
include the mayor), serving forrelatively long terms. A conrpositiol of this
ty¡re would be the salne as or close to that plovided for by wis. stat. $
66.0s05(1) and (2). Firially, to achieve a srrong comniission, the cournron
couneil would exercise relatively little general control and supervision (by
ordinance) over the commission's work.


C. Provide for managetrlent of the utilities by a less strong and less
independent management eritity (o'weak commission management"). A
weak commission would have relatively more council rnembels, rnay
include the mayor, and woulcl be subject to a higher. clegree of general
control and supervision by the common council. For example, the
Comrnon Council could attempt to limit the commission's authority in
ceftain areas) or require common council approval of certain clecisioqi. It
slroulcl again be noted that the common council's ability to limit a
cornmission's power is not clear under Wisconsin law.


The enclosed ordinance provides for management of the utilities by designatecl
City officers, inclucling subslarrtiat representation by cornmon council nrernl¡ers
and the mayor. The th¡:ee citizen members lvould be recognized as Cify officers.
It wr:uld be called a "contnrission." I have not substantively changecl bec. Z4-4,
which states that the utilities clirector is appointed by the utilities commission
"subject to confirnration by the comrnon council." Please lrote that it js not clear
that the Common Council may retain the authority to confirm the commission's
appointment. Aside fi'orn this atternpf at control over the appointment of a ltilities
director, the ordinance does not impose any general controi õr supervision over the
comnrission


I have not performed a detailed review of the Code to locate ¡rossible aclditional
refurences to "utilitics corn¡nittee" that would need to be clrangecl to ',utilities
comlnission." If the Conrnton Council adopts an ordinance in this area, itmay be
necessaly to prepare a follow-up ordinance cleaning-up those types of refer-ences.
I would Iike to discuss the easiest way to locate such references r.vith the City
clerl< (such as a word search if the code is available in electronic form).


Fufihe¡more, the Council needs to decide how the ordinance shoulcl address the
transitiorr fror¡ the existing committee to the commission. For exarnple, if the
Council adopts fhe enclosed ordinance, should it also provide that the ,ràlniers of
the current utilities committee would be appointed to the cornmission, and se¡e
out their existing terms?
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Finally, if the eomrnon Council decides to provide for managernent of the urilities
by any errlity other than itself, then co¡sideration should be given to avoiding a
collective bargaining prohlem. Ar present, the CÍty is negoti-ating wirh a sinlte
bargaining unit that includes utility snd no-n-utility employees. Given that a
comrnission would have the authority to establish wages for utility ernployees, it is
not at all clear who would engage in eollestive bargaining on the Cityls behalf, or
how a disagreement between-th-e Cornmon Council 


"nO"tlt. 
Utility Corn*i5ion


would be resplved. I1 may be that the rneurbers of the bargainÍng unit csuld lle
separated into hwo units, with the ComrnÌssion respoirsible for bargaining with the
utility employees. Altelnatively, the comrnon Council coutd by ãr.dinance
provido that it would be responsible for se Lng wâges and collective bargaining.
This altemative, however, runs the risk that the Ufility Cornmission's auth;rity i)
sef l¡¡¡rges is not subjrect to such control by the Common Council,


I would be happy Ío provide further assisfancç regm:ding this rnatter
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CITY TF STOUGI{TON
O]TDINÄNCE NO.


AN ORDINÄNCE AMENÐING SËC1IONS 2-526, 2-527, 2-528, 2-529, 2-53 0, 74-3
AND 74-4 OF:ru.M M{JNICII'AI- COD]]


OF'I'HE CI'IY OF STOUGHTON, DÄNE COUNTY, \¿VISCONSIN


RELA:IED TO MANAGEIvIENT OF'lïE ELIICTIC, WATER
A ND \¡/ASTEVTIÄTER UTIr-ITIII.S


The City Couneíl of the CiÍy of Stoughton, Dane County, Wísconsìa, ilo orc{ain that
the Maniciysa! Code oJ'tlte City of9toughton, Wisconsin is atnended as follows:


The title of Chapler 2, Division I Iís amendec{ toread:


I nrvrsrow 1 r. urrl,rrrns çsiT{å&Ë.4ËeÆgMüdr$$rgN


Sections 2-526 through,2-530 are arnetdecl asfallows:


Sec. 2- 526 . Corn posìtion.


I ff,e utilities e+rnrnitl,råecomnrission is cre*ted Dursuant to TVis- Stat. S 66.0805f6)-


I and-shalt consist of the touynffi,*elÌ*g" *-*ffi,- 
"f 


thr .**",r" "r-*il .p.û
annually by the mayor ancl confilnred by the counoil and three aity resiclents appoiuted by
the marvor aad confìflned by the cou¡rcil lbr three-year staggerecl terms, one for one yeâr,
one for lwo years, one 'br thlee years, and thereafler flor tfuee y-year terms. The


I ec+lr*rni+åeeruEg¡gggg will clsct an alderperson to bc the liaison and an altefirate liaison
with the city council annually aÉ its first regnlarly sclrcduled ureeting after the council
reorganization meeting. Citizen rnembers shall scrve wíth such compensation as


I determined by the city council by rerolution fi'om tinre to time. üIæp¡*ggÞgUShd!]æ"
Id=Eçtus4-to¡^s*a"'ts".aff#åÞurjsüil,]r.l-Wlq-ã1ät.åS2-0..9f


See. 2-527 . Or:gaxization.


the utilitíss o*.rmræ'i+æ*.gom¡sisglg¿shaTl annually at its fiist r-egularly schedurled


rneeting aftet the council reorganization choose a chair ancl vice chair finm its memhers.
J'he etrmr¡li+tsê-Ë9ffirtiéåiÆ*shall moct regtrlarly onse a month aud at sueh times rvithin
the month. as the @shall determine.


I gg¡*0Æ*ry¡.*.t49ury'{'r*}six+l-$ggçÊttrlÐd}fi;ü'efi.iso¡r¡¿,iârr+t!'t}îãr,t4çtÆ' Tiîffitrq-r-z'^-





